
CITY OF LAWNDALE
AGENDA OF THE LAWNDALE

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING

Monday, March 17, 2025, 6:30 PM
Council Chambers
14717 Burin Ave
Lawndale, CA 90260

Any person who wishes to address the City Council regarding any item listed on this agenda or any
other matter that is within its subject matter jurisdiction is invited, but not required, to fill out a
Public Meeting Speaker Card and submit it to the City Clerk prior to the oral communications
portion of the meeting. The purpose of the card is to ensure that the speaker’s name is correctly
recorded in the meeting minutes and, where appropriate, to provide contact information for staff
follow-up.

How to observe the Meeting:
To maximize public safety while still maintaining transparency and public access, members of the public can
now observe the meeting in person. Members of the public are still be able to view the meeting on YouTube
“Lawndale CityTV”, the City Website, and Lawndale Community Cable Television on Spectrum and
Frontier Channel 3.

Copies of this Agenda may be obtained prior to the meeting inside the Lawndale City Hall foyer or on the
City Website. Interested parties may contact the City Clerk Department at (310) 973-3213 for clarification
regarding individual agenda items.

 
This Agenda is subject to revision up to 72 hours before the meeting.

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

B. CEREMONIALS (Flag Salute and Inspiration)

C. PUBLIC SAFETY REPORT

1. Los Angeles County Sheriff’s Department Update

D. PRESENTATIONS

2. Recognition of Outgoing Commissioners and Board Members
— Recognizing outgoing Commissioners and Board Members.

3. Recognition of Vilma Hall, Senior Recreation Leader
— Retirement Service Recognition of Vilma Hall, Senior Recreation Leader.

E. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS - ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA (Public Comments)

F. COMMENTS FROM COUNCIL

G. CONSENT CALENDAR

Items 4 through 6 will be considered and acted upon under one motion unless a City Councilmember removes individual items for
further City Council consideration or explanation.

https://www.lawndalecity.org/UserFiles/Servers/Server_16676053/File/Government/City%20Council/All%20Speaker%20Card%20(Rev.%2002-20).pdf
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCfzabQru02YprD2xs5FC2Ow
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCfzabQru02YprD2xs5FC2Ow
http://192.168.10.14/CablecastPublicSite/watch/1?channel=3
https://www.lawndalecity.org/cms/one.aspx?pageId=17106541


4. Motion to read by title only and waive further reading of all ordinances listed on the Agenda
— Recommendation: that the City Council read by title only and waive further reading of all ordinances listed on the
agenda.

5. Accounts Payable Register

— Recommendation: that City Council adopts Resolution No. CC-2503-016 authorizing the payment of certain claims
and demands in the amount of $1,399,920.41.

6. Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Regular Meeting - March 3, 2025

— Recommendation: that the City Council approve the minutes.

H. ADMINISTRATION

7. Discussion of the City's Sphere of Influence Expansion
— Recommendation: that the City Council 1.) Direct staff to a.) Initiate and introduce a General Plan Amendment to be
submitted to the Planning Commission for a recommendation for consideration by the City Council to amend and
expand the City's Sphere of Influence; and b.) Initiate and submit a SOI Amendment application to LAFCO; or 2.)
Provide further direction to staff.

8. Award of Contract Community Development Block Grant ADA Sidewalks

— Recommendation: that the City Council 1.) Award the construction contract to Onyx Paving Company, Inc., in the
amount of $282,000.00 for the CDBG Project No. 602487-22 Various Locations ADA Sidewalks & Access Ramps
Project; 2.) Approve the construction Contingency of $56,000.00 for CDBG Project No. 602487-22 Various Locations
ADA Sidewalks & Access Ramps Project; and 3.) Approve the CDBG Consultant costs of $35,000.00 for
Administrative and Labor Compliance costs.

9. Approve the Third Amendment to Contract Services Agreement for Lawndale Security Improvement Project
— Recommendation: that the City Council approve the Third Amendment to the Lawndale Security Improvement
Project Agreement with Am-Tec Total Security Inc. to extend the term for an additional three months for a new
expiration date of June 30, 2025 with no increase to the current project amount. 

10. Approve the Second Amendment to Contract Services Agreement for FY 23/24 Citywide Sign Replacement
Project

— Recommendation: that the City Council approve the Second Amendment to the FY 2023/24 Citywide Sign
Replacement Project Agreement with J&E Asphalt Maintenance to extend the term for an additional three months for a
new expiration date of June 30, 2025 with no increase to the current project amount.

I. CITY MANAGER REPORT

J. ITEMS FROM CITY COUNCILMEMBERS

11. Speed Hump Policy
Requested by Councilmember Suarez.

— Recommendation: that the City Council discuss the Speed Hump policy and provide direction for staff for
potentially updating the policy if Council wants to make changes to it.



12. Letter of Support for Los Angeles County Sheriff's Department Staffing
Requested by Mayor Pullen-Miles.

— Recommendation: that the City Council 1.) Review and approve the attached draft letter to Supervisor Holly J.
Mitchell, County of Los Angeles Board of Supervisors; and 2.) Direct staff in the City Manager's Department to
finalize the letter with the Mayor and City Councilmembers signature lines for transmittal to Supervisor Holly J.
Mitchell; or 3.) Provide further direction to staff.

13. Report of Attendance at Meetings

K. CLOSED SESSION

14. Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation

— The City Council will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9(d)(1), to discuss
existing litigation: Name of Case: City of Lawndale v. LA Investment, LLC (LA Superior Court Case No.
20TRCV00065).

15. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation
— The City Council will conduct a closed session pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9(d)(4), to discuss the
potential initiation of litigation: three (3) cases.

L. ADJOURNMENT

The next regularly scheduled meeting of the City Council will be held at 6:30 p.m. on Monday, April 7,
2025, in the Lawndale City Hall Council Chamber, 14717 Burin Avenue, Lawndale, California.
It is the intention of the City of Lawndale to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) in all
respects. If, as an attendee or a participant at this meeting, you need special assistance beyond what is
normally provided, we will attempt to accommodate you in every reasonable manner. Please contact the City
Clerk Department (310) 973-3213 prior to the meeting to inform us of your particular needs and to determine
if accommodation is feasible. Please advise us at that time if you will need accommodation to attend or
participate in meetings on a regular basis.
I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the agenda for the
regular meeting of the City Council to be held on March 17, 2025, was posted not less than 72 hours prior to
the meeting.

           /s/ Yvette Palomo                 

Yvette Palomo, Assistant City Clerk

Date Posted: March 13, 2025



CITY OF LAWNDALE
14717 BURIN AVENUE, LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 90260

PHONE (310) 973-3200 ♦ www.lawndalecity.org

 

DATE:    March 17, 2025

TO:   Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Dr. Sean M. Moore, City Manager

PREPARED BY: Diane Parsley, Executive Assistant

SUBJECT: Recognition of Outgoing Commissioners and Board Members
 

BACKGROUND

The City is recognizing outgoing Commissioners and Board Members by presenting them with a City Plaque
or Certificate of Commendation as per Council Policy No. 26-95 - Recognition Requests. 

 

 

Attachments

Attachment A.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67b6540b23108a0054f76d85%2FAttachment%20A%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=dfeef8cf-0d08-406f-b5d2-c0f0c836c062
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67b6540b23108a0054f76d85%2FAttachment%20A%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=dfeef8cf-0d08-406f-b5d2-c0f0c836c062
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67b6540b23108a0054f76d85%2FAttachment%20A%20(1).pdf?alt=media&token=dfeef8cf-0d08-406f-b5d2-c0f0c836c062


Attachment A















CITY OF LAWNDALE
14717 BURIN AVENUE, LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 90260

PHONE (310) 973-3200 ♦ www.lawndalecity.org

 

DATE:    March 17, 2025

TO:   Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Dr. Sean M. Moore, City Manager

PREPARED BY: Diane Parsley, Executive Assistant

SUBJECT: Recognition of Vilma Hall, Senior Recreation Leader
 

BACKGROUND

The City is recognizing retiring Senior Recreation Leader, Vilma Hall, for her over 28 years of service to the
City of Lawndale in the Community Services Department. 

 

 

 

Attachments

Attachment A_Retirement Presentation to Vilma Hall_CSD Senior Recreation Leader_28 plus years of Service.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c75b1c4e7b11006b8bf975%2FAttachment%20A_Retirement%20Presentation%20to%20Vilma%20Hall_CSD%20Senior%20Recreation%20Leader_28%20plus%20years%20of%20Service.pdf?alt=media&token=0bb85d77-4bdb-4955-bef4-239421360131
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c75b1c4e7b11006b8bf975%2FAttachment%20A_Retirement%20Presentation%20to%20Vilma%20Hall_CSD%20Senior%20Recreation%20Leader_28%20plus%20years%20of%20Service.pdf?alt=media&token=0bb85d77-4bdb-4955-bef4-239421360131
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c75b1c4e7b11006b8bf975%2FAttachment%20A_Retirement%20Presentation%20to%20Vilma%20Hall_CSD%20Senior%20Recreation%20Leader_28%20plus%20years%20of%20Service.pdf?alt=media&token=0bb85d77-4bdb-4955-bef4-239421360131


 

ATTACHMENT A 



Retirement Presentation 

 

March 17, 2025 

 

City Council Meeting  

______________________________________________ 

 
Vilma Hall 

Senior Recreation Leader 

Community Services Department 

April 1996 to March 2025 

 

Retirement 

 
Vilma was hired as a Tiny Tot Aide in April of 1996.  In July of 2003 she was reclassed to 

Recreation Leader and promoted to Senior Recreation Leader in March of 2006. 

 

Over the years Vilma has worked with a variety of City programs, including parks, the wading 

pool, pre-school, and special events. Vilma was promoted to Senior Recreation Leader as her 

dedication and selflessness was evident to those around her. 

 

Throughout her time in Lawndale, Vilma was always kind and friendly, and she made everyone 

around her feel like family. She was always positive and upbeat, and walked around with a smile 

on her face. Vilma is the type of person that always went above and beyond to make sure 

everyone was cared for. Vilma always showed care and compassion for those around her. 

 

Vilma has left an incredible mark on the Community Services Department and the Lawndale 

Community. A friend and colleague said this of Vilma, “Vilma has been a valuable employee! I 

am very thankful to have worked with her all these years, and I’m happy to have her as a 

colleague and friend! Vilma always shows her thoughtfulness by her offers of help and goodies! 

It has been a pleasure to work with her, and she will be missed!”  

 
On behalf of the Lawndale City Council, we congratulate you on your retirement, and present 

you with this plaque, and a 28 Year Service Lapel Pin, recognizing your dedication and service 

to the City of Lawndale and the Community Services Department all these years  

 

We wish you all the very best in your retirement! Congratulations! 

 

 

 



 

 

Presented  To  
Vilma Hall 

Senior Recreation Leader 

Community Services Department 
 

On the Occasion of Your Retirement 
 

28 Years of Service 
April 1996 to March 2025 

 

 
 

In Recognition and Gratitude  

of over 28 years of Service and Dedication 

 

We wish you all the best in your Retirement!  
 

 
Presented by the Lawndale City Council  

 

March 17, 2025 

 



CITY OF LAWNDALE
14717 BURIN AVENUE, LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 90260

PHONE (310) 973-3200 ♦ www.lawndalecity.org

 

DATE:    March 17, 2025

TO:   Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Dr. Sean M. Moore, City Manager

PREPARED BY: Vanesa Alvarez, Administrative Assistant

SUBJECT: Motion to read by title only and waive further reading of all ordinances listed on
the Agenda

 

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the City Council read by title only and waive further reading of all ordinances listed
on the agenda.

 



CITY OF LAWNDALE
14717 BURIN AVENUE, LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 90260

PHONE (310) 973-3200 ♦ www.lawndalecity.org

 

DATE:    March 17, 2025

TO:   Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Dr. Sean M. Moore, City Manager

PREPARED BY: Hrant Manuelian, Finance Director/City Treasurer

SUBJECT: Accounts Payable Register
 

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that City Council adopts Resolution No. CC-2503-016 authorizing the payment of certain
claims and demands in the amount of $1,399,920.41.

 

Attachments

A. CC-2503-016 - AP Resolution - Mar. 17, 2025.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c619654e7b11006b89d774%2FA.%20CC-2503-016%20-%20AP%20Resolution%20-%20Mar.%2017%2C%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=e628cc51-52d9-4d00-b8a6-2549424b87bb
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c619654e7b11006b89d774%2FA.%20CC-2503-016%20-%20AP%20Resolution%20-%20Mar.%2017%2C%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=e628cc51-52d9-4d00-b8a6-2549424b87bb
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c619654e7b11006b89d774%2FA.%20CC-2503-016%20-%20AP%20Resolution%20-%20Mar.%2017%2C%202025.pdf?alt=media&token=e628cc51-52d9-4d00-b8a6-2549424b87bb
















CITY OF LAWNDALE
14717 BURIN AVENUE, LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 90260

PHONE (310) 973-3200 ♦ www.lawndalecity.org

 

DATE:    March 17, 2025

TO:   Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Dr. Sean M. Moore, City Manager

PREPARED BY: Vanesa Alvarez, Administrative Assistant
Yvette Palomo, Assistant City Clerk

SUBJECT: Minutes of the Lawndale City Council Regular Meeting - March 3, 2025
 

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the minutes.

 

Attachments

Attachment A- March 3, 2025 Minutes

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67b53c2923108a0054f59024%2Fmin%203-3-25.pdf?alt=media&token=7595c1cd-a23e-4383-8db0-c10dc1a4a481
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67b53c2923108a0054f59024%2Fmin%203-3-25.pdf?alt=media&token=7595c1cd-a23e-4383-8db0-c10dc1a4a481
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67b53c2923108a0054f59024%2Fmin%203-3-25.pdf?alt=media&token=7595c1cd-a23e-4383-8db0-c10dc1a4a481


ATTACHMENT A





DRAFT

Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
February 6, 2023

Page 2



DRAFT

Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
February 6, 2023

Page 3



DRAFT

Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
February 6, 2023

Page 4



DRAFT

Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
February 6, 2023

Page 5



DRAFT

Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
February 6, 2023

Page 6



DRAFT

Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
February 6, 2023

Page 7



DRAFT

Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
February 6, 2023

Page 8



DRAFT

Minutes-City Council Regular Meeting 
February 6, 2023

Page 9



CITY OF LAWNDALE
14717 BURIN AVENUE, LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 90260

PHONE (310) 973-3200 ♦ www.lawndalecity.org

 

DATE:    March 17, 2025

TO:   Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Dr. Sean M. Moore, City Manager

PREPARED BY: Peter Kann, Community Development Director

SUBJECT: Discussion of the City's Sphere of Influence Expansion
 

BACKGROUND

Community Development staff is requesting the City Council's direction regarding the City's existing Sphere
of Influence (SOI) for El Camino Village/Alondra Park, an unincorporated community where municipal
services are provided by the County of Los Angeles. According to the 2020 US Census, El Camino Village is
approximately 1.4 square miles in size, population of 8,569 residents, 2,764 total households and
encompass Alondra Park, and El Camino College. The approximate size of Alondra Park is 204 acres and the
campus size of El Camino College is 126 acres, which represents a little over half of El Camino Village.  The
geographical location of the City's SOI and the County's land use policy for El Camino Village is provided as
reference in Attachment 1. Alondra Park and El Camino College are not currently within the City's SOI.
 
Provided below are definition of terms that provide an overview about General Plan Planning Area, SOI, and
the role of the Local Agency Formation Commission. 
 
Definition 
 
General Plan Planning Area - The Planning Area is a geographic area for which the General Plan provides
a framework for long-term growth and resource conservation. State law requires the General Plan to include
all territory within a City's incorporated area as well as "any land outside its boundaries which in the
planning agency's judgment bears relation to its planning. 
 
Sphere of Influence (SOI) - is the probable physical boundary and service area of a local agency, as adopted
by a Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO). A SOI may include both incorporated and
unincorporated areas within which a city or special district will have primary responsibility for the provision
of public facilities and services. Lawndale’s SOI extends east of City Limits into the Los Angeles County
unincorporated community of El Camino Village. El Camino Village is primarily a densely developed,
single-family residential community with commercial uses along Crenshaw Boulevard. Although parts of El
Camino Village share a Lawndale zip code, the City has historically not provided services to the community.

Local Agency Formation Commission - An independent regulatory body, established in 1963 by the
California Legislature responsible for overseeing local government boundaries, coordinating special districts
formations, and conducting studies of municipal services in each of California's 58 counties. 

STAFF REVIEW



Attachment 2 depicts neighboring cities' SOI Map which were produced by LAFCO. Recently, the City of
Torrance initiated a Annexation Study for the potential annexation of El Camino Village which encompass
residential areas currently within the City's SOI. The study analyzed potential impacts to the City of Torrance
on a variety of subject such as revenue and expenditure fiscal analysis, demand for fire services and their
required response times, cost of Torrance Police Department substation renovations, and added open space to
Torrance's park inventory. The staff report and the annexation study is attached as Attachment 3. Torrance's
exploration of annexation came to the City Manager's attention when he attended a South Bay Cities Council
of Government (SBCCOG) meeting. Torrance's City Manager Office has reached out to City staff to meet,
discuss, and answer questions about the annexation study. This meeting is scheduled for April 1, 2025 and
subsequently staff will provide an update to the Council. 

If directed by the City Council, staff would initiate contact with LAFCO staff to better understand the
process for potential amendment to the City's SOI. Subsequently, Community Development staff will
provide an update to the Council on LAFCO's process and procedural requirements. Since the City's existing
SOI is identified within the General Plan 2045, one of the recommended action is for staff to present an
agenda item to the City's Planning Commission for input to consider an application for a General Plan
Amendment to amend the City's SOI to include El Camino College and Alondra Park.  

LEGAL REVIEW

The City Attorney has reviewed this staff report and approves it. 

FISCAL IMPACT

None. 

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that the City Council:
1. Direct staff to:

Initiate and introduce a General Plan Amendment to be submitted to the Planning Commission for
a recommendation for consideration by the City Council to amend and expand the City's Sphere
of Influence;   
Initiate and submit a SOI Amendment application to LAFCO; or

2. Provide further direction to staff.  

 

Attachments

Attachment 1 - Sphere of Influence.pdf
Attachment 2 LAFCO Maps.pdf
Attachment 3 - Torrance Documents.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c736ba4e7b11006b8b7c8a%2FAttachment%201%20-%20Sphere%20of%20Influence.pdf?alt=media&token=a4cec736-fcc2-4519-a18b-6fcc1be066f5
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c736ba4e7b11006b8b7c8a%2FAttachment%201%20-%20Sphere%20of%20Influence.pdf?alt=media&token=a4cec736-fcc2-4519-a18b-6fcc1be066f5
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c736ba4e7b11006b8b7c8a%2FAttachment%201%20-%20Sphere%20of%20Influence.pdf?alt=media&token=a4cec736-fcc2-4519-a18b-6fcc1be066f5
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c736ba4e7b11006b8b7c8a%2FAttachment%202%20LAFCO%20Maps.pdf?alt=media&token=cd271541-4959-42ca-9b2e-e7aa61cc4bc9
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c736ba4e7b11006b8b7c8a%2FAttachment%202%20LAFCO%20Maps.pdf?alt=media&token=cd271541-4959-42ca-9b2e-e7aa61cc4bc9
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c736ba4e7b11006b8b7c8a%2FAttachment%202%20LAFCO%20Maps.pdf?alt=media&token=cd271541-4959-42ca-9b2e-e7aa61cc4bc9
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c736ba4e7b11006b8b7c8a%2FAttachment%203%20-%20Torrance%20Documents.pdf?alt=media&token=1a6f8bc7-9964-4380-a059-cfd28c1c04ae
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c736ba4e7b11006b8b7c8a%2FAttachment%203%20-%20Torrance%20Documents.pdf?alt=media&token=1a6f8bc7-9964-4380-a059-cfd28c1c04ae
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c736ba4e7b11006b8b7c8a%2FAttachment%203%20-%20Torrance%20Documents.pdf?alt=media&token=1a6f8bc7-9964-4380-a059-cfd28c1c04ae






..\PROJECTS\DRP_ADVANCE_PLANNING\area_plans\South_Bay_Area_Plan\Area_Plan_Map_Series_SBAP_Large_Series.aprx - South Bay - Large Map Series

0 500 1,000

Feet

Prepared  by DRP GIS Section / February 2024

LOS ANGELES COUNTY
Dept. of Regional Planning
320 W. Temple St.
Los Angeles, CA 90012

þ91

þ90

105

110

105

710

405

5

Pacific
Ocean

DEL AIRE HAWTHORNE
ISLAND

LA RAMBLA

LENNOX

WEST CARSON

WESTFIELD /
ACADEMY HILLS

WISEBURN

CARSON

EL SEGUNDO

INGLEWOOD

LOS ANGELES

MANHATTAN
BEACH

TORRANCE

Westside
Planning

Area

West San
Gabriel Valley
Planning Area

Metro
Planning

Area

Gateway
Planning

Area

South
Bay

Planning
Area

Key Map

Alondra Park / El Camino Village and
Hawthorne Island

Los Angeles County

C
re

n
sh

aw
 B

lv
d

P
ra

ir
ie

 A
ve

Manhattan Beach Blvd

H
aw

th
o

rn
e 

B
lv

d

S
W

es
te

rn
A

ve

Redondo Beach Blvd

W Rosecrans Ave

C
re

n
sh

aw
 B

lv
d

P
ra

ir
ie

A
ve

H
aw

th
o

rn
e 

B
lv

d

S
W

es
te

rn
A

ve

W Redondo Beach Blvd
Manhattan Beach Blvd Manhattan Beach Blvd

S
W

es
te

rn
A

veC
re

n
sh

aw
 B

lv
d

S
W

es
te

rn
A

ve
S

W
es

te
rn

A
ve

Rosecrans AveRosecrans Ave

P
ra

ir
ie

 A
ve

H
aw

th
o

rn
e 

B
lv

d

C
re

n
sh

aw
 B

lv
d

C
o

n
d

o
n

 A
ve

Manhattan Wy

W
ilt

o
n

 P
l

A
m

ie A
ve

171st St

W
as

h
in

g
to

n
 A

ve

Je
ff

er
so

n
 A

ve

W 168th St

W 133rd St

Redondo Wy

G
ra

m
er

cy
 P

l

Ill
in

o
is

 C
t

W 131st St

S
p

in
n

in
g

 A
ve

C
ra

n
b

ro
o

k 
A

ve

S
D

o
ty

A
ve

170th St

G
er

ki
n

 A
ve

S
ay

le
r 

A
ve

172nd St

149th St

145th St

Elg
ar

 A
ve

W 147th St

W 170th St

Bodger Ave

K
o

rn
b

lu
m

 A
ve

W 132nd St

W 154th St

C
er

is
e 

A
ve

W 147th St

W 133rd St

W 134th St

W 162nd St

C
h

ad
ro

n
 A

ve

Marine Ave

H
aa

s 
A

ve

W 139th St

W 154th St

165th St

W 144th St

P
ol

ly
A

ve

166th St

144th St

W 162nd St

145th St

W 146th St

C
as

im
ir

 A
ve

W
ilk

ie
 A

ve

A
rd

at
h

 A
ve

A
tk

in
so

n
 A

ve

D
el

ia
 A

ve

W 153rd St

W Redondo Beach Blvd

147th St

S
p

in
n

in
g

 A
ve

R
o

se
lle

 A
ve

C
o

rd
ar

y 
A

ve

Verburg Ct

W 166th St

P
u

rc
h

e 
A

ve

R
am

o
n

a 
A

ve

A
tk

in
so

n
A

v
e

163rd St

170th St

W 154th Pl

171st St
173rd

St

D
o

ty
A

ve

155th Ct

W 134th Pl

156th Ct

Lemoli Wy

W
ad

ki
n

s 
A

ve

M
ill

er
 A

ve

F
ir

m
o

n
a 

A
ve

K
in

g
sd

al
e 

A
ve

156th St

M
an

se
l A

ve

153rd St

P
u

rc
h

e 
A

ve

W 167th St

166th Pl

A
rd

at
h

 A
ve

W 164th St

W
ilt

o
n

 P
lS
L

em
o

li
A

ve

C
h

ad
ro

n
 A

veC
er

is
e 

A
ve

Slayton St

A
vi

s 
A

ve

A
in

sw
o

rt
h

 A
ve

Ruth
bar D

r

W 149th St

W 165th St

W
ad

sh
an

 A
ly

R
u

th
el

en
 S

t

W 149th St

W 147th St

W 155th St

132nd St

M
an

h
at

ta
n

 P
l

S
M

anh
attan

P
l

P
ra

ir
ie

 A
ve

Ill
in

o
is

 C
t

M
arig

o
ld

A
ve

W 134th Pl

W 141st St

W 145th St

D
u

b
lin

 A
ve

Johnson Ct

150th St

169th Pl

F
re

em
an

 A
ve

O
sa

g
e 

A
ve

171st St

K
o

rn
b

lu
m

 A
ve

W 157th St

B
u

ri
n

 A
ve

H
aa

s 
A

ve

C
o

n
d

o
n

 A
ve

G
re

vi
lle

a 
A

ve

F
ir

m
o

n
a 

A
ve

W 152nd St

W 154th St

D
o

ty
 A

ve

148th Pl

W 152nd St

W 150th St

144th Pl

W 142nd St C
er

is
e 

A
ve

G
ra

m
er

cy
 P

l

F
ra

n
ci

s 
C

t

E
ri

el
 A

ve

W 171st St

W
h

ar
ff

 L
n

S
E

ri
el

A
ve

W 156th St

Ta
yl

o
r

C
t

140th St

W 163rd St

168th St

164th St

167th St

154th St

W 166th St

C
im

ar
ro

n
 A

ve

W
ilk

ie
 A

ve

K
o

rn
b

lu
m

 A
ve

De Oro Ln

C
as

im
ir

 A
ve

Private Drwy

F
re

em
an

 A
ve

P
u

rc
h

e
A

ve

S
ai

n
t

A
n

d
re

w
s

P
l

W 146th Pl

C
im

ar
ro

n
 W

y

W 130th St

Manhattan Beach

169th St

W 145th St

W 149th St

W 161st St

C
er

is
e 

A
ve

W 160th St

S
o

m
b

ra
A

v
e

148th St

W 140th St

139th Pl

W 138th St

W 137th St

136th St

135th Pl

166th St

A
rd

at
h

 A
ve

O
sa

g
e 

A
ve

E
as

tw
o

o
d

 A
ve

F
re

em
an

 A
ve

We b

er
W

y

162nd St

O
ce

an
 L

n

132nd Pl

G
re

vi
lle

a 
A

ve

W 137th St

131st St

W 130th St

129th Pl

141st Pl

Galli St

A
rc

tu
ru

s 
A

ve

W 134th Pl

R
o

xt
o

n
 A

ve

Cher
ry

 A
ve

W 131st St

T
h

o
rn

b
u

rg
h

A
ve

F
o

n
th

ill
 A

ve

Y
u

ko
n

 A
ve

160th St

W 163rd St

L
ar

ch
 A

ve

A
p

o
llo

 P
l

W 149th St

153rd Pl

Tr
u

ro
 A

ve

E
u

ca
ly

p
tu

s 
A

ve

G
al

e 
A

ve

S
 M

an
o

r 
D

r

S
 H

aw
th

o
rn

e 
W

y

G
re

vi
lle

a 
A

ve

W 152nd St

K
ri

st
in

 A
ve

W 159th St

F
ay

sm
it

h
 A

ve

W 159th St

O
g

ra
m

 A
ve

171st St

Fonthill Ave

Lisso Ave

P
ar

ro
n

 A
ve

Jup
iter

P
l

L
em

o
li 

A
ve

W 146th St

P
at

ro
n

el
la

 A
ve

Purche Alley Pl

161st St

155th St

E
rm

an
it

a 
A

ve

W 157th St

S
u

tr
o

 A
ve

F
al

d
a 

A
ve

G
le

n
b

u
rn

 A
ve

D
ap

h
n

e 
A

ve

170th St

166th St

169th St

167th St

W 152nd St

148th St

147th St

G
al

ax
y 

P
l

H
aa

s 
A

ve

V
en

u
s 

P
l

W 144th St

W 144th Pl

A
vi

s 
A

ve

139th St

W 132nd Pl

F
lo

rw
o

o
d

 A
ve

C
h

ad
ro

n
 A

ve

W 139th St

S
im

m
s 

A
ve

W
ilt

o
n

 P
l

S
ai

n
t

A
n

d
re

w
s

P
l

C
h

an
er

a
A

ve

169th St

171st St

159th St

O
g

ra
m

 A
ve

S
F

al
d

a
A

ve

C
ra

n
b

ro
o

k 
A

ve

W 143rd Pl

D
ap

h
n

e 
A

ve

A
rc

tu
ru

s 
A

ve

W 156th St

S
p

in
n

in
g

 A
ve

F
lo

rw
o

o
d

 A
ve

D
ap

h
n

e 
A

ve

W 136th St

W 137th St

W 133rd St

W 139th St

W 135th St

138th St

W 134th St

141st St

W 132nd St

142nd St

S
E

rm
an

it
a

A
ve

S
F

ay
sm

it
h

A
ve

P
ra

ir
ie

M
an

h
at

ta
n

 P
l

S
ai

n
t

A
n

d
re

w
s

P
l

W
ilk

ie
 A

ve

C
as

im
ir

 A
ve

W 160th St

W 161st St

C
o

n
d

o
n

 A
ve

H
aa

s 
A

ve

D
al

es
id

e 
A

ve

W 146th St

147th Pl

R
o

se
lle

 A
ve

C
o

rd
ar

y 
A

ve

S
F

lo
rw

o
o

d
A

ve

L
em

o
li 

A
ve

W
ilk

ie
 A

ve

A
rd

at
h

 A
ve

C
h

an
er

a 
A

ve

W 152nd Pl

W 153rd St

W 145th St

W 154th Pl

137th Pl

W 136th St

W 135th St

K
o

rn
b

lu
m

 A
ve

W 169th St

G
ra

m
er

cy
 P

l

C
im

ar
ro

n
 A

ve

C
o

rd
ar

y 
A

ve

M
ar

ig
o

ld
 A

ve

S
P

at
ro

n
el

la
A

ve

R
u

th
el

en
 S

t

Marine Ave

Y
u

ko
n

 A
ve

W 135th St

V
an

N
es

s
A

ve

Marine Ave

Y
u

ko
n

 A
ve

W Gardena BlvdW 164th St

V
an

N
es

s
A

ve

M
ar

in
e

A
ve

Alondra Park
/ El Camino

Village

Hawthorne
Island

Gardena

Hawthorne

Lawndale

Torrance

405

OS-PR

H18H18

H50

H50H50

H50

H9H9

H9

H9

H9

H9

H9

H9

H9

H9

H9

H9

H9 H9

H9
H9

H9

P

P

P

W

W

W

W

H18

H18

H18

H18

H18

H18

CG

CG

CG to MU

CG to MU

CG to MU
CG to MU

CG to MU

H9 to H18

H9 to H18

H30
to MU

P to MU

W to MU

Proposed Land Use Policy Changes
H18 - Residential 18

MU - Mixed Use

Land Use Policy (No Change)
H9 - Residential 9

H18 - Residential 18

H50 - Residential 50

CG - General Commercial

P - Public and Semi-Public

OS-PR - Parks and Recreation

W - Water

Base Layers
Freeway

Parcels

South Bay Area Plan:
Proposed Land Use Policy





132ND PL

AVST AV133RDAVST
ST

133RDW
133RDWFL

OR
W

OO
D

ST
133RD ST

133RD
ST4000 133RD

5100
4600

ST134TH ST
ST

13
40

0

134THW

13
40

0

134THW
ST134THST134TH

AV

4400
PL134THW

13
40

0
PL134TH

PL
W

134THST

ER
IE

LST135TH 135TH

CE
RI

SE5200

WRO
SE

LL
E

ST135TH4000
ST135THW

3300
ST4800 136TH

13
60

0

ST136TH

AVAV

ST136THW

ST4100

13
50

0HA
W

TH
OR

NE

5100

13
50

0

ST137TH

13
70

0

ST
ST

137THW
137TH4600

GA
LL

I

13
70

0

4400WYPL
LISSO

137THSH
O U

P
13

70
0

CI
EN

EG
A

GA
TE

PL137THW

13
70

0

ST138TH ST CR
EN

S H
AW

5200

CO
RD

AR
Y

ST138TH
ST

AVST AV138THW PR
AIR

IE

139TH
139TH PL3100

4900
STAV

3600

DR 139THAVLA ST
STSLAYTON

139THW

140TH ST
4000

WY

GA
LE

TR
UR

O

MA
NO

R

HA
W

TH
OR

NE

AV 13
90

0

GR
EV

ILL
EA

5100 EU
CA

LY
PT

US

WA
SH

IN
GT

ON

JE
FF

ER
SO

N

ST140TH
ST14

10
0W

W
141STS SST140TH

ST 4400141STST14
10

0

141STW

LE
MO

LI

RA
MO

NA

OC
EA

N

S

ST

CH
AD

RO
N

DO
TY

142ND14
20

0

ST142NDST142ND

FO
N T

HI
LL

KO
RN

BL
UM

YU
KO

N

W

14
19

9HA
WT

HO
RN

E
ROSECRANSW

14
20

0

14
29

9

AVROSECRANSAV4800ROSECRANS
3499ST144TH3999399940364399

AVAV

AVAV

AV AVAVAV

PL144THFONTHILL

14
30

0AV

LNBODGER
GARDEN

14
30

0

LNST145THST14
30

0

145THCOURT

LN

LNPARK

CO
TT

AG
E

CORDARY

AR
BO

R

W 145TH146TH
WY

ST
145THW

ST
STLE

MO
LI

146TH

CE
RI

SEST LNORODE DOTY

AV

AV 14
50

0

ST 14
69

9

DOTY
ST

ST147TH 147THW147THST

SAN 147TH
148TH 3300

IN
GL

EW
OO

D

PL

ALAV

SO
C E

AN
GA

TE
A V

AV PL147TH
ST147THW

AV AV RUTHBAR

AV DRSTAV

14
70

1

AV AV

PINE5100
148TH

AV

148TH STVISTA

BL
VDSTLN 149TH

ST149TH

CO
ND

ON 4300

WA
DS

HA
W

PALOS VERDES
WELTONAV AV AVKIN

GS
DA

LE

CR
AN

BR
OO

K

CH
A D

RO
N

KO
RN

B L
UM

LN
W15

10
0

BU
RI

N

AVFIR
M O

NA

MARINEAV
3299 AV3999

ST152NDW152NDW ST
2799DIEGO 15

10
0

AVAV AV

ST152ND

AVAV PL152NDW

15
10

0

AV15
10

0

AVAVAV PO
LL

Y AV

15
10

0

AV

ST153RDW

LA
RC

H

ST
153RDW

153RD

AVST EA
ST

W
OO

D

153RD
ST

GR
E V

ILL
EA

AV

MA
NS

EL

RR

ER
IE

L

ST154TH
PL

W
153RD

FO
NT

HI
LL

KO
RN

BL
UM

AV
IS

OS
AG

E

S

ST154TH42B WST
PL154THW

154TH
42B

W 155TH STAV15
40

0

ST

AV

AVFE LNSANTA 156TH

ER
MA

NI
TA

LE
MO

LI

FA
Y S

MI
TH

AVDO
TY

156THWFL
OR

WO
OD

JOHNSTON

PA
T R

ON
EL

LA

AV

ST YU
KO

N

CE
RI

SE

FA
LD

A

CR
AN

BR
OO

K

15
70

0

CO
RD

AR
Y

GE
RK

IN

MCBAIN

RO
SE

LL
E

W15
60

0

OG
RA

M

CH
AD

RO
N

15
60

0

ST AT
KI

N S
ON

157TH

WH
AR

FF

AV

CR
EN

SH
A W

AVAV AVAVBL
VD

AV
IS

R I
XF

OR
D

MANHATTAN BEACHFR
EE

MA
N

SO
MB

RA

SA
YL

ER

EA
ST

W
OO

D

CO
ND

ON

2700BLVD
2999

MANHATTAN BEACH
41184400SSEBALD AV

ST159THWAV PL GREVILLEA

159TH ST 35
00

AVBURRITT AV

15
90

0

AV ST160THWWHITE

AV 42A
ST

SOMBRA

160TH
4000

SPURGEON AV

AV42A STMC B A IN 161STTHOMAS AV WY

PINCKARD

STVARGAS

AVFA B ER STHAWKINS

16
20

0162NDAV FRWY

AV BLVD

AV STBLAISDELL

W

OS
AG

E

ST163RDCARLSBADDO
W

PERKINS

MAY

GI
BS

ON

FREEMAN

W
ST

FREEMAN

16
30

0

STAVCIR AVGIBSON

AV 164THBELAND

BARKLEYLN

AV

AV

TIMOTHY

AV

4799

BLSTAVAV 165THLNLN PL LN

AV
AV

FALDA
4200

AV

PR
AIR

IE

DELIA

AVAVST166TH
AV

ST

AV

ST166THBLVDPH
EL

AN

AV4000ST

AV

167THAV

AV AV AV OG
RA

M

167THW16
60

0

4399

CHERRYLN

STLNLN LN

CE
RI

SE

CT

168TH

PA
TR

ON
EL

LA

ER
MA

N I
TA

HA
WT

HO
RN

E

168THAV

AV

AVW FR
AN

C I
S

AV40B BEACH
3599

2500

AV16
80

0

FR
EE

MA
N

ST169TH
ST AV169TH

AV

AV4200
PL4000

170TH
2400

ST
STAV AV

IN
GL

EW
OO

D

TH
OR

NB
UR

GH

170TH

FO
N T

HI
LL

AV

OSAGE

170TH

AVEASTWOOD

ST
3800

AV

171ST

AV KO
RN

BL
U M

ST
AV

CE
RI

SE

ST

CR
AN

BR
OO

K

171STAMIE

CO
RD

AR
Y

AV172ND22
00

REDONDO
ST 3955ST

ST
172NDPE

RK
IN

S

FE
LT

ON

AV

FA
YS

MI
TH

172NDAV

PH
EL

AN

AV

M A
CK

AY

173RD
44004799

AVPA
TR

ON
EL

LA

ST ER
MA

NI
T A

GR
EV

ILL
EA

PL 173RD CR
EN

SH
AW

CO
ND

ON

FI R
MO

NA

173RDST173RD

FA
LD

A

40 GL
EN

BU
RN

EL
GA

RAV

DE
LIA

YU
KO

N

AI
N S

W O
RT

H

176TH

4200 BLVD AVST
3000

AV AV AVAV 175THST
2600

175TH 40A CT

2400 AVLNLN LN

AV

VANDERBILT

AVAV AV 17
40

0AV AV 17
30

0

PL 176THRO
SL

IN

175TH17
30

0

FIR
MO

NA

RE
GI

NA

EL
GA

R

DE
LIAAV

ST AV

AV

FA
LD

A

BL
VD

AV

LN

AV

LN
ST176TH

18
00LN

STAV 176TH
177THAIN

SW
OR

TH

AV GL
EN

BU
RN

CO
ND

ON

AV 177THCE
RI

SE

STST177THRU
XT

ON

LN17
00

FA
YS

MI
TH

4000 AV 178TH
AV

DOTY

CR
AN

BR
OO

K

FLORWOOD

24002400

PA
TR

ON
EL

LA

AV AV178TH

16
00

17
70

0PE
RK

IN
S

G RANT

16
00

KO
RN

BL
UM

ST ST
AV

179TH
178TH

AV SANDGATE

AV

2500

AV

2300
ST AV

180TH
179TH

17 9TH

AT
KIN

SO
N

LN
180THSTST DR AVST 180TH

180TH
PL AV180TH AVER

MA
NI

TA

AVFE
LT

ON

AV
ISLN

OS
AG

E

FA
LD

A

STAV 181ST

EL
GA

R

181STSTCO
RD

AR
Y

18
00

0

181STDRHICKMANPH
EL

AN

DR

18
20

0LN
3100

13
00

AV

FO
NT

HI
LL

ST43002600

182ND
182NDAV

PL36003800 183RD

MA
CK

AY

LN 2700 4700 ST183RD AV

39
ST183RDPL182ND

ST

AVHADLEY

18
20

0

AVAVF IRMONA

18
20

0

184TH AVST
LN

AV

LN

AVST183RDLN

AVAV
IS

AM
IE

AV

IVES FE
LT

ON

AV184TH PL

AV AV 18
40

0ST BA
ILE

Y

EL
GA

R184THLN

GL
EN

BU
RN

FA
YS

MI
TH

RE
GI

NA

LN

AS
HL

EY
 A

V

RO
SL

IN

OS
AG

E

BU
RI

N

KI
NG

SD
AL

E

MA
NS

EL

PR
UI

TT
 D

R

IN
GL

EW
OO

D

GR
EV

ILL
EA

LIL
IE

NT
HA

L

Incorporated December 28, 1959

HAWTHORNE

REDONDO BEACH

TORRANCE

LAWNDALE

CO

Do
ming

uez
 Ch

an
nel

Lawndale Sphere of Influence µ
0 0.2 0.40.1

Miles
1 in = 0.2 miles

Legend
City of Lawndale
Lawndale Sphere of
Influence (SOI)

Revised: November 14, 2012 C:\GIS\MXDs\Cities\Lawndale

Established                              11-14-73
Revised                                    09-28-05
Reconfirmed                            11-14-12

Sphere of Influence History
Action                 Effective Date

1
Joint SOI, Area E(1)
Gardena, Hawthorne. and Lawndale
Established 11-28-84

¥op4 50

1

West Alondra Park

Del Aire

El Camino College

South Bay
Galleria

ALONDRA
COUNTY PARK

Gardena and Hawthorne
Removed 09-28-05



WY

PLGR
AM

ER
CY

S

154THWST

AV

154THWST154TH
PL154THW

155TH 1500

N O
RM

A N
DI

E

BLVDAV

ST155TH
CT

42B

DR

W 155TH ST
156TH

AV

17TH N

HA
AS

WI
LT

ON

PA
RR

ON

ST CT W

15
40

0

17
00

SA
IN

T

CI
MA

RR
ON

ST

AV

ST

156TH

AV

W

FE LN

ST
SANTAFA

YM
ON

T

156THBE
AC

H

157THW
157TH AV

E R
MA

NI
TA

MA
NZ

AN
I TA

LE
MO

LI

FA
YS

MI
TH

AV

14TH

DO
TY

156THW

ST

FL
O R

W
OO

D

ST

JOHNSTON

PA
TR

ON
EL

LA

NU
AN

U

RU
TH

EL
EN

ST

PL

ST

AV

15TH

AV

PU
RC

HE

ST YU
KO

N

CE
RI

SE

STFA
LD

A

157THCR
AN

BR
OO

K

W
1799

15
70

0

CO
RD

AR
Y

15TH

AV

GE
RK

INW
EN

DY

MCBAIN

RO
SE

LL
E

W

OA
K

DRST

EL
M

PI
NE

157THW

15
60

0

OG
RA

M

CH
AD

RO
N

15
60

0ST

ST AT
KI

N S
O N

157TH

W
HA

RF
F

SAI NT

14TH

AND REW
S

RO
W

EL
L

ST

ST

AV

CR
E N

SH
AW

1 5
70

0

ME
RI

T P
AR

K

158THW

RE
DO

ND
O

MA
RI

GO
LD

DO
OL

ITT
LE

DR

BLVDAVAV

W
AL

NU
T

AVAV

12
00

PL

BL
VD

RA
YM

ON
D

ST12TH

AV
IS

RI
XF

OR
D

MANHATTAN BEACHFR
EE

MA
N

SO
MB

RA

SA
YL

ER

EA
ST

W
OO

D

CO
ND

ON

BEACH

RE
DO

ND
O

12TH CT

MANHATTAN

15
80

0

WLN

2700

WY

HA
RK

NE
S S

12TH ST

AV

BLVD
2999

1300B L
VD

PL PL

12
00 MANHATTAN BEACHLY
NN

GR
OV

E

AV

ME
AD

OW
S

PLPL

CH
ES

TN
UT

AV

BLVDMA
GN

OL
I A

BEACH

BL
VD

4118
ST AV

4400

11
00

AV

MANHATTAN

S

15
80

0

AV

SEBALD  AV

W

ST

AV REDONDO

CA
S I

M
IR

CR
ES

T

1700

AV

159TH

ST159TH
160TH

W

PL

AV

LA
SA

LL
E

W W

WARFIELD
1100

ST

AV

WY

PL

GREVILLE A

159TH ST

AP
OL

LO

ST

AV

CH
AN

ER
A11TH

35
00

AV

36
00

JU
PI

TE
R

GA
LA

XY
VE

NU
S

ST

W
AV

BURR IT T AV

160TH

15
90

0

W

AV1600

CT

AV ST

1200

ARCT U RU
SBL

PL

LN

160TH

LN

WWHITE

AV AV

ST
42A

STDUFOURN

REDONDO
2200

SOMB RA

160TH

ST ST

4000

10TH
SPUR GEON AV

161STW

ST

BR
IG

H T
ONAV

10TH

162ND

10
00

W
161ST

42A
2200

16
00

0

W

1800

ST

1400

ST

HA
LL

DA
LE

ST

MCB A IN

1000

HA
RV

AR
D

ILL
IN

OI
S

N
161ST

ST

162ND

RDN BATAAN

W

THOMAS AV

AT
KI

NS
ONSTST

AR
DA

THWYST9THST
PINCKARD AV

STVARGAS

AV

162NDW

1500

DA
LT

ONFA B ER STHAWKINS

900

16
20

0162ND

N

AV

AV

AV

ST CT DE
NK

ERFRWY

FARRELLST
AV

80
0

BL

8THPO
IN

SE
TT

IA

BLV
D80

1

AV

ST

AV ST

163RD

AV
IA

TIO
N

BLAISDELL

W

OS
AG

E

1600
ST

BLVDSP
IN

NI
NG

NE
SS

GARDENA

1200

163RD

AV

LN

WAVST

S

AN
DR

EW
S

AV

CARLSBAD

ST

AV

ST

DA
PH

NEDO
W

PERKINS

ERNEST

164TH

MAY

RA
YM

ON
DST

GI
BS

ON

FREE MAN

W

60
0

6TH
ST

1600

FREEMAN

ST

16
30

0

2099

2200
STAV

ST

CIR AV

6TH
1700

GIBSO N

AV

1400
164TH

ST CT165TH

BELA
ND

AV

W

AVHE
RR

IN

N

PERRY

BARK LEY
LN

ST

AV

HO
BA

RT

BL
VD

AV

5TH

16
40

0

TIMOTH Y

JO
HN

SO
N

AV

4799

BL PL

DI
AN

TH
US

TA
YL

ORST

AV AV AV SA
IN

TA V

AV

W 16 5TH PL

AV

W

CAR

D I N ELL

AV

165THLNLN

AR
DA

THPL

1500

AVIATION PL

ST

CA
SI

M I
R

W
ILK

IE

ST

LN

GR
AM

ER
CYST

166TH

CM

AV

N AV

CH
AN

E R
A

W

AVPLANT

FALDA

SE
PU

LV
ED

A

4200

30
0

AV

ST3RD

PR
AI

RI
E

3RD

DELIA

AV

NO
RM

AN
DI

E

AVST

AV
IA TIO

N
166TH

AV

AVAV

ST

AV

ST
STAV

166TH

HA
RK

NE
SS

166TH
BLVDPH

EL
AN

CTJOHNSON

1200N PL

MA
NH

AT
TA

N

BL
VDAV

168THW

ROBINSON

PL W

4000

BL
VDAN

DE
RS

ON

BR
IG

HT
ON

STLA
RS

SO
N

2ND HA
LE

Y
WY20

0

CA
RR

IA
GE

ST2ND

ST

20
0

AV

167TH

1300

22001800 AV

AV

17001ST PL

AV AV

ST169TH

GRAHAM

W

1400

STOG
RA

M

N

167THW

GRAHAMST 10
01000

10
0

STPL

16
60

0

1ST
4399

169THW

N

CHERRY

AV10
0

1ST STST CT

S

1ST

CI
R

LN

AV

AV

10
0

ST
CT

PENNEKAMP

HA
RV

AR
D1500

CT SA
LL

E
T ERRAZA

LN

1800

LN LN

CE
RI

SE

CT

168TH

UP

PA
TR

ON
EL

LA

ER
MA

NI
TA

HA
W

TH
OR

NE

168TH

10
0

AV

AV

10
0

169TH HO
BA

RT

AVW

PL

ROND A DR

F R
AN

CI
S

STAV

MA
YF

LO
WE

R

10
0

GATES

BR
IG

HT
ON

 W
Y

PL

AV

169TH

10
0 ST

W

AVGATES AV

40B

28
00GATES

BEACH
PL

169TH

DUNCAN

3599
2500

16
90

0AV16
80

0

AV AV

FR
E E

MA
N

AV

AV

ST

PL

169TH

BL

PL
ST AV169TH

DUNC AN

RO
W

EL
L

AV

LA

AVCUR TIS AV

W

ST BL

170TH BR
IG

HT
O N

W

CURTIS

S

AV

AV

ST

DUNCAN
AV

4200

CURTISPE
CK

D R

ST
PL4000

PU
RC

H E

170TH

STB RI G HTO N

S

2400
ST

STAV

1000
2099

900 S

VER BURG

VOOR HEES

AV

SE
PU

LV
ED

A
DR

IN
GL

EW
OO

D

TH
OR

NB
UR

GH

170TH

DI
AN

TH
US

CI
R

KR
IS

TI
N

16
90

0FO
N T

HI
LLPL

AV

ST171STBL
VD

BOUNDARY

GR
EE

N

S
PO

IN
SE

TT
IA

AV

BL
OS

SO
M

D R

O SA GE

KO
MO

RI

VOORHEES

TA
YL

OR

VA
N

26
00

170TH

AV

CT

AV

AV

VOORHEESLONGFELLOW700 AV600

EASTWOO D

LON GFELLOW
1200 ME

AD
OW

S

BRAEH OL M

HERM
OS A STAV

DE
NK

ER3800
ST

ST

D A
PH

NE

172N D
171ST

1700

W ST
EV

EN
S

AV

171ST

SP
IN

NI
NG

BRYANTARDMOR E AV KO
RN

BL
UM

ST
AV

CE
RI

SE

ST

PL

CR
AN

BR
OO

K

HW
Y

171ST

AV
IAT

IO
N

AMIE

ST

C O
RD

AR
Y

HE
RR

IN

RUHLANDRE
D O

ND
O

30TH

PLHA
RV

AR
D

17 2ND

AV

W
Y

W
Y

S

RUHLANDPLDR

2300
AV172ND

DA
LT

ON

STHA
LL

D A
LE

KU
HN

AL
TU

RA

173R D

2200 22
00

REDONDO

W

ST 3955

CH
AB

EL
A

PL

ST

P R
OS

PE
CT

KEATS

VIEW

ST

S

ST

LA

172ND

S

PE
RK

IN
S

CA
RL

ITA

FE
LT

ON

AV

PL

VA
ILS

FA
YS

MI
TH

172NDAV

PH
EL

AN

AV

W

MA
CK

AY

ILL
IN

OI
S22

00

17
20

0

W E
ST

ER
N

50
0

NELSON

CO
AS

T

173RD
AVMARLITA PL S

ST

STE
NN

YS
ON

173RD

NELSON

W

4400

AV AM
BY

 P
L

50
0

ST 4799SHELLEY

HA
AS

GOULD TER

W
ILT

ON

17
20

0AV

OES TE

PA
TR

ON
EL

LA

ST E R
MA

NI
TA

GR
EV

ILL
EA

PL 173RD

ARTESIACR
EN

SH
AW

CO
ND

ON

FI
RM

ON
A

GR
AM

ER
C Y

173RD
1600

AV

RI
ND

GE

ST173RD

AV
IA

TI
ON

 W
Y

FA
LD

A

40
BLGL

EN
BU

RN

EL
GA

RAV

EL

DE
LIA

DR

ARTESIACA
SI

MI
R

AT
KI

NS
ON

WI
LK

IE

AR
DA

TH

WYU
KO

N

A I
NS

W
OR

TH

G OULD
STTENNYSON

MATHEWSAV 60
0600 MATHEW SPA

C

2 6 00GOULD AVSMOR N INGSIDE 1 76TH

1800

ST

STAV

175TH

PE
CK

RE
D-

CASSIDYW

ON
DOAVME

A-

AV

DO
W

S

4200 BLVD AVST
3000

AV AV AVAV 175TH

AV

ST
2600

PORTER LN

175TH

17
6T

H
PL

40A CT

2400 AV

A V

AV

HARPER

AV

LN

DA
PH

NE

ST
ST

AV

176TH

LN

AV

17
60

0

176TH
LN

AV

WY ARTESIAST

AV

ST25TH

VANDERBILTVA
IL

AV

BLVD

AV AV

1100

17
40

0

AV AV 17
30

0ST

19
00ARTESIA

PL 176THRO
SL

IN

175TH
DESCANSO

17
30

0

FIR
MO

NA

177TH

RE
GI

NA

25TH ST

W

BORDEN

PROSPECT

2200VANDERBILT LN
PL

RE
ED

ST

EL
GA

R

DE
LIA

ST

WY

AV

VALLEY ST AV

24TH

AV

ST

FA
LD

A

ST

BL
VD

AV

LN

2 4T H

AV

LN
ST

24TH

176TH

WYLIEPL

18
00LN

ST

WY

AV 176TH

PU
RC

HE

HE
RR

IN

LNWYLIE

CARNEGIE17
01

PL

LN

177TH

LNCARNEGIEDI
XO

N

ST

LN

STKR
IS

TI
N

AV

AV

177TH

AI
NS

W
OR

TH

20TH

AV

GL
EN

BU
RN

CO
ND

ON

AV

H I LL CRES T 177TH
W

AX
EN

TY

CE
RI

SE

ST

ST LNSTANFORD

CARNEGIEPL

ST

24TH
ST

177TH

ST

178TH

RU
XT

ON

ST

LN

178TH

LN

W

CARNEGIE

RHODES

LN

AV

LN

ST ST

STEINHART

PO WER
ST

AVA
AV

20TH

17
00

178THFA
YS

MI
THFORD

ROCKEFE LLERLN

ST

4000

AV 178TH

LOMA

AV
ST

D OTY

21STPACIFIC

CR
AN

BR
OO

K

ROCKEFELLER

FLORWOOD AV

24002400
19THSP RING FIELD

AV

PA
TR

ON
EL

LA

AV

AV
IA

TI
ON

1600

MONTERE Y 20TH

WST

AV

LN

AV

ST
W WAV179TH

178TH

16
00

17
70

0PE
RK

IN
S

G RANT

16
00

KO
RN

BL
UM

ST ST
AV

ST

179TH

ARDMORE

WO
LL

AC
OT

T

PL

178TH

179TH 179TH

21ST ST
GRANT

AV

179TH

CA
RV

ER

BL
VD

 1 BER ENDO AV

AV

SANDG ATE

BL
VD

BL
VD

GRANTAV19TH

17
80

0

DR

CIRCLE

STPL MA
NH

AT
TA

NST

ST
ST

PL

AV

 2 BR OADWELL AV

2500

ST

LNORMOND

AV

2300

MANHATTAN

180TH GR
AM

ER
CYST ST

ST AV

2100

ST

CT

PL

20TH
2000

180TH
180TH

GOODMAN W

VALLEY PARK CA
SI

MI
R179TH

1700

DE
NK

ER EV
EL

YN

W
ILT

ON

GOLDEN

CORW IN

17 9TH

AT
KI

NS
ON

LN
180TH

LN

ST ST

2200
ST

DRHERMOSA

HUNTINGTONORMOND

PL PLST 180TH

LNLN

W180TH

HUNTINGTON

ST W 180TH

ST
PL

S

ST

DR

18TH

AVST 180TH
180TH

SILVER

ST

PL AV

BR
IG

HT
ON

 W
Y

180TH

LNRAYMOND

WPL

AV

ST
15 00

AV
ER

Y

LA
SA

LL
E

ER
MA

NI
TA

AVFE
LT

ON

ST181ST

AV
IS14

00

17TH ST

LN

PL

DR

OS
AG

E

AV

AV

AV

1200ST

19TH

FL
AG

LE
R

FA
LD

A

STAV

ST

181ST

EL
GA

R

18TH
HARRIMANMIRA

181ST

LN

AV HARRIMAN

CH
AN

ER
A

STCO
RD

AR
Y

CU
RT

AV

18
00

0

HO
BA

RT181ST

DA
LT

ON

DA
LT

ONDR

HA
AS

HA
RV

AR
DAV

HICKMAN

ST

AV

WAR
DA

TH
 A

V

PALM

ST2000 182ND

ST

2200

PH
EL

AN

182ND

DR

18
20

0LN
3100

15TH PLST

13
00

AV

CAMPANA

LOM A

AV ST CLARK

FO
NT

HI
LLPAL M LNLN

1700 W

13
00

AV

CLARK
ST

15TH

4300

16TH

AVCT AV

2600

182ND 2900
ST 183RD

182ND

AV

ST

183R D

AV

PL 183RD3600
ST

ST

3800
183RDWCT

183RD

MA
CK

AY

LN

ST

ST1400

39

LN

CORONA

2700

ST

LN

18
20

0

15TH AV
LN

4700 ST183RD

JOY
MARSHALLFIELD

AV

LN

39 W

ST

ST183RD

DA
LT

ON

PL

AVIATION

AVST

BONNIE BRAE

BAR D

S

DR

PL

OW
OS SO

BA YVIEW

182ND

STBLVD

184THAVST PL

AVHADLEY
CLARK

ST

OCEAN

OAK

18
20

0

16TH

184THWFA
IR

VI
EW

HA
RK

NE
SS

ST 14TH

AV

PU
RC

HEHARPER AV

184TH

FIR MONA

18
20

0

184TH
ST

AV

AVST

RI
ND

GE

STST
LN

185TH

AV

LN

DR

SL
AU

SO
N

185TH W

AV

AN
DR

EW
SPULLMAN

1 85TH

ST

AV AV LN
183R D

1100

STAV

PULLMAN

LN

13TH

AVAV
IS

AM
IE

AV

MARSHALLFIELD

185TH

IVES

ST

11TH PL

FE
LT

ON

AV 185TH

AV WE
ST

ER
N

2100
PL184TH PL 184TH

AV AV

AVST18
40

0

SAN

11TH STLOMA

EV
EL

YN

ST BA
ILE

Y

EL
GA

RAV

NO
RM

AN
DI

E11TH

184TH

PL ST ST

PA
RK

GR
EE

N

LN

AV

GL
EN

BU
RN

185TH DA
LT

ON

LN

SUNSET

FA
YS

MI
THST

RE
GI

NACT BELMONT 10
00

SP
IN

NI
NG

LN LNBELMONT

AS
HL

EY
 A

V

S

PL BELMONT

AV

AV

HA
AS

MOLINA LN
ST

S

MONTGO MER Y DR14TH PIER

WDE
NK

ER185TH

AU
BR

EY

ST185TH

S

AV
LN

PLSA
IN

T

REYNOLDS LN

HILL
10TH STAV AV

W
ILT

ON

185TH ST

DR

LN
2200

DO
RM

ANST

TA
YL

OR

ST

185TH

CT

185TH

GR
AM

ER
CYFL

AG
LE

R

1800PL

ILL
IN

OI
S

DIEGO

ST

MA
RI

PO
SA

ST

RO
SL

IN

186THOS
AG

E11TH
SPEYER

BU
RI

N

ST
KI

NG
SD

AL
E

2400
ST

ST

11T HCYPRESS

186TH

LN

AV

186TH W
186TH

SPEYER

ST
2600

LN

MA
NS

EL

ER
IE

L

187THW

PR
UI

TT
 D

R

9TH

ST

DE
LIA

ST

IN
GL

EW
OO

D

LN GR
EV

ILL
EA

ST
CARM ELITA

11TH

S

ST

187TH

AV

RALSTON

100 0

BL
VD

S

FIS HER

ST

LN

ST

HAYNES

187TH

11TH

MA
NH

AT
TA

N

ST10TH

ST
187TH

DR

ST

CT

YU
KO

N

LN800

186TH

AV ST

8TH

18
50

0

W 187TH

AV

PL

AV

COAST

NARAMORE

HA
RV

AR
D

PZ

LNLN BL
OS

SO
M

MORGAN
187TH

PIER

ALVORD
LN

PL

80
0

LIL
IE

NT
HA

L

DR

38A

CT

BR
IG

HT
ON

 A
V

18
60

0

38B

HALL

100
MORGAN

PL

PL AV

187TH

BARD ST

9TH
WY ALVORD

ST

S

T

NE
SS

12TH

PL FRWY

7TH RIPLEY
CT

ST
210070

0

AV

CT70
0

FIS
K

ST

LN
ST

FISK

AV

LN
188TH ST

DR LNHAVEMEYER
MAR GARET8THMONTEREY

BAYV IE W

ST

HAVEMEYER LNPL

188TH

C T
LN LN

ST

38A

CT

10TH
7TH HOLLOW

ELL

FISK LN 2700

REYN OL DS

HI
GH

BEACH

AM
Y

LN

PINE ST

7T HDR GRAVLEY

THE STRAND

LN

AV 8TH

AV

1999 BL
VDSTAV

SPRECKELS
LNCARLSON

DO
TY

PL

GLICK
CT PR

OS
PE

C T

ST

BLOSSOMMASSEY

6TH

189TH

HA
RK

NE
SS

AV

600

38B

AV

G E NTRY

SPR ECKELSLN

1300

ST

STVA
NFE

LB
AR

CT
ST ST

190THPL W

CT

18
80

0

801

LN

ST
CT

W
ILT

ONDR

FO
NT

HI
LL

HA
AS

ARMOUR
ST SPRECKELS

WE
ST

ER
N

EAR LE

CT

190TH

LNLN

CR
EN

SH
AW8TH EA

RL
E

FA
LD

A

7TH400

FL
OR

W
OO

D

CE
RI

SE
ER

MA
NI

TA

AV

LN

PA
TR

ON
EL

LA

CR
AN

BR
OO

K

KO
RN

BL
UM

1400

CT

MANHATTAN

6TH

1800

PR
UI

TT

2900

2200

LNARMOURPALM A VHOPKINS

PH
EL

AN

MA
RY

AN
N

2500ME
YE

R
5 0

0ST OC EAN
V IE W

CT

3200

2100AV LNAV

3600

1900

CL
US

TE
R

DR ST

3900

ST

40004400

8TH 5THST

4500ST

ST

19
00

0

LN
191ST

AVH OR NE

ST
VAN

4900

HOLLOW
ELL 19

00
0FIRMON

A

5100
6TH

5400
7TH

INGL EW
OOD

2000
CT

19
00

0

RR

190THST AVBARNEY CT

300 ST4TH7TH
STHW

Y

4TH
LOM AX

GE
RK

ING O
OD

MA
N

MEYER
CT

RIPLEY
ST

19
00

0PL

RO
SE

LL
ECT

AGATELNAVCULPER CO
RD

AR
Y

1ST FLAGLER

6TH 3RDDR

ST

STHA RKN ES S

ST
3RD

ST
ST

LN

BECKW
ORTH

RIPLEY
1ST

ARVADA
ST5TH ST

DR

ST ST2ND4TH

19
00

0

FL AVIAN

ST

N ST

NO
RM

AN
DI

E

5TH CT

TOW ERS

GR
AM

ER
CYVA

LL
EY

ST
BNSF

PROS PECT

CT

AV

STHILL 4700

AV

PL

ST URGES S

AGATE

KNOX

DONORA

ENTRADERO

4TH

ST

PRUITT KNOX

BERYL1STST

W
Y

TOMLEE

TOWERSST

LN CADISON

195TH
ST

3RD ST AMETHYST

HIN SD ALE

CT NCT

W

ANITA

PR
AIR

IE

STST
2ND BLVD

ST

3RD
900 19300

STEELE
PAULINA NARROTRONALD

ST1ST

LN

AV

196TH

AV

NDR

ST
700

BULOVA

19
40

0

DR ST
MARIA TOWERS400100

ST BULOVAAV

ST

1200N
CADISONST

AV

ST AVAV

1ST

FLAV IAN

ST

1ST  ST
LUCIA

CT N

TOUCAN STDARIEN

AV

1ST N

VOYAGER
AV DARIENDR

ST300 FRAN CI SC A

M ILD RED

TOMLEE S

BERYL
N DEELANE

PL

LI NDA ST

AV

ST

STD EELANE

CR
EN

SH
AW

JUANITA
STPACIFIC

LYN DON

DEE L ANE

RE DB EAM

ST

DE ELA N E AV

UP

800 ST
AV

RRAVHALI SON

HERONDO
AGATE

PL PLSTDI AM
OND

ST STHALISON HA
RB

OR
GA

TE

WY
ST

FRAN CISC O

CHALLENGER

600 700

AV

N

AV

500AV DR BISHOP AV AV

N

ST

CLUB

HOPKINS

800

RD

ST

ST
GERTRUDA

N ORTON AV AV

NYACHT

AV W
A YNE

NIRENA
NORTON

FRANCIS CO
WY

AV

WESTERN

ST
PATRICKSTPAUL INA

STWILMASTN

AV DR

AV

PI
ON

EE
R

ST
ST

W
Y 600

N AV HA
W

TH
OR

NE

GR
EV

ILL
EA

GUADALUPE JON

BU
RI

N

MA
NS

EL
 A

V

W

T A
LIS

MA
N

BE
RN

IS
TA

V

IN
G R

UM
W

Y

ST PR
UI

TT

SA
LT

EE
 AV

AV

AV

MA
RI

NE
R

CARMELYNN
MARINA

1100

BE
LL

EM
AR

E

AV

BLVD

AV

ST

5600HELBER
TA

5200
WY 500 DEL AMO80

0 COAST

3400
DEL AMON

AV

RR

4200 KONYAC T 4600

HARBOR

ST

BNSF
ALIX

DEL

FRANC ISCA

AR
LIN

GT
ON

 A
V

AV

1001

AV

DRKONYA
KON YA DR

DR

AV ST

AMO BLVDDELW

DIAMOND

ST

AV AV EA
ST

-A M O

AV

2100

W
OO

D

AM
IEN

MICHELLE RE
GI

NA

20
30

0

BLVDAMODEL

BERYLN
ELENA

DR

1400

AV GARNSE Y

20
30

0

TOM LE E

1600

MIC HELLE

1700

AV

2 03RD ST

PE
RK

IN
S

WBLVD

W
AYNE DRDO

NO
RA

MICHELLEDR

500 MICHELLE

OREGON DEL AMO PL

MA
NS

EL

DRAV

W
Y

MA
SO

N 
CT

600

400

SARA

204TH 204TH

DR

W W

30
0

DRSARA

AV

CT

KENWOOD

AV

NE
SS

VA
N

BL
VD

AVVINCENT400 N

DR

ST

ST

N

ST
CT

AVST

AV

205TH30
0

C

H ERYL
WHITE

MARIALIND A
ST

CT

CATALINA

WHITEST

ST

700

205TH

SARAVINCENT PARK

300

W

AV

205TH ST

DR

AV

AV

ST

ST

AV

100
DR

SPENCER RO
SL

IN

N

ST
AMAP OLA

PROSP ECT

CARNELIAN

JUANITA

HWY

WY
300

SPENCER

AV

NST AV

ST206TH

CTWHITE
SPENCER

MILTON

AV W

DR

PL

EDGEMERE ST

N

GR
AM

ER
CY

AV
MARIPOSA

CT

PACIFIC COLUMBIA
WYMA

DR
ID

HARPERS

IRENA W
Y

BE
EC

HSTREDOND O

BART-800

ST

AV

DE
NK

ER

LUCIA AV

200 LE T T

AV

EL

AV

AV

N

AVLOMA

RE
YN

OL
DS

20
50

0

20
50

0

DR

ST

AV

HA
RV

AR
D

ST207TH
208TH

DR AV
IS20
50

0

W

PORTOFINO

AVST

50
0

AV

BROADWAY

OS
AG

E

40
0

SPENCER

200

ST
VINCENT

GARNET

EL

AV

SS

MA
DI

SO
N

ST
DR

CENTRAL

ANDR U S

RR
ALASKA

N

ST

AVGUADAL UP E
HEL BE RTA

GARNETAVST A VSP E N
CE

R

W

H E
NR

IE
TT

A

1300MA
NH

AT
TA

N

ST

BLVD TOR RANC E

N

ST
BLVD

AV

ST300

208TH

CT

WAM
AP

OL
A

208TH

TOM LEE

STR EDONDOAV

STONYX

EN
TR

AD
ER

O

AV AV

WENDY

STAV

S

EMERALD

ST

100 AV

MA
DR

ID

ST

PA
LM

CALIFORNIA

VA
N

NE
SS

AV

A V 100

STFR
AN

C I
SC

A

W
OO

D

ONYXTO
LU

CA

AV AV

JEFFREY

VI
S T

A

N

A
VDRFRA NC ISCA

DIAMOND

209TH209THW
ST

AV

EMERALD

OS
AG

E

MA
NS

EL

WY
EMERALD EA

ST
W

OO
D

ST

LA
DE

EN
E

700

DOMINGUEZ

100 VA
CC

AR
O

S

AV

ST
CIVIC DOMIN GUEZ

S EMERALD

BORDER

100 DR

ST

SS

AVCT

A V

SARTORI

COLUMBIA PL

DR

CENTER

209TH

FE
LK

ER

ST W
MARICOPA

AV

209THW

AV HI
GG

IN
S

AV

PINE

AV

ST DR

AV ASTERIA

AV

TORRANCE

ST210 TH
W

GARNET

DR
CHRIST IN

E

20
90

0

AN
NR

IT
A

PL AV

AV
IS

AV

BROADW
AY

60
0WENDY

ST

20
80

0

LN

IVY

IVY

2500

GARNET

AVDR

ST

70
0

UP W

ST

JUANITA

LUCIA

AV

ST STMARICOPA

THE

ST

EA
RL700

HA
WA

II

MA RICOPA
MARICOPA

MARICOPA

ST

NO
RM

AN
DI

E

TO
MLEE VAN NESS

MARICOPA

VILLAG E 200

NEW LOR NA

FAYSMITH

CER ISE

LORNA200 400

PATRO NELL A

HA
LL

DA
LE20

80
0SCM ST

ST

DA
LT

ON

S AV

AV

JASMINE
AV

ST

211TH
STLESSERMANAV

S T

CT

W

LOR NA

BR
IG

HT
ON

AV AV

AV

REAL AV AN
ZAHIGH

BL

80
0

CT

TORRAN C E

CT

BLVD
211TH

HE
LB

ER
TA

W

AM
IE

AV

PA
CI

FI
C

ST

AV

900AV

BL
VD

ST

SIERRA

CO
LO

NY

IR
EN

A

AV

VI
CT

OR

ST

DR 21
00

0

VA
LL

E

W
OO

D

AV21
00

0

212TH

DO
NO

RA

AV W

STORRANCE

S

HARBOR AVBLVD
CRAVENSS

LA
DE

EN
E

4200

AVAV AV

BLV D

AV

RE
YN

OL
DS

AV

AV

TORRANCE

AV S

AV

LA
 S

AL
LE

AV

BL 800

DE
NK

ER

SIE
RR

A 
PL

SIERRA VISTA D R

AV

212TH

AV

WST

21200 10
00HAWTHORNE

100

TORRANCE
3400

MAR
IA

AV

3600

AR
LIN

GT
ON

212TH2100

3800

AV

4600

ST

ER
IE

L48005400

CR
AN

BR
OO

K

OPAL

FO
NT

HI
LLCAMINO

ST

21
20

0

S SCOTT

ST

OCEAN WMA
RI

PO
SA

ST

MIR AMAR 400

OPAL

GRANT

21200

213TH

S TPEARL

S W

TALI SMAN

HO
BA

RT

ST
3000

SARTORI

JUDY DR

213TH
213TH

AV

W

ST MARJO RIE

LEEDRST

AV

400 BL
VD

CRAVENS

FAYE AV

S

LAD EENE ST

12
00AV

AV

AV

AV

VI L LAGE

D R

S ST
ST

LEVINSON

21
30

0

KENT

214THENGRACIA

214THWBO
W

500 EVALYN AV

DR

TE
RI

214TH

STEVEANN ST

AVAVAV

GU
AD

AL
U P

E

PEARL PEARL

PO
RT

OL
A

STBL
VD

STBR
IG

HT
ON

VILLAG
E

3400

CT

AVWYFASHION
ST

DA
TE

 A
V

STST AV

EL DORADO
ST MILDRED CR

AN
BR

OO
K

AV
W DESFORD

KO
RN

BL
UM

LNAV

RUBY MARIA

AV

R E AL

AV

CT

LILLIAN STLN HOW
ARD

ST

50
0

215THHA
RV

AR
D

21
31

8

FE
LB

AR

W

AV

200 ST

CO
RD

AR
Y

PACIFIC AV

STDEL AMO CIR N

AV

ONRADO

RITNER

SUSAN A

DOUBLEAVST

ST500 RUBY
CO

TA

MU
LL

INONRADO

S

ST

POST

AM
AP

OL
ASU

NS
ET

W

AB
AL

ON
E

ST

MA
DR

ID

ST

RITA

WO
OD

ST AC
AC

IA550

216TH

DA
TE

AV

W
AV EL

LIN
W

OO
D

MANUEL

216TH
SONOMA

EL P
RADO21500

ST FL
OR

-

CARMEN

14
00

216TH

PROSPECT

S

REYN OLDS
DR

50
0

LENORE DELAM 0 S

VICKY

SAPPHIRE

ST

ST ELLIN W
OO D

STS NO
RM

AN
DI

E

ST

1500

CIR W

100 AV

MARCELINARUBY

ST

AV AVAV

ANZA ST

GR
EE

NW
OO

D

AV

CARSONW
ST

AVAV

ST
ANTONIO AVAV

PL AV CARMEN

AV

DR

AVEL
MAVAVAV

60
0

BE
EC

H

1300

CAMINO

GE
RT

RU
D A

AV

1500
CARSON

STAV

1700
2900

Y S AB E L

AV

W
1900

RE
DB

EA
M

3400STAVCARSONLIN
DA

DR

A V

2300

2170 0

AV

218TH 21
70

0AV ST

HE
L B

ER
TA

W
A TSON

218THW

TOPAZ

17
00

17
00

ST
3800

AV

3200

50
0

CARSONBARBARA

ST

SCA NN
EL

ST17
00

AV

AV700

S STST
JACQU ES BE

RN
IC

E

HA
LL

DA
LEAVST

AV

AV

AV

I R
E N

A

DR
MERR ILL 17

00JACQUES

W

STJU
LIA

ST

GLENN

218TH

SERP EN TINE DEL

7 0
0

IR
ISST

400
ST

FE
RN

DA
TE

S

219TH

MERRILL

AV

TALISMAN

PA
UL

ST

21
70

0DE
W

EY

BA R BAR A

PL

219TH

GRANT W

2170 0

AV

2600

MERRILL

FL
OW

ER

HI
CK

OR
Y

AV

ST

BNSFMONTEREY

JU
NI

PE
R

ST

ST

S ST

AMO ST AV

LAU RETTE

AV18
00

EL
VI

RA

OA
K

ST

18
00

REAL

ALBERT AV

LAURETTE

220TH

S

MAR JOR IE

SERPENTINE

W

ST L ADEE NE

S

ST

ST
800

PLAZA PLAZA

BL
VD

BR
OA

DW
AY

220THWST220TH

70
0

ST CATH ANN

1200

18
00

KNOBS 1000 CATHANN

AV

CI
R

E

CENTEROC EAN

AV

HILL DR

VI
NE

JUAN ITA

ST

W

AV

DR

JE FFERSON

21900

CIR
W

500

AV

MA
PL

E

WYST

ST

BER AN AV

221ST

GR
AM

ER
CY

AVKATHRYN ST

BLVD

BERAN

80
0

EL
MO

221ST
ST

VE
RD

ES

W

RE
YN

OL
DS

KNOB HILL ST EV
AL

YN

AV

AMO

AV

DR

A AV ST
AVE

RR

DELST

900

MA
RT

IN
A

S

COAST AV

PL

WY CA
BR

ILL
O

SEPULVEDA
DR AR

LIN
GT

ON

2200

ATW
OOD

STBRIDGEPORT

BAYPORT

WY DE
NK

ER

BA
YP

OR
T

222ND

ES
PL

AN
AD

E

100 700

CA
TH

AN
N

DRDORSET

222ND

21
00

W

WY

AV 4500

ST

CATHANN

222ND

AVE

MA
DR

ON
A

5300

W

AV

21
00

MA
RI

PO
SAST

222NDKE
NW

OO
D

AAVE B

DORSET D R

LEYTE

DE
LA

MO

WASHINGTONAV

ST

REYNOLDS

WY HA
RV

AR
D

AV

AV

EL
M

DA
TE

AV

AB
AL

ON
EAVE AV

AV

DRAV

DUNWICH AV22
00

600

WOODBURY

BB

22
00

SH
EL

BO
UR

NE

WE
ST

ER
N

22
20

0

DEL

CA
MB

RI
DG

E

W
4100 WOODBURY

DR ST223RDDR W

JU
AN

ITA

AV

2 2200

DR 3800
AVE

BO
RD

ERLOMITA BLVDAV

AN
DR

EOLIN
DA

C1100 CAV AVAV AV

AVE

22
30

0

1300

AVAV

AMO

S S 10
0 0

CT

C

1600

BL
200

224TH

RE
DB

EA
M

S

ST CT

AV

HELB
E RTA

HW
Y

IREN A CT

23
00

DRPA
L O

S

AV

S ST

EV
AL

YN

B IA K

LINCOLN

AV
IS

AVE

CHAR LO
TT

E

M OR ESBY

224TH
3000

C T

W

D MILNE MINDORA

22
30

0225THDR

YN
EZ

AV

CA
TA

LIN
A

OS
AG

E

AVE DR

PA
RK

 D
EL

 A
MO

STW
AR

D 
ST

EA
ST

W
OO

D

GERTRU DA
ST226THD

226TH

S

SANTA FE
MAXFIELD

AV

S

S24
00

S

AV

HI
CK

OR
Y

PLAZA

AVIRENA

AV

AV

DR

AV 1700 W

DR ST
SAN

SU
SA

NA

ST

DRW
AR

MS
ID

E

SAN TA

KE
NT

2800

HA
LL

DA
LE

W

S

MA
DR

ON
A

AV GA
Y-

225TH

SH
AD

YC
RO

FT

MA
DI

SO
NAVE12
00

AV

KA
TH

RY
N

DEL

VI
NEPL
UM

 AVEL LIN
WOOD

DR
A IL

LE

CR
ES

T

5300

225TH

AP
PL

E

AR DO

2 2
50

0

CRU Z

E

AMO

CR
EN

SH
AW

CT
ST

STSANTA CRUZ CT

W W227TH 226TH
PLAZ A

225TH
ST

AV

SANTA

AV

SEPULVEDA ST226TH

D RBLVD

SEPUL-
ST

SGER-

ST
MERIT PL

TRUDA

CRUZ SANTA FE

ST

PLAZA DEL AMO

AV
227THST

LINCOLN

AV

DEL

AV

SUN NYVIEW

VEDA MARINETTE 226TH ST

S

AV

CATALINA

LINC OLN AV

IRE NA MINDORA DR
PALO S

F
227TH

AV
MILNE AV

AM O

ST

PL
AV DR

CT

AV

100 S

AV

WY
AV

REYNOLDS AV

OR
AN

GE

226TH AVAV

ROCKVIEW

AV 227 T H

226 00

SANTA

DR

AV

AV BL
VD225 T H

ESPL ANADE
ST

JASON AV

S

C I
R

ST

LU
PI

NE

27
00

E 1400PACIF I C

PL
DR

G VERDES

RD
ST AV

22
70

0

FE

F

AV

227TH

AV

399

ST

AV

AV 227TH

AV

2300 AV
W PL

UM

AV

PL 22
70

0

ST

DR AV 228TH

AV

CIR

AVS1500

A V CLEARSITE

AV AVAN
DR

EOEA
ST

W
OO

D

228TH
S

AV

HELBERTA

STAV229TH AV

ST
227TH VIN

E

1600

CR
OS

SH
IL

L

MA
RJ

OR
IE

AV 2 27TH

AV AV

27
00HI

CK
OR

Y

AV

GERT RUDA LA
DE

EN
E

TIF
FA

NY

HA
LL

DA
LE

ST

CT ST

CALAMAR ST

EL
LI

NW
OO

D

AV

AV ST
PL FON

THI LL

ST

AV1700H
ST

DE
NK

ER

AV
228TH

GA
YC

RE
ST

DR

228THW

LN

BE
N N

E R

227TH
1300STHA

RV
AR

D

BO
RD

ERSHARYNNE
TIFFAN Y LN

ST
228THST BL

ST

229TH

228TH
4600AV

STAV

H

AV

AV BL
VD

ST AV 22
70

0

EL
M

SU
SA

NA

AV H

UP
RR

200

FE
LB

AR

W 229TH
5300

PL

MA
PL

E

STAV

1500

230TH MA
DR

ON
A

PA
LO

S

AV

AV E

DR

W
ARD

22
90

0

JU
NI

PE
R

ER
IE

L

MO
DE

ST
O

NA
D I

NE

RD

TR
EE

GRAM E RC Y

PE
PP

ERRD

KATHYCY
PR

ES
S

ST

DR
AIL

LE

ST 229TH

AD
OL

PH

AVAV
RD

230TH

CIRCLE

WADE

REESE

AV

STAV
IS

FE
RN

G

A V

ST(AV

1700

OL
IV

E 
ST

LOCKNESS1800

230TH

PA
S DE

KN
OD

E

DE
NN

IS

I

AV STEYE) AU
D R

EY

WY

AV

230TH

AV F
229THPL

2300 MA
RT

HA230TH

RE
YN

OSA
ST

AV
MID DLEBROOK

VE
RD

ES

EV
A L

YN

48 00

22
80

0PL

BLV
D

DA
T E

PL

DR

PL

CM
 D

E 
LA

3900
229TH WAL

BE
RT

A

MEADOW

LOCKNESS

LIN
DACOAST S T

RD KA
TH

RY
N

PARK

2 30TH

D R

RD

LA
S D

EL
ICI

AS

230TH

W
Y

CAROL

2200

231ST
AVD

KE
NT

3600

DEL AV

AVBENNER CT

ST
AV G

NORTE

LNW

FR
AM

PT
ON

VIA

ST

ROBERT

6211

GR
E E

N W
OO

D

PLB E
N N

ER

230TH

BNSF

2500

AV

MAR

ST

ST

231STRD
232ND

DOR IS

ROMANO

AV

10
0

PKWYSTORMAV

WLO
S

CE
RIS

E

AV

1500
231ST

DR

230TH

W

PL

CO
DO

NAVIA CA
RL

OW

AV 23
00

0MA
SS

EN
A

MAYORVALEN-

ST
230TH

231ST
ST

PL

ELE NA

OAKHOR NE

2 312 6
KASHIWA

W

GA
LV

A

CT

19
00

RD 23 4TH
ST235TH

LADEENE

ST

HWY

23
10

0

PL
PLER

I E
L

DEL

233RD

LINDAEL

AV

2400

CIA BINDEWALD

AV BLVD

CT

DA
NAW ST231ST

S

W OODBURY
W 231ST ST

SPASEO

PRADO

W

SEPULVEDA

AV

232ND 3800
RD

D AT E

JUAN

ST

PRY
O R

VIS
TA

FUJITA AV

DE
L

PR
OS

PE
CT

4600

SA
MU

EL

PL

D O RIS
234TH

PA
RQUE

RD

AVIR
ISAV

C IR

VISTA

23
20

0

MAY O
R

AV

KA
SH

IW
A

COL IN
AS

V IA

DRST232ND

100

VANDERHILL

1800

DR

2850 ST

AV

1900

ST

COS TA AV232NDAV2700

MA
DI

SO
N

HA
LL

DA
LE

BUENA

AV

AV AV ST

ZAKON

DA
NACT

ST

ST W

AV

AV

OC
EA

N

233R D

PL

PLAYA

STAN
DR

EO

233RDW

THEO

DE

LAS

233R D

CAMPO

ST

VISTA D EL
233RD

CAMIN O
W

GREENM EADOWS

WY

HU
BE

RMAY
OR

ST

DR

GRACIA AU
DR

EY

STMACAFEE

AD
OL

PH

LOMITA

LA
S DEL

IC IAS

LOU ISE

GR
AN

T

ST
LO

CKNE SS

CALLE

PL

5000

CO
DO

N A

PL

AV

V IA

AV

DEL

RD

ST
234TH

ST

VENTU RA AL
M A

RO
SA

V IA

234TH

ST

W

MARION HE
NR

Y

ST

EA
RL

Y

AV234TH

PARQ U E

EL
M

WW
AV

WA
DE

20
0

CL

MALT
B Y

SUSANA

DA
TE

DR

VIA M ONTE
D

ORO

FA
LE

NAAV

300DE

AV SID
LE

E

VIA CA BRILL O

LA CIRC ULA 234 TH

234TH

PL

PL

AV

5200
PA SEO CALLE

DE

AV

C L
EA

RPOOL

BUENA

ST
ST

GR A CI
A

PL

PRESIDENT

AV

DORSET

235TH

H IGH GR O VE

3400

PL

2200

LO
S

ST

AV 234TH

HIMBER

235TH PE
NN

SY
LV

AN
IA

W23
40

0

D E
234TH ST

SHADY-

STVIA CROFT

LOS

LA
PL

VENTURA

AV AV

MIRAMAR 1900 1600 WOODBU RYPL

ST 237TH
235TH ST

CLEAR-

MIRAD OR ES

SCHILLING

LA

AV 23
30

0

DR

PL235TH2 35TH PL

BRIGHTW
ATE

R

2600

VIALINDA AV

VIA

PL

BL
VD

PO
OL

AV

AV

VISTA
ESTRELLIT A

C IRC U LA

CT HALLD
ALE

VIS
TA

AV

ALTOS

23
50

0

ST23
50

0

236TH

5300PA
SE

O

HA
AS

S T

VIA
 B

ON
IT

A

AV

LO
S

STST 236TH

CE
NT

ER

PL

BATEY

GUILFO RD

CA
RL

OW

AD
OL

PH

AN
ZA

HA
WT

HO
RN

E

PA
SE

O
D E

KENTWOR TH
YLIND ALA

CO
NC

HA

2000

SEG
O

3R D ST

SKYPARK

SIDLEE

RR

G

VIA

E

TE
LO236THVIA

PL

V IA MAYOR

VIA

AV ST AV AV PL

LE
YT

E

BO
NIT

A

AVE A

AV

HYNFO RD

D E

236TH

AVE B

236TH
MAID ST ONE

VIA

2 37TH

PACIFIC

M IRAM ARCA
MI

NO

KIPPEN

DR

TOOMEY

MA IDS TONE
PL

K A
TH

RY
N

AV
E

PAC IFIC
238TH 3400

AV
E

N O
R M

AN
DI

E

DR

OA
KR

ES
T  

LN

RIVIERA

ST

BATEY
WY

ST
MAYOR

PL

VIA

ST CIR

CALLE RIVI E RA100

ST C

EV
AL

YN

237TH W
AL

NU
TC ALLE

F DST

COAST

AV

237TH
OAKHEATH DR

RUTG ER S

OAKH ORNE DR

LN ST

PA
S

2800

SO
LHWYGR EE NMEA DO WS

40
0

CHIC O
VIA

3300

DE
LA

M
ED

IC
AL

LOSCALLE

PL

500LA SELVACONCH
A

23
60

0PACIFIC 237TH

49 00

AV
E

2ND STAV
E

AV
E

P AS
EO

237TH PL

MIRAD OR E S
SUENOS

PASEO DE
E L

LIVE-

COAST

LA
DE

EN
E

H IGHGROVE

OC
EA

N

AVBLVD

VIA

NANCYLE
E

AL
LIE

NE
LU

CI
LL

E

PL

MI R
AM

A R

W
AL

TE
R

WOOD

C
AM

IN
O

NEWTON PLCY
PR

ES
S

238TH

238TH ST

ST
A VDESTRELLAS

AVCT AVST

VISTA DEL
239TH

LN
238TH

VIA
MO

UR

P ASEO

238TH ST
ST

VIA DEL COLLADO

ASH-

DE
LDE LAS ATEZADA

ST

ST 238TH ST
BRI DGE

23
90

0

MA
D I

SO
N

W OA
KH

EA
TH

 P
LHW YSOL VIA

W

CA LLE

EN
CA

NT
O

CA
BR

ILL
O

AV

LA

5600MIRADORE S

239TH
DR

CL DE

AV

LA SOLEDAD

C ALLE DE SIRENA S

ST

MIRAMAR

239TH

VE
RD

ES

VI
NE

ST

CASTE
LLA

NA

W

AV

240TH

BL
VDCALLE D E

ST FRAMPTON

AU
DR

EYVIA

AV

MESA VIAARAGON

SEVILLA

240 THLN 23
80

0

AV CO
DO

NA

LN

CASTELLA NA PASEO
2400

AMBASSA DO
R

AVOL
SO

N

FA
LE

NA

ST

TR
EE240THAR

LIN
GT

ON

4200

GO VER N O R

PAS DL P AVON
W

LNAR
EN

A

L A
DE

EN
E

COLUSA COAST
CL DE

CALLEVIA

LN

AV

GRAND E

VIA
ST

PL

L O S

241ST ST

PA
SE

O 
DE

2000

DE

AV

LO
S

LN AV

100

ST

CALLEVIA V I A
241ST

DE
EL TOR O 500

HILLVIEW

FU
L M

ARSKYPARK

AR AGON

AV

240TH 240TH

CENS OR

241ST ST

SP
RU

CE

DE

GA
RN

IE
R

GRANADA

HA
RR

LE
E

JA
NE

T

242ND

PAS QUAL
VISTA

BE
N H

IL
LRICAR D O

DE

ST242NDW 24000

ST
2500

VIA

EL

OAK HO RN E

APRIL

VIA

24
10

0ST

DR AVAV

C

A LLE D E M AD RID
PASEO DE

PASEO

STAV 242ND
LARGO

3 00 SERENO AV

VIS
 DEL V

EGAS

REYES

HU
BE

RAVV IS T AV IA

PLCT PO
ST

MA
ST

ER

FA
LE

NA

PABLO

242ND

MONTANA

AV

SEB AST IAN

ANI TA

243RD W

CL DE

24
10

0MON
T A

NA

ST
AN

HU
RS

T

PR I MERA

PA
LO

S

LNLN

24
00

0

24
20

0

P A
SE

O

SAN

1500 FABRY

AV D
DE

DEL

242ND

CORONA

VIA VALLE

HA
VE

N

W

VIAANDALUCIA
CALLE DE

DRCALLISON

JOSE

CL
DE

ST FALEN A

FE
LIP

E

WAL-

CA
MI

NO

MALAGA

CA
RL

EN
E

AV

HWY
243 RDW

LO
S

LO
MI

TA

243R D STST

VIA

243RD 243RD
ST

DE NUT

PL

242ND

24
20

0

STPARK
DAWN

AV

CO
LU

SA

DR

3650

VI
A

ARBOLES VIS
TA

CIA

243RD

S T ST
DE

LADO

CALLECA
LLE DE

AN

DALU-

S T

AL
AM

EDA

LU
CI

LL
E

PA RK

NEWTON LOM ITA

LAS

244TH
AU STIN-

WST

500 0

244TH
244TH

STVE
GA

S

AV

PL

AV

HE
ND

RI
CK

S

AV

ARBOLES

PL245 TH

AL
LIE

NEDEPA
S

D E

300VIA

ST

AV AV

CALLE

BR OOK CT

1 00

W

AV

VIALA SELV A PL

24
30

0

ST

LN

W

NAVAJOSELVALA
WILMING TON

AD
OL

PH

M ES A DR
ST

VIA
AIRPORT 245TH

SELVALA

ST245THTURRELLESHELM AN

VIA

1

ROSA
TORTUGAS

VIA

STMORETON ST246TH

LA
S

ADONA

ANIT A PL

PR
ES

ID
EN

T

A LAM EDA

V IA

AV ST WWY
ST

2200
TERHUNT

BLUFF

2400

LN

SOLANO W
ES

TE
RN

AR
DI

LL
A

CARDELIN A ST

AV WALLBROOK

ROSITA

VIA

DR DR

STVIA10
0PALOS

ST

VIA

246THAV

VI
A VERDES

2

NE
EC

E

NORDMAN

ANITA

W

PL VIA

ABRAHAM

ST

VI
A

PA
SQ

UA
L

JO
SE

TERST246TH SHADOWBROOK

DO
RM

ON
T

OC
EA

N

AV

CA
PA

Y

VIA

CRICKLEWOOD

24
20

0

ST

HA
RT

W
EL

L

TER

3400 PL246TH
VIA 244TH

CA
DI

Z

ST

CO
DO

NA

GAVILAN
DR N

VIA

AMSLER
MADISON LOMITA

ST

VIA

OT
TO

TER

AV AV ST 3247TH

PALOS VERDES DR N

W

300 3300 ST

PL

CAPAY

FA
LE

NA

2900

ST PE
NN

SY
LV

AN
IA

SE
NA

TO
R

PARKSIDE

ST M
OO

NPASEO

ST DRCT DR

1500PADRON

ST
4

VIA VIA

6 75
247TH

VIA3500
247TH

ARROYO

PL LOBBY

VIA

3800

ST

MAR

VERDEROL

VIA

V IA

247TH
LARGAVISTA W

VIA

CORTA

VERDES

ADARME

CIR

PU
EN

TE

PALOMINO

W
AR

D400AROMITAS

PALOSVIA

VIA DEL

AV 24
70

0

W
OO

DW
AR

D

ST

AL
CA

NC
E

AV ST

WY

AB
IT

A

248THW

STVIA
W

248TH

PA
RK

LO
S

W

B L
VDNA

VA
JO

VIA DR N

VI
AALMAR

24
40

0

ZAMPERI N I

PICAPOSTE

CO
L O

RI
N

TEJON
RAINTRE E

DE
L

CHICO

337

2200248TH ST

MA
DI

SO
N

PINALE
ARROYO

AV

ESHELM ANST

VIA
249TH

ST1900 249TH

DR

BLVD W

VIA VIA

1

NEWTON

CIR

WI
NL

OC
KMEDIA

LN

WYPR
IM

M

VI
ABO

DE
GA

TEJO N

VIA
VIA

AVVALMONTE
VALMONTE

24
80

0

WY
NIV EL

500

3600
STCR

EN
SH

AW

CT W
ES

TE
RN

BELLANCA

250TH

PL

AVW

W

AV

ST

LN

AZALEA

MILAN LEOLA

HIGH

VI
ACAMPO

AROMITAS

3200

25
50

0

3000
VIA

DR W392

3800 SENEFELD
2100

VALMONTE

LNMALAG A
PINALE

WY

2400

CIR

CT

RAMON

WY

VIAMONTE

CURTISS

DR

ELEAN ORLAURA LEE LN

VIA

CYPRESS
ST

PIT
CA

IRN

ST

VIA PZ

BLVD

VIA
VALMONTE BLAIR

BA
NI

LOMITAW

VIA

WYGL
EN

CO
E

WY

VIA

DANAHA
251STWAVCIR DR PLCO

MA
L

SEGUNDA

25
00

0

DO
RI

A

2300
PAVION PARO LN25

00
0

ESHELM ANAV

2400

ST

VIA

VA
LM

ON
TE

251ST
VIA

VERDES

WINLOCK DR

DR

1

1200

STLUCERA
WY ALC OR

4000

RD

252ND ST

COURTNEY

CAM P ESINA
251STLN WROBIN

CIR420 0

DEL

ST

VIA
ARRIBA

DALEMEAD

OPAT A

AV

 1 MALAGA COVE PZ
V IA

ST

ELEVA D O

AV

RD

W
AIRPORT

STCT
MCKENNA

W
Y

ST

WY

PALOS

P INZON

V IA

252ND

PEDR O

STAV

 1 VIA H ORQUILLA

NE
KO

GORRION

252NDAV

ROBINSON

WINLOCK

 1 ELEVADO LN

ELEDA ST

1600
WYPIMA

PLPL

VIA

PA

BLO

DEL
VIA

253RD
C AND LE WOOD

VIA

ST AV AV

DR

253RD EBONY

WST
PAVIONVIA

WST253RD

ALOND RA

WST

SOL RD

2400

CONEJO

VIA

B

RANDY

VIA 1

W

711

FERNC R EE K 170 0

AV

VIA
WHIFFLETREE

WINE AV

3000
2800

1300

VIA
CAMPESINA

LN

MONTEMAR

BIG
EL

OW

3800
SOL

DO
RI

A

LN

FE
IJO

A

253RD

RD

CI
RPL253RDCY

PR
ES

S

WAV

ST

DR

DANAHA

W
ES

TO
N

S

VIA HORQUILLA CAMPESINA

AV

VIA

TA
N DE

M

W

WY

ST

LO
YT

A N

254THWAN
DR

EO

WY

S O MONTE

ROLLING
254TH

VIA

PE
NN

SY
LV

AN
IA

D E
N N

Y

BE
CK

NE
L

RD

RINC ON

CT

RD NO
EL

LE

PLBA
NI

D EL

S U G ARHILL

ST
HA

MP
SH

IR
E

DRPONDEROSA

25300

ST

FIRE

SUNNY
LN

254TH

YELLOW

M
ON

TE
RE

Y

W

STS INGING WOOD
ST

STAGECOACH

LA

ST254TH
DR

LN

R INCON

AV

900
RD

WINDMILL

DEL
VIA

3020

VIA

255TH

BRICK
835

LEAF

NOGALES

CAROLWOOD

LN

W25
40

0

AU
BR

EY

3504

W 255TH ST
DALEMEAD

28 00 ST

MEA DOWS
RO LLING LN

3292

2700

HI
LL

S

MONTE

AV

DR

VIA
LA

CUESTA

SO FTWIND
MAD ISO

N

ST
HIL LS AD

AM
O

CH
AL

ME
TT

E

DR

255TH

PA
NORAMA

RD

1300

ROLLING RIDGE
NORMALLIN 256TH

LNHORSE

LN RD

DRLAZY

BARKSTONE

P L

MI
RA

DA

V IA

DR

RANGE

10
00

PL
EA

SA
NT

W
OO

DW
AR

D

MIR
AB

EL

WY

WST256 TH

GA
T O

S

MEADOW WKE
LL

EY

LNRD PACIFIC

GRAYLOG STDR

RD

ST

RD
CLARELLEN

VE
RO

NI
CA

PA
SEO

HIL
LRD

G UADALANA

ST256TH

LN

CT
1600 257TH

EVANS

W ILDBRIA R LA
TIG

O

MA
SO

NG
AT

E

SUNNY

AV

VA L L E Y

O AKWOOD

AVRO
L L

IN
G

ST

SE
NA

TO
R

256TH
RUSTLER

STRATFORD DR
MISTY

V I
A

ES
HE

LM
ANACALON E S

31 00
RD 25600DRBARK-

WA
LN

UTLA
ZY

257TH

BAYRIDG E

W

LA

DR

ST

1800
GRANVIA

IRONWOOD HAWTHORNE

257TH

CR
EE

K

DR

WAL
LIE

NELN
STONE

LN

ST
FALLENLEA F

MORN ING DR

CAPESWOOD
LN GLEN

DR 5300

OA
K

ST

RD FORRESTERST DRBR IAN

MONTEMALAGA

ROLL ING WOOD D R

22 0 0

MONTE-

PR
ES

ID
EN

T

26200

MARINA

AV

25
70

0DR

HIDDEN

RD
COL INA LNST

BA
NI

BREA
ELM BANK

ALTAMIRA

RDCIR JANUARY

HIL LSIDE PO
RT

E

W

PZ DR
MARLOMA

HWY

VIA

SPUR
LN

ALAM ITOS

AI
RP

OR
T

V I
A

NOVATO

COAST BLA
ND

RE
ED

PL25
6 0

0

VI
A

BRIARWOO D
AVD BONITA

SILVER

ASH FORK

LEA F

MALAGA WILDHORSE

R D

ELMD A L E

PL D IVERSEYPL

1400

V IA
RDIRONWOOD

1600

LN DR SANDSTONE

DR

VIA

258TH PL1800 W

1116

2100

V ISALIA

25700

VIA

2400

WOODFERN DR
DR

CALLE
AMBER

VIA

AV

VIA
ROLLANDO

ST

KINGSPIN E

ST

DRBALBOA RD

SADDLEBOW

AV

VIA DR

ESTHERNEARCLIFF DR

1900

AV AV

ST

FER NANDEZ

259THW ST

LN

W 259TH

AV

RE
ED

AV

FAIR CROSS
ST

RIVERROCK

DRGL
EN

WOO
D

BA
SSW

OOD

DE L

SONOMA 4400 RD ST25
80

0

ST

ST

LN
DRMATFIELD

VIS
AL

IA

VIEW
DR

RD

CREST WY

VIA SPU R

ST

RD
EL

RDH IGHCL IFF

LN

VIA

DR

VIA

LNW
AL

NU
TMONTEM ALAGA

GABRIEL FOX R IDGE PEBBLE DR

CRESTA SONOM A
259TH

BIR
CHFIE

LD

5000

PL
MA R AV

MAR GARITA
PLAVPL

VIA

259TH

DRROLLANDO

AV FLINT DR

25900

CHAPMAN ST AV
OC

AD
O

ST

PORTAL

DR

IRONW OOD
VISTA

ST
SANDBR OOKDR EAGLE

SILVERLEAF

RD

STONEHAVEN

1900 ADAMITE

RD

TE R

SIL
VE

R

DR

ST260THW W

HI
LL

W
OR

TH

BROKENBOW

DR PA
LM

CA
NY

ON
DR

260TH
ST

PORT OBELLO VI
AN

AMOCCASIN

RD W

5600
2000

CT

RD

WITTICK

AV

LNDR
GRAN DE

DREYETIGER

LIG HTFO OT

GARNER

RD

VI
EW

260TH ST

VUELTA

VI A P L

DR

ANAHEIM

DR

NA
RB

ON
NE

SLATE

WOOD
STEED

DU
NW

OOD

LN DR

PALOS 261ST ST

ESTATE S

CAT ALUNA

NO
R M

AN
DI

E

S K
Y L

IN
EBIRCHMONT

261ST

L U
CI

LL
EGR

AY
SL

AK
E

ST
DR

261ST

1350

W
SKYLAR K

DRBLUEMOUND

DR
VISTA MA

RK
ET

DANMAR

VIA GROVEOAK PL

DR

CT CT CY
PR

ES
SPLFERNAND EZ

ST
PENNSYLVANIA

OA
K26000

APPIAN

DRRI
CH

VI
LL

E

ST

R
D

HIGHC LIFF

LNLOM ITA

ROCKBLUFFPA SEO

SIL VE R

LO
W

ER DR

5300WHITEFOXVISALIA
AV

DR

CA Y UG
A

262ND

1400

AV

CALMH ILL

W 262N D STSTVISLOMA AV

WILLOW

H IDDEN

SP RING RIDGELAND

LN
SOBRANTE

DR2027

GRAND

TANGLEWOO
D

VIA
MA NITOW AC VERDES

DR

C O RONEL

MU
RA

D

DR

DR

RD

PL 1640

SADD L E

BE
LL

EHIGHCROSS

ST

SILVER
ROANWOOD

FOXPOINT

SA
DD

LECORONEL

GUYSON ST AV

MA
ZU

R

GOLDRING DR

HYTE

LN

AL
TA

M I
RA

EL K MO NT

1900
DR

LN

DR

AV

LOFTYVIEW

FR
A M

P T
ON

AV

PALOS AV AVAV

LIT T LEBOW SUMMIT

VIA

RD

VI
ST

ALN

VIA R AFAEL

BLVDPL
MOSSBA N K LN

VIE
W

AV

RD

W

LA PL

SHADOW VIS
TA

263RD ST

LN

WAV

PAS EO
LA

RD

26
2 0

0

263RD

ARCO

S T

PL

1300

RD

OB
ER

RANCHVIEWRDDR ROCKHURST

RD W
HIT EHO RN

RD

MENOMINEE

263RD

BLVDARCO

5100

PZ SHOREVIEW DEEPBROOK ST

DR
SHADOW

VIA GRANVIA

264TH

DRCATALUNA

CR E STA

140
0

DRR DMARGARITA

DR

RDCA T ALUNA PL
SQ

GO
LD

EN

2
PENNSYLVANIA

26
90

0

5900

RDSA
DDLER D26700

1500

CIR

IRO
N

 1 CM D CARO

BASSWOOD PR
ES

ID
E N

T

HORNCHADW

ICK

1538

OC
EA

NWOOD

1200

AL
TAEMPTY

LN

CLINT PL

ST

VIA

SP
AR

26
40

0OVIDOAKB
A Y

RD

AV
W 264TH ST

DR
E

RD

26
20

0

L N

AV

DR

RO
CK

V AL
LEY

VIA

RE
GE

NTRD

FA
IR

VI
EW

AT
HE

NARD

ARC O

DR

CM

M

ATE
O

OZ
O N

E

MO
NT

E

CM

LA

CR
EE

K

S E
NA

TO
R

CM
D

SI
LV

ER

SH
AD

Y
VI

ST
A

DR

ZE
PH

Y R

PL

LN MO NTA IGNE GO
V E

RN
OR

DR BR
ID

LE
WO

OD

WAUKESHA

LAR GO

BELLA

GLEN TREE DR

SANT A

HI
LL

CR
ES

T

ES
HE

LM
AN

SAD D LE
CM

C R ESTA

RASO
VIS TA

VI
A

CM

NO K OMIS

DE
LO

SLA
C

ST

QUINLIN

DRDE

1
MADONNAVIA

RD

PLVIA

VISTA

VIA

2
C E R RITOS

CM D VERDE

AV

AV

LNCREEK
265THROLL I N G

O RO

CENTURIA DR

PE
AK

LN

PI
NE

-
KN

OL
L

VEGA

MAY O
VIA

3300

VIA

3900

LANT AN A

VIA
SINGLETREE

HAW K HURST

B RA
NDING

21 01

ENC AN TO

ROESSLER C M

1 6
00

SH
OR

E W
OO

D

ST VERDE

DR
WY

RD SEAHURST
MOSSBANK

CHISPAS

CMLEESDALE

F INECREST

SOLANO

DR

LNAC AD
EM

Y

DU

26306

266TH

26
50

0DR

DR N
P ASCAL

MONERO

HO
NE

Y

DESMOND E

AV

AV

6700

LN
DR

BEECH FIELD D R

R AW
HIDE

1600

RD
RD

DORADO
DORADO

FREEPORT

H AZELR
IDGE

SP
RI

NG

ACANA
RD

SAN
NIC OLAS

HI
LL

S

VERDES
VIE W

PLROUSSEAU

R D

LN

RIO

VERDES
VIA

WOODBROOK

BLACKHOR SE

CELESTE

BRAID W
O OD

DR

LARIAT
PALOSTAMPA

RDRO
CK

DRSANTONA

US S

PL

LN

PL

LOFTYGROVE

LOMO

LINDA
FALCON

MA
RQ

UE
TT

EDR
CARTESIAN VERDES

N ST

W
H I

T E
S T

ON
E

RD

PRAIR I E USS

CT

27
10

0

VI L LA R O SA

VISTA REAL

VIA

LA
RIAT

VI A2LN

GR
AY

S L
A K

E

LN LN

OG DE N

26
60

0E L LA LN

RD

ANTIETAMVER A

LN

DR DR

CT

ROCK

AL
VA

RE
Z

FO
ND

DO
BB

IN

DR

DR
DR 42

270

00

CL
UB

STST

DR FLAMB EAU

S

MAYCROFT DR

NO VA WESTERN

EM
PT

Y 
SA

DD
LE

C T

PL
D R

MA
RE

WAUPACA

HAW T HORN E RD

US
S

4100

NEW

27700

DR

JE
RS E Y

BLVD

1800
JE R S E Y

2 PL

RD

DR

W
ES

TV
A L

E

CIR

W
OO

DBROOK

USS USS

MES ABA

LN

IN
DI

AN

VIA

BROOKFORD
DIAM O NDHEAD

DRM ES
AB

A

HAWTHORNE

DR 2 6 70 0

U S
SPE

AC
OC

K

HIGH R ID GE

CT R A VEN-
PINTO

USS

S HO
RE

WOOD

VISTA

LN AU
RO

RA

SIL
VE

RB
IT

DR

DRBA
Y

LN

HAWTHORNERIDGE-

6913

269
00

DU

N C A N

RIDGEPATH

C
TDR

RD

C E RRITO

SILV
ER

NE
W

RID GEPOI NT

IN
D I

AN

BLVD EAU
BLVD SPUR

RO
LL

IN
G

R IDG E -

DR

RD

DR

RIDGE-

S U
NN

YF
IE

LD

281
00

MOON

PALOMINO
LN

LN

RID G
E CO VE

LN

RIDGE-

RD

PL

LA GARITA

LO
B R

OO
K

BIR CHMANDR

ACADEMY

EA
S T

VA
LE

FE RN WARRIOR 268
003600

GL ADE

DRLNLN

S
T

DR

26
80

0

HILLT OP

DR
CLAIRE

RIDGEB ROOK
CT

27 1 56

DR CT

PONY

LN

BLUF F

W TR
AV

IS

PE
MB

INA

26
90

0RI
DG

ET
HORN

CT CT RAVENSPUR

RD CTRIDGEMAR
ARROW

CERTA

FOREST

CIR
CL

E

2 8300

RIDGEBYRNEEDDINGHILL BOLAN

AM
B

ER
GA

TE

CT

2000

HAWT HORNE

LU
NA

DA

VE
RD

ELN
NDR

ELMBRIDGE

CT

LON E

CT OCONTO
CT

RD

DR CT

R DDR
RIDGE-

273 00

PA
LO

SC IRTRAILRIDERS

CTCT

26
9 0

0

MO
NT

EC
ILLO

SILVE R

MI
DD

L E
RI

DG
E

BROWNDEER

DA
PP

LEGR AY

PE
ACOCK

RID
G

E -

CR
EN

SH
AW

W
ILL

IA
MS

BU
RG

H
AL

ES
CO

RN
ER

CO

Incorporated May 12, 1921

LOS ANGELES

GARDENAMANHATTAN BEACH LAWNDALE

REDONDO BEACH

HERMOSA BEACH

LOMITA
PALOS VERDES ESTATES

RANCHO PALOS VERDES
ROLLING HILLS ESTATES

CO

TORRANCE

Dominguez Channel

Torrance Sphere of Influence µ
0 0.4 0.80.2

Miles
1 in = 0.6 miles

Legend
City of Torrance
Torrance Sphere of Influence (SOI),
Coterminous

Revised: November 19, 2014 C:\GIS\MXDs\Cities\Torrance

¥op4 50

Established                              04-25-84
Reconfirmed                            09-28-05
Reconfirmed                            10-10-12

Sphere of Influence History
Action                 Effective Date

ÄÅ1

PACIFIC
OCEAN

West Alondra
Park

N Shoestring

Harbor City

Westfield

South
Bay

Galleria

Del Amo
Fashion
Center

Redondo
County
Beach

Torrance
County
Beach

Zamperini Field
at Torrance Airport

South Coast
Botanic Garden Rolling Hills

Country Club

COLUMBIA
REGIONAL

PARK

El Camino
College



1200 1000AV
WI

L K
IE

ST ATHENS
121STW

WAINSWO RTH

1200

S TMENLO

ST122NDBLAV

WST122NDWAV

BLVD12
00

0

1000

PLST123RD

ST

WAVST123RDW

AVAVAV

124TH STWST124THW

AV

AR
BO

RRR

ST

BROADWAY

125THW ST
ST125TH

AV
W

ST

BROADWAY

12
40

0

125TH
W ST

VA
N

NE
SS

BLVD
UP

AV

DR

ST HO
OV

ER

AV 126THWW
ES

TE
RN

ST
PL

AV

126TH

AV 126THW

AVAVAV

ST

126TH LN

LACONIA
W S

ST126TH

DE
NK

ER

12
7T

HST
ST

ST
AUGUSTA

HA
RV

AR
D

127TH

CYPRE SS

W

EA
GL

ES

ST
W

127THWPINE KNO LL LACONIA

S

AV
HURST

SAI N TDRVALLEY

4100 AV

13
LN

SEGUNDO

PIN

E

ELBE
RE

ND
O

SAINT WRA
YM

ON
D

SSBL
VD

LN SBLVDDA
PH

NE

W I
LK

IE

GL
E N

WYANDREWS LN1 2
53

2

SEGUNDOYU
KO

N

EL
700

CR
AN

BR
O O

K

FO
NT

HI
LL

W
10001200

BLVD
1800

129THWAV

3000 AV

3499

ST

AV 129TH

AVOA
KM

ON
T

AV

AV AV WY

12
80

0

ST

ST

12
90

0

AV 13

W
EB

ER

WST ST

PL 130THW
130TH

129TH PL AVCE
RI

SE

130TH

1500
ST

AV

AV

PLPLSIM
MS

 AV

PL

12
99

9

ST130THCH
AD

RO
N

ST

AV ST131STW

AVAV

13
00

0

131ST ST AV AV

B U
DL

ON
G

ST132NDW

DA
PH

NE
 A

V

ST132NDHA
AS

WDA
LE

SI
DE

 A
V

CI
MA

RR
ON

ST

HO
O V

E R

ST

ST

132NDW
132NDST

AV

132ND

ST133RD

4000

ME
NL

O

W

ST

AV

132NDW3700
PL132ND132ND PL

ST133RDW

AV AVAVAV

AV

AVST133RDWFL
OR

WO
OD

HA
LL

DA
L E

133RD ST
ST

AVST

134TH

4000

W

133RD

ST134THW

CA
TA

LIN
A

ST

AV

134TH

ST

W

134TH ST134THW

RU
TH

E L
EN

134TH
ST

BE
RE

ND
O

KA
NS

AS
HA

MP
SH

IR
E

ES
TR

EL
LA

700

AVST GR
AM

ER
CY

MA
NH

AT
TA

N

S PL134THW

AV

AN
DR

EW
S

134TH WI
LT

ON

PLPL W134TH AR
DA

TH
W

S 135THNE
W

PL134TH

W
ST

ER
IEL

STCE
RI

SE

135THWRO
SE

LL
E

10001200

ST
1400

135TH4000

STAV 136TH
1800

WAV

PL

AV

135TH

ST

3300

AV TETON

ST

ST137TH

AV

WAV

AV

13
50

0

RA
YM

ON
D

ST136THST AV
ST

13
50

0

ST137THWW 137TH

13
50

0

SA
IN

T

PL137THAV W

13
70

0

AV

W 137TH ST

AL
MA

ME
NL

O

ST
ST138THVA

N

W ST138THWY

GA
LL

I

W 138TH ST

BU
RE

N

AVWI
LK

IE

CI
MA

RR
ON

W

LISSO

W

PL

TOPAZPLSP
IN

NI
NG

139 T H

PU
RC

HE

MA
RI

PO
SA

LN

CA
SIM

IR

GR
AM

ER
CY

ST

ST

ST

CR
EN

S H
AW

139THHA
RV

AR
D

AR
CT

UR
US

WST
W 139TH ST

LN139THWST
CT

CO
R D

AR
Y

139THW

MO
ON

ST
ON

E
LN

ST
140

TH1200 ST

PR
AI

RI
E

1700

AG
ATE

139TH

CA
TA

LIN
A

WCARNELIAN TR
AN

S IT
W

Y

139TH PL

ST

AV

140THWAV

GA
RN

ET3100
W ST

ST

140TH PL

3600
WYOPALPL

STSLAYTON

AMBERAV

140TH ST
140TH

4000

13
90

0WY
PL

ST141ST14
09

9

W

13
90

0

AV EM
ER

AL
D

WI
LT

ON

W

AV 13
90

0

DA
PH

NE

AV

141ST ST
12PLW 141ST ST

14
20

0

ST
141STW

WST141STWCT

ST142ND

ST141STW

BE
RE

ND
O

ST

MA
RI

PO
SA

 A
V

BU
RE

N
CT

700

VA
N 

NE
SS

AVPLW

LE
MO

LI

141STDR AIN
SW

OR
TH

B L
VD

ST

RA
YM

ON
D

CH
AD

RO
N

DO
TY

PL

VA
N

141ST W
ES

TE
RN

DE
AN

N A

WBR
IG

HT
ON

KIN
GS

LE
Y

HO
BA

RT

AVAR
DA

TH

FO
NT

H I
LL

KO
R N

BL
UM

YU
KO

N

14
19

9

ROSECRANSW
W1000ST144THW

14
20

0 1300

14
29

9

AV
1500

AVST

1799
144THAV2200PLW 143RD

ST
3499ST144TH

STAV

39993999

PL144THW 14
30

0144TH
W

AV

ST145THST

AV

145TH

AV

AIN
SW

OR
TH

WAV

W
ILK

IE

PL144TH

AV

AV

ST
12

145TH
FONTHILL

14
30

0

ME
NL

O

LN

W

BODGER
W ST

GARDEN

146TH145TH PL 145THW STW

AVLNST AV145TH
ST145THW

ST

LN

146THW
W 147TH

LNPARK

CO
TT

AG
E

CORD A RY

AR
BO

R

W 145TH
ST14

40
0

146TH

146TH
ST146TH

ST
ST

S

146THW HA
AS

 AV

OR
C H

A R
D

W

ST
ST

1500PL
W

146TH
148TH HOOVER

1900

LE
MO

LI

146TH

CE
RI

SE

DOTY

WAV14
50

0

ST NO
RM

AN
DI

E

ST

14
60

014
69

9

AV147TH
ST

DA
PH

NE 147TH 14
80

0

DOTY
ST

ST147TH

W
147TH

AV

W

147TH

ES
TR

EL
LA

WAV 148TH PLAV

147TH

ST148TH

148TH

3300

CA
TA

LIN
A

700 ST

PL

AVAVAV

VE
RM

ON
T

AL AV AV

AV

AV

PL

W

AV

STDR

PL

PL

147TH

148TH
ST 149TH 148TH STW W

148TH

BU
DL

ON
G

W

RUTHBAR

DRST
ST

ST DR

14
70

1

S

DE
NK

ER

BL
VD

ST

AV AV

AV

STW 149TH

149THW
149TH

149TH

AVW

148TH

AV

SA
LL

E

S

BL
VD

AVBU
RE

N

ST S

ST

AV

149TH

WRO
XT

ON

ST150THW150TH LA

ME
NL

O
OR

CH
AR

D

15
10

0MI
LL

ER

11PL
NA

DE
R

ST150THW
AD

KI
NS

W
AD

SH
AW

AV

152NDWHA
L L

DA
LE

K I
NG

SL
EY

VA
N

MA
RI

PO
SA

AL

AVMARINEW
WELTON 15

09
9

DU
BL

IN

AV AV AV

AVSU
TR

O
MA

RI
GO

LD

CR
AN

BR
OO

K

CH
AD

RO
N

KO
R N

BL
UM

MARINEW
10001200

15
10

0

1500190022003299
ST

AV

AV ST 152NDW152ND
3999

W

OR
CH

AR
D

ST152NDW152NDW ST

15
10

0

15
10

0

AV

ST

AV AV

AV AV

REDONDO

AV AVAV 153RDAV W

AV

AV

B E
RE

ND
O

PL152NDW

RA
Y M

ON
D

PL

AV15
10

0

AVAVAV PO
LL

Y AV

ST15
20

0AV

700

AN
DR

EW
S

15
20

0

1000ST AV STW
ST153RD

154TH

W

HA
RV

A R
D

153RD

W

W
154THW

AV

CI
MA

RR
ON

 W
Y

ST

DA
PH

NE

AV

15
30

0S P
IN

NI
NG

WI
LK

IE
 AV

AVWY AV

ER
IEL

ST154TH
PL

AR
DA

TH

W CA
SI

MI
R

CH
AN

ER
A

ST

GR
AM

E R
CY

S

AR
CT

UR
US

154TH

FO
NT

HI
LL

KO
RN

BL
UM

WST

AV

154TH
155THAV

W

CA
TA

LIN
A

W
ST154THW

ST

PL154THW
156TH 156THW

155TH
W1500

NO
RM

AN
DI

E
BLVDAV

AVST
ST155TH

PL AV

CT
ST AVTANAMACHIW AVDR

W 155TH ST
156TH

AV

BU
DL

ON
G

156TH LN OR
CH

AR
D

HA
A S

WI
LT

ON

W

PA
RR

ON

ST CT W

15
40

0

PL

SA
IN

T

CI
MA

RR
ON

AV

AV 156THW
MAGNOLIA157THW 157TH AV

ER
MA

NI
TA

LE
MO

LI

F A
YS

MI
TH

800

AVDO
TY

156THW

ST

FL
OR

WO
OD

ST

PA
TR

ON
EL

LA

NU
AN

U

RU
TH

EL
EN

PL AVPU
RC

HE

ST

W

YU
KO

N

158TH

CE
RI

SE

STFA
LD

A

157TH
ST

CR
AN

BR
OO

K

W
1799

15
70

0

158TH

CO
RD

AR
Y

WAV

GE
RK

IN
RO

SE
LL

E

W

DR 15
70

0ST157THWOG
RA

M

CH
AD

RO
N

ST AT
KIN

SO
N

AV
157TH

BO
NS

AL
LO

SAIN T
ANDREW

S

ST

CR
EN

SH
AW

1 5
7 0

0

ME
RI

T P
AR

K

158TH
159TH

W
W

MA
RI

GO
LD

BLVDAV

HA
MP

SH
IR

E

PL

AVST ST159THRA
YM

ON
D

R I
XF

OR
D

MANHATTAN BEACH
BEACH

MANHATTAN 15
80

0

W
WLN WY

AV

2999 PL PL

AV

AV PLPL

NE
W

ME
NL

O

BL
VD

STST AVAV 15
80

0

AV

160THW

AV

ES
TR

EL
L A

HO
OV

ERREDONDO

CA
SI

M I
R

CR
ES

T

AV

ST159TH
W160THPL LA

SA
LL

E

W WSTWY
BE

RE
ND

O

AP
OL

LO

AV

CH
AN

ER
A

STJU
PI

TE
R

GA
LA

XY
VE

NU
S

161STW 600
AV

160TH

15
90

0

W
800 S

CT

1000
ARCT U RU

S

PL

1200STREDONDO
2200

ST

4000
161STW

BR
IG

HT
ON

162NDW

AV

161ST

16
00

0

W ST

HA
LL

DA
LE

STHA
RV

AR
D

ILL
IN

OI
S

BO
NS

AL
LO

162ND
ST

WAT
KIN

SO
N

AR
DA

T H

163RDAV WAV

164THW
162NDW

DA
LT

ON

AIN
SW

OR
TH

AV

16
20

0

BU
DL

ON
G

ST

AVST CT DE
NK

ER

PL

164TH

HU
AT

AB
AM

PO

AV

BL W

AV163RDW

OR
CH

AR
D

BLVDSP
IN

NI
NG

NE
SS

GARDENA S

AV

WAVST

S

AN
DR

EW
S

AV ST
W

DA
PH

NE

164TH

RA
YM

ON
D

W

800
16002200

ST1200 PL
ST CT165TH

AVW
165THW RR

16
50

0

HO
BA

RT

BL
VD

16
40

0BL PL TA
YL

OR

ST166TH

AV AV AV SA
IN

T

AV

W 165TH PL WAVAR
DA

TH

CA
SIM

IR

W
I LK

IE

ST
ST

GR
AM

ER
CY

167TH
166THAV

W

CH
AN

ER
A

WFALDA
AV

PR
AI

RI
E

ES
TR

EL
LA

DELIA

AV

NO
RM

AN
DI

E

HO
OV

ERAV

AV

168THAV AVAVAV

ST
STAV

166TH

AV

166TH
BLVD

AV

CTJOHNSON MA
NH

AT
TA

N

BL
VDAV

168THWPL W

4000

700BR
IG

HT
ON

AV

168TH1300

AV AV AV

AVST169THW
STOG

RA
M

PL

167THW
ST

STPL

16
60

0

169TH

169THW
W

CHERRY

AVS 16
80

0

CI
R

ST

AV

169THW

HA
RV

AR
D

PLCT SA
LL

E

1800

CE
RI

SE

CT

UP

PA
TR

ON
EL

LA

ER
MA

N I
TA

168THAV

169TH HO
BA

RT

AVW FR
AN

C I
S

STAV

STMA
YF

LO
WE

R

169THW W

BR
IG

HT
ON

 W
Y

PL RA
YM

ON
D

BU
DL

ON
G

169TH HA
MP

SH
IR

E

W

S

BEACH

169TH
170THPL

3599

BE
RE

ND
O

16
90

0AV16
80

0

AV AV

ST

AV

17
00

0

PL AV STAV

PL 170TH
ST

MA
RI

PO
SAAV169TH

1200

LA W170TH BR
IG

HT
O N

W

AV

171ST
ST

W
ST

PL

OR
CH

AR
D4000

PU
RC

H E

170TH

STBR IGHTON

ST

STAV

LN

VERBURG

AVTH
OR

NB
UR

GH

PA
RK

NE
W

CI
R

KR
IST

IN

16
90

0FO
NT

HI
LL

ST171ST
ST

BL
VD

17
00

0

172NDWKO
MO

RI

TA
YL

OR

VA
N

17
10

0170TH
CT

AV

CA
TA

LIN
A

ME
RI

T

AI
NS

W
OR

TH

DE
NK

ER

10

3800
ST

ST

DA
PH

NE

172ND
171ST

W ST
EV

EN
S

ST

AV SP
IN

NI
NG

AV KO
R N

BL
UM

STCE
RI

SE

RA
YM

ON
D

CR
AN

BR
OO

K

171STCO
RD

AR
Y

SO
UT

H

PLHA
RV

AR
D

172ND
173RDW

Y

S

2300

ST

AV

VE
RM

ON
T

DA
LT

ON

STHA
L L

DA
LE

W173RD

AV

W

3955
ST

ME
RI

T

FA
YS

MI
TH

172ND

WILL
IN

OI
S

17
20

0

S W

W
ES

T E
RN

HO OVERST173RDW HA
AS

173RD PL

WI
LT

ON

17
20

0AVPA
TR

ON
EL

LA

ST

BLVD

ER
M A

NI
T A

173RD

ARTESIACR
EN

SH
AW

GR
AM

ER
CY

FA
LD

A

40
BLGL

EN
BU

RN

EL
GA

R
DE

LIA

ARTESIACA
S IM

IR

AT
KIN

SO
N

W
ILK

IE

AR
DA

TH

WYU
KO

N

AIN
SW

OR
TH

AVAV AV

176TH

AVA V

ST175TH

CASSIDYW

AVBLVD AVST AV AV AVAV

ST

175TH

AV

ST

17
6T

H
PL

40A CT

A V AVDA
PH

NE

ST
ST176TH

AV

17
60

0

176TH

AV

AVAVAV AV 17
40

0

17
30

0

PL 176TH

BE
RE

ND
O

CA
TA

LIN
A

DESCANSO
177TH STBU

DL
ON

G

W BR
OA

DW
EL

L

VA
LM

EY
ER

EL
GA

R

DE
LIA

WY
ST AV FA

LD
A

BL
VD

AVAVST176TH

AV

PU
RC

HE

PL

177TH ST STKR
IS

T IN

AV177THAI
NS

W
OR

TH

AV GL
EN

BU
RN

AV 177TH
W

CE
RI

SE

STST LN

178THST CITRINE CT CTRUBY178THW

AV

ST ST
AMETHYST CIR

178THFA
YS

MI
TH

ST

4000 AV 178THDOTY ST

CR
AN

BR
OO

K

ST

FLORWOOD AV

PA
TR

ON
EL

LA

AVWST

AV

ST
W WAV179TH

178TH 17
70

0

KO
RN

BL
UM

ST 179TH

PL 179TH 179TH

AV

179THBL
VD

 1 BERENDO AV ST

SANDGATE

BL
VD

SA
PP

HI
RE

RUMBOLD

17
80

0

ST AVPL MA
NH

AT
TA

N

ST
ST

PL

AV

 2 BROADWELL AVST
180TH GR

AM
ER

CY

AV

ST PL180TH
180TH

WCA
SIM

IR

DE
NK

ER EV
EL

YN

WI
LT

ON

CORWIN

1 7 9TH

S T

AT
KIN

SO
N

FELDER

180TH

HO
OV

ER2200
ST

PL PLST
800180THW180TH

ST W 180TH
PL

S

DR AV

2

ST 180TH
1ST BU

DL
ON

G

PL

S

AV

182NDBR
IG

HT
ON

 W
Y

180TH

WPL

AV

AV
ER

Y

LA
SA

LL
E

ER
MA

NI
TA

ST181ST

AV
IS

PL

AV

AV

AV

1200STFA
LD

A
EL

GA
R

ST
181ST CH

AN
ER

A

STCO
RD

AR
Y

CU
RT

18
00

0

HO
BA

RT181ST

DA
LT

ON

DA
LT

ON

ELECTRIC

DR

HA
AS

HA
RV

AR
D

W

HICKMAN

STWAR
DA

TH
 A

V

ST2000 182ND2200182ND

18
20

018
20

0

W
Y3100FO

NT
HI

LL

1700 W AVAVCT AV

9

182ND 2900
ST 183RDAV 183RD

PL 183RD3600
ST

3800
183RDWCT183RD

ST
39 ST 18

20
0

LN

AV

39 W
ST183RD

DA
LT

ON

PL AVST S184THAVST PL ST

18
20

0

184THWFA
IR

VI
EW

ST

PU
RC

HE

184THW184TH
ST

AVST
185TH

AV

185TH WAN
DR

EW
S

1 85TH

AVSTAVAVAV
IS

AV

185TH STST

AV185THAV W185TH

AV W
ES

TE
RN

PL184TH PL 184TH

AV AV AVST18
40

0

SAN EV
EL

YNEL
GA

R

NO
RM

AN
DI

E

PL ST ST

GL
EN

BU
RN

185TH DA
LT

ONFA
YS

MI
TH

AV

SP
IN

NI
NG

ST186THS

HA
AS

MOLINA LN RA
YM

ON
DST

S WDE
NK

ER185TH

SPLSA
IN

T

WI
LT

ON

185TH ST

DO
RM

AN

TA
YL

OR

185TH

GR
AM

ER
CY

ILL
IN

OI
S

DIEGO MA
RI

PO
SA

ST186TH
STST

ST TR
AN

S IT

186TH

AV

186TH W 187THW
186TH ST ER

IEL

187THW ST

DE
LIA

S187TH BL
VD

S

STST 187TH

MA
NH

AT
TA

N

AV PL
187TH CA

TA
LIN

A

HA
MP

SH
IR

E
NE

W

YU
KO

N

187THW

AV ST18
50

0

W 187TH

AV

PL

AV

HA
RV

AR
D

187TH
PL

38A 1300BR
IG

HT
ON

 A
V

18
60

0

AV38B
PL187TH S

T

NE
SS

PL FRWY

TO
N

AV

190THAV

188TH ST
ST188TH

HA
MI

L-

38A
37B S

AVDO
TY

PLST189THAV

38B

AV

W1300STVA
NFE

LB
AR

190THPL W

18
80

0

STWI
LT

ON

FO
NT

HI
LL

HA
AS190THCR
EN

SH
AW

FA
LD

A

FL
OR

WO
OD

CE
RI

SE
ER

MA
NI

TA

AV

1000

PA
TR

ON
EL

LA

CR
AN

BR
OO

K
KO

RN
BL

UM

12001400
37A19

00
0

180022003200
GATEWAY

360039004000

DR19
00

0

19
00

0

19
00

0

RR

GE
RK

IN
RO

SE
LL

E

CO
RD

AR
Y

NO
RM

AN
DI

E

GR
AM

ER
CY

VE
RM

ON
TWY

P R
AI

RI
E

CO

CO

Incorporated September 11, 1930

LOS ANGELES

HAWTHORNE

TORRANCE

GARDENA

Dominguez Channel

Do
mi

ng
ue

z C
ha

nn
el

South
Vermont

Westmont /
West Athens

N Shoestring

West
Alondra

Park

West
Carson

Harbor
City

Dominguez Channel

Gardena Sphere of Influence µ
0 0.25 0.50.125

Miles
1 in = 0.3 miles

Legend
Gardena Sphere of Influence
(SOI), Coterminous
City of Gardena

Revised: March 12, 2014 C:\GIS\MXDs\Cities\Gardena

Established                               11-14-73
Reconfirmed                             09-28-05
Reconfirmed                             03-12-14

Sphere of Influence History
Action                 Effective Date

1
Area E(1), Joint SOI
Hawthorne, Lawndale, and Gardena
Established 11-28-84

¥op1 01

¥op4 50

ÄÅ19

1

El Camino
College

Hawthorne Municipal Airport

Joint SOI  Gardena and Hawthorne
Removed 09-28-05



BU
DL

ON
G

ST107THW107THW SA
IN

T

WI
LT

ON

S

WMA
NH

AT
T A

N

S ST
ST ST S

CH
AM

PIO
NS

)

107THW W107TH

SS

GR
EV

ILL
EA

S S STS

BU
RL

FIR
MO

NA

108TH

DA
LE

RO
SE

SRA
VE

NS
W

OO
D

W

FR
W

Y

3800

10
70

0BLVD

10
70

02200
WW 109TH STBL

ST
LENNOXFE

LT
ON

S

108TH10
70

0

STST
W

AV 109TH109TH W GR
AM

ER
CY

W 10
80

04000

10
80

0

4200

1000

4400

1200

4600 TH
E

3300
4900

3600

S

W 109TH PLS

109TH

AV

S

AV

W

AV AV

ST 109THW

AV

AV10
80

0

AVW 109TH

AV

109THW 10
80

0

AV PONTY ST PLST
109THWPL

ST

S

OF

WILTON

PE
NN

EY

AV NE
SS

W
STSTAV

SA
N

S

STAV

PL STCH
AN

ER
A

110THW

CI
EN

EG
A

H O
BA

RT

110THCA
SI

MI
R

WCULLIVAN

DE
NK

ER

110THST W BU
RI

NAV
I AT

IO
N

SAC
AC

IA

WI
LK

IE

STVAN WICK
1600 PL ST111THW

SFE
LT

ON

S

ST

ST 110THW
STYU

KO
N

VAN WICK11
00

0TR
UR

O

S

11
00

0

W 111TH
200011

00
0

AR
DA

THS

11
00

0AV

OS
AG

E

MA
NS

EL

EA
ST

W
OO

D

WE
ST

ER
N

STTHOREAU PL

S (A
VELA
RC

H

ST

AV

S

CR
EN

SH
AW

HA
WT

HO
RN

E

IN
GL

EW
OO

D

AVBLST 111TH AV

111THW

THOREAU

W
PLS

AT
KIN

SO
N

11
10

0

PL
W

ST 111TH
111TH

111THW W

AV

W

VE
RM

ON
T

ST111TH MA
NH

AT
TA

N

SST

CE
DA

R111TH

112TH

W

LE
MO

LI

WBL

SBU
FO

RD

W

AN
DR

EWSPL111TH

DO
TYW

RD

AV

AV

ST112THPL W

111TH
ST

PL

RU
TH

EL
EN

AV11
10

0

ST
112TH

ST AV

11
10

0

S

W
112THW

AV S ANDERSON

BU
RE

N

ST NO
RM

AN
DI

E

LOHENGRINSW

11
10

0

AV

ST
ROBERT

ST
3800

112TH

113TH

W

HA
RV

AR
D

W RA
YM

ON
D

SA
IN

T

P L

RE
DF

ER
N

SP
IN

NI
NG

S W 112TH

S
LA

 S
AL

LE

S
MA

RI
PO

SA
AV

ST
3

HUDSPETHST

S

PRESCOTT

2B

11
20

0

113TH

1C

1400

W

SOUTHWEST

S N
EW

 H
AM

PS
HI

RE
 A

V

11
20

0

W

HO
BA

RT3 113TH

S VA
N

WY
GLENN

BE
RE

ND
O

SVA
N

S3300

BU
RI

NGLENN

CI
MA

RR
ON

3600
WHA

AS

AR
DA

TH

AV

ST

AV

AV

HWY

LA

AVS S AV

HI
ND

RY

1D

1200

HWY

ANDERSON
W IMPERIALS

1600

S

S1800

FIR
MO

NA

45
1B

AV

AV

CO
ND

ONFWY
3000

2A

PL

11
10

0

AV

W

IMPERIAL
ST

3500

W
3800

115THWAV

PL

AV

11
40

0ST
115TH

115TH
4600

ST

11
40

0115THW

11
40

0

2100
115TH W

7A

ST
AV

5801

115TH WW AV(CENTURY
5627

AV S

HWY
W

1600

PL115THW GLENNAV

ST

AV

E

W 116TH ST PL

ST

IMPERIAL CT
R

LINE

LAUREL

ST115TH
WY

AV

AV

AVAV

11
50

0AV AVFRWY) AV

ST AV116TH
45B

WST 11
50

0

116THW S

116THAV WAV

AV

2STST

116TH

AVST

(CENTURY

AV

W

BL
VD116TH

DE
HNW AV AV45A

KIL
RO

Y

7AANDERSON4100
W 117TH ST

AN
DR

EW
S

ST

ST116THGREEN
W WY

AV ST116TH
W

AVKO
RN

BL
UM

W
W

90
0

ST
AV ST

CLYDE

AV

STST 117TH117TH
ST

AV

116THW

AV

W
W

ST117THWY

W ST

117TH

WY

WY

AV

117TH

WALKER

AV

117THW

RU
TH

EL
EN

W 117TH PL

METRO

SE
LB

Y

S

ST117THWHU
GH

ES

11
60

0W ST117TH BL
VD

STME
NL

O

118TH
ST

ST

AV

ST BIR
CH

GA
LE

AV

11
70

0

W

AVCE
DA

R

SIM
MS

ATWOOD

GEDDES

W

SU
ND

AL
E

SA
IN

TCH
ER

RY

117THWAV118TH

AV
PACIFIC

SID
E

STAV

118TH

HO
R N

ET

W W 118TH ST 11
61

6BU
FO

RD

TRANSIT118THAV

AT
KI

NS
ONW

NE
W

AV

CH
AN

ER
A

CA
SIM

IRST CONCOURSE

118THW

ST
W 118TH PLPL

ST
4300

118TH

W

S

118TH

YU
KO

N

TA
RR

ON

AR
DA

TH

ST

S ST WMA
NH

AT
TA

N 
PL

11
70

0CH
RI

ST
OP

HE
R

ST

WI
LK

IE

WI
LT

ON

CI
MA

RR
ON

AC
AC

IA

S L
EM

OL
I A

V

119TH ST

S W

S

BL
VD

SP
IN

NI
NG

BU
RE

NPR
AIR

IE

NA
SH

118TH
RAYMOND

W

AV

SBE
R E

ND
O

MAPLE

AV

E

S

AV

PL

AV

BU
DL

O N
G

118TH

80
0

DRAV

PL
PL

W118THW
118THW

RR5

SE
PU

LV
E D

A

PL

HA
MP

SH
IR

E118TH

AV

FR
EE

MA
N

WPL

POINDEXTER

118THW

ST
80

0
119TH

2000

VA
N

STST RAYMOND

W119THOX
FO

RDCT

CT

DO
UG

LA
S

FRWY &ST
DR 119TH

W

W

BRUIN
ST

HA
WT

HO
RN

E

WFRWY)

ST119THW

ST

UP
119TH ALMERTENS

W
STJU

DA
H

N

AV

TR
UR

O

AV
IAT

IO
N

119THWW ST119TH

PL11
80

0

119THAV S

RA
MO

NA

AV

EU
CA

LY
PT

US

YO
RK

DO
TYTA

HO
E

119THW

HA
LL

DA
LE

DR WSTLO GA N-

TR
OJ

ANPL

GR
EV

ILL
EA

ISI
S

MA
NO

R

120TH

IN
DI

AN
A

W

NN 540050
0

DA
LE

-

LA
IR

PO
RT

AV

IN
GL

EW
OO

D

5

S

AV

N

TA
RR

ON

PL

HA
AS

FE
LT

ON

119THW
PL PL

CI
MA

RR
ON

119TH

1400

W

65
0

PL

12001700SID E 120TH STW

119TH

ST

W

PU
RC

HE

DA
PH

NE

120TH

PL119THW
AV

1000AV
W

I LK
IE

W 120TH ST

ST121STW

ST120THAV 5200

1200

5000
AV

46004800
MARIPOSAECT STNO

IS

AV

ST

LA
IR

-
PO

RT

122NDBLAV

W

AVWY

ST

ST

5600 120THW

DRAV

122NDW

120TH ST

AV

ST121ST
2100

ST121STW

12
00

0

BL

1900

1000
50

0

12
00

0

12
00

0ST

123RD

ST

AV

WAV

122ND
122ND

W ST

ST

JU
DA

H

AV AVAV

123RD

AV

W

AV

BL
VD

BL
VD

STRD

AV123RD

AV

4200

12
29

9

12
10

0

HI
ND

RY

AV 123RD
ST

12
20

0

W

AV

123RD ST

AV

ST

124THW

AV AV

ST124TH

AV

W

MA
NO

R

AVPL

AV12
20

0123RD

HA
WT

HO
RN

E

W

RR

AV12
40

0123RD PL BU
RL

PL

AV
IA

TIO
N

BL
VD

12
30

0ST

12
39

9

AV12
40

0

ST

BROADWAY

125THW

ST GA
LE124TH

ST

W
BROADWAY

ST

125TH
AV

TA
HO

E

W

124TH SU
ND

AL
E

BROADWAY
BROADWAY

124THW

12
40

0

BL

44

DU
LE

Y

BL
VD

5400

W

ST 4799W 124TH PL

VA
N

NE
SS

UP
RR

AV

DR

STAV 126TH

WY

W

ST
AV

WE
ST

ER
N

ST

AV AV 126THCH
AL

LE
NG

ER

W

AV

30
0

AVAV

IN
DI

AN
A

SE
PU

LV
ED

A

MICHU

GRAND

126TH

E

LN

125THW UP

W

12
60

0

LNFE
L T

ON

ST

2100

126TH
ST

DE
NK

ERYO
RK

BIR
CHGL
AS

GO
W

DO
UG

LA
S

DR

ST
ST

ST

126TH
AUGUSTA

HA
RV

AR
D

127TH

CYPRE SS

W

EA
GL

ESST

ST

126THW
126TH

127THW

ST

PINE KNOLL

S

AV

COSTA

HURST

NA
SH

SAIN TDRVALLEY
4100

AV

STACY

LN

W 127TH ST DR

PIN

E

ELBE
RE

ND
O

SAINT WRA
YM

O N
D

SSBL
VD

LN S

XEROXAV

BLVD

N

DA
PH

NE5100

WI
LK

IE

GL
E N

LA
CI

EN
EG

A

WYANDREWS LN12
53

2127THW

RA
MO

NA

SEGUNDOYU
KO

N

ELC R
AN

BR
OO

K

ISI
S

FO
NT

HI
LLN

W
1000

DR

OX
FO

RD

CE
DA

RCENTRE

1200

ME
NL

O

EU
CA

LY
PT

US

TR
UR

O

FR
EE

MA
N

MA
NO

R

S

BLVD12
80

0

GR
EV

ILL
EA

1800

AVBA
RTPL

W

SEGUNDOEL

AV

3000 AV

3499

2400

N W10
0BLVDCO

NT
IN

EN
TA

L

10
0SEGUNDOEL

AV
IA

TIO
N

NE

ST
4399 AV 129TH

AV

10
0

OA
KM

ON
T

AV

4800

AV AV WY

12
80

0ST ST

12
90

0129TH
2300

ST

WE
BE

R

129TH

W

129THW

ST ST

PL

2100

130TH

1700

W
130TH

129TH PL AVCE
RI

SE

12
80

010
010

0

130TH

1500
ST

AV

13
00

0

AV

PL

ST

PLSIM
MS

 A
V

ST130TH

PL

12
99

9

130THW

ST130THCH
AD

RO
N

ST

AV

130TH

131STW

AV4400 AVST 44

13
00

0

ST

131ST

AV AV

ST AV

ST13
10

0

AV

131STW ST AV

AV

131ST

BU
DL

O N
G

ST132NDW

DA
PH

NE
 AV

ST

S

132NDHA
AS

WDA
LE

SI
DE

 A
V

CI
MA

RR
ON

ST
ST

W
132ND

132ND

CLYDEPARK

ST132ND
132NDMETRO GREEN LINE

ST

ST

30
0

133RD

132ND
4000AL

W

W
ST

AV

AVPL

132ND
STSTISIS

W
132ND

3700WISEBURN

HANSWOR TH

PL132ND132ND PL

BL
VD

133RDW

AV AVAV

ST AV133RD

AV AV

AV

AV STBL
VD

AVST
133RDW

133RDWFL
OR

W
OO

D

ST

HA
LL

DA
LE

133RD ST

BL
VD

133RD

ST

AVST

134TH

4000

W

133RD

AV

ST134THW

ST GRID ER

5100

CA
TA

LIN
AAV

AV

AV

134TH

4600
ST

W

134TH

AV

ST
ST

13
40

0

134THW

13
40

0

134THDE
LA

FIE
LD

RU
TH

EL
ENSTHI
ND

RY
 AV

W

134TH
ST

BE
RE

ND
O

KA
NS

AS134TH

HA
MP

SH
IR

E

RR RR 133RD

ST

AV

134TH

ST GR
AM

ER
CY

MA
NH

AT
TA

N

S

134TH

PL134THW

AV

AN
DR

EW
S

134TH W
ILT

ON

CO
RA

LC
IR

DO
UG

LA
S

PL
4400

PL W134TH AR
DA

TH

W

13
40

0

PL

NE
W

134TH
PL

W
134TH

W

PL
ST

ER
IE

L134TH

ST
ST135TH 135TH

CE
RI

SE

135TH
5200

WRO
SE

LL
E

JU
DA

H

10001200

ST
1400

135TH4000
ST

1800

135THW

AV

5200

PL

135TH ST

AV

135TH

AV JU
DA

H 
AV

UTAH

3300

AV

ST4800 136TH

TETON

13
60

0

ST136TH

AV

AV

AV

13
50

0

2300

RA
YM

ON
DSTST

ST136TH

136TH 136THW

ST AV

ST

50
0

4100

13
50

0

13
50

0

ST

S

137THW

HA
WT

HO
RN

E

W 137TH

5100

13
50

0

SA
IN

T

S

HE
AT

HE
R

STWY AV

AV

137TH13
50

0

13
70

0WY

AV

W 137TH ST

AVALLIE D
W

Y

60
0

ST
ST

AL
MA

137TH137TH

ST

W
137TH

HI
ND

RY

ALA SKA 4600

SE
PU

LV
ED

A

ST138THVA
N

W

CHAPMAN WY

HUG HES
STAV

WY

GA
LL

I

13
70

0

4400
W 138TH ST

BU
RE

N

AV

WYPL

WI
LK

IEPL
UP

137TH

CI
MA

RR
ON

LISSO
137THSH

OU
P

13
70

0

C I
EN

EG
A

GA
TE

PL

PL600 137TH

TOPAZ

W2300

PLSP
IN

NI
NG

PU
RC

HE

13
70

0

MA
RI

PO
SA

LN

H AW
A II ST

CA
SIM

IR

GR
AM

E R
CY

ST138TH ST

ST

CR
EN

S H
AW

139THHA
RV

AR
D

AR
CT

UR
US

WST
W 139TH ST

GR
ID

ER
 A

V

LN139THW

AV

ST

5200

CT

CO
RD

AR
Y

139THW

MO
ON

ST
ON

EST138TH

LN

ST
140

TH

AVST AV

1200

138THST W

PR
AIR

IE

1700

138TH

AG
ATE

139TH

CA
TA

LIN
A

WCARNELIAN

RO
SS

BU
RN

139TH PL

AV

PL

AV

138TH

GA
RN

ET3100
4900

W ST

ST

140TH PL

AV

3600

WYOPAL

DR 139TH

13
80

0

BNSF

S

AVLA ST

PL

STSLAYTON

AMBERAV

139THGL
AS

GO
W

W

140TH ST
140TH

4000
ST

13
90

0

139THPLPARK

WY
PL

AV

GA
LE

14
09

9

TR
UR

O

13
90

0

AV EM
ER

AL
D

WI
LT

ON

W

MA
NO

R

HA
WT

HO
RN

E

AV 13
90

0

GR
EV

ILL
EA

DA
PH

NE

AV

141ST ST

5100

PL

BNSF

2100 EU
CA

LY
PT

US

WA
SH

IN
GT

ON

W 141ST ST

JE
FF

ER
SO

N

14
20

0

ST140TH
ST14

10
0

W

141STW

ST
141ST

140THSTE

S S

AV
IA

TIO
N

ST

ST

141STWCT

140TH

ST141STW

BE
RE

ND
O

ST

MA
RI

PO
SA

 A
V

ST

BU
RE

N

4400

CT

141STST14
10

0

141STST W141ST2000

VA
N 

NE
SS

RR

PLW

LE
MO

LI

141STDR

RA
MO

NA

HINDRY

BL
VD

OC
EA

N

S

ST

RA
YM

ON
D

CH
AD

RO
N

DO
TY

PL
142ND

VA
N

141ST

43B

WE
ST

ER
N

DE
AN

NA

S

WBR
IG

H T
ON

14
20

0

KIN
GS

LE
YPL

H O
BA

RTST

WY 142ND STJU
DA

H

AVAR
DA

TH142NDST142ND

FO
NT

H I
LL

KO
RN

BL
UM

YU
KO

N

WAV

14
19

9HA
WT

HO
RN

E

ROSECRANSW
1000ST144THW

14
20

0 1300

14
29

9

AV
1500

142ND
ROSECRANS

1799

NA
SH

ST

AV

AV
2200

2000 4800

PLW 143RD
ST

ROSECRANSCO
NT

IN
EN

TA
L

3499

W
ST144TH

AP
OL

LO
ST

AV

AV

S

39993999

PL144THW

DO
UG

LA
S

S

4036

14
30

0144TH

ROSECRANS
43991700

90
0

AV

MA
RK

ET
PL

2100

ST

AV

1100

145TH

AV

AV WAV

AV AVAV

W
IL K

IEAV5400

PL144TH

AV

ST145TH
FONTHILL

14
30

0AV

LNBODGER
GARDEN

14
30

0

145TH

AV WY

PL 145THW STW

A V

AV

DR

LN

PA
RK

VIEW BNSF
ST AV145TH

ST

14
30

0

145THW
ST14

30
0

145TH43
PARK

43A

ST

COURT

LN

146THW
W

HI
ND

RY

LN

AV IS
IS

PARK

CO
TT

AG
E

CORDARY

VI
L L

AG
E

AR
BO

R

W 145TH
ST14

40
0

146TH

146TH

WY

ST146TH

OA
K

ST
145THW

ST
CIDR

146THW HA
AS

 A
V

W

AVIATION

ST
ST

1500PL
W

146TH 1900

LE
MO

LI

146TH

CE
RI

SEST LNORODE DOTY

WAV

33
00

AV 14
50

0

ST NO
RM

AN
DI

E

ST 14
69

9

AV147TH
ST

METRO

DA
PH

NE

330
0

147TH 14
80

0DOTY
ST

ST147TH

W
147TH

AV

W

147TH

FAIRWAY

WAVAV

147TH

CT33RD

ST

N
RE

D O
ND

O
AV

ST

SAN

33RD
ST

BL
VD

33RD ST
147TH

148TH

148TH

3300

MIGUEL

CA
TA

LIN
AIN

GL
EW

O O
D

SAN TIBURON

PL

LA
FA

YE
TT

E

AVAVAV

CT

VE
RM

ON
T

AL AV AV

AV

A V

SANTA
CRUZ S

OC
EA

N
GA

TE
A V

PL

W

DR

ST

AV

STDR

PL

PL

147TH
ST

ST 149TH 148TH ST

SANTA

W

147TH

W

W

148TH

CT

AV

ROSA

B U
DL

ON
G

AV RUTHBAR
CT

PL

AV DR
GREEN

CI
R ST

ST

CT

AV

ST

14
70

1

S

DE
NK

ER

BL
VD

AV

ST

AV

CT

LN

AV

GRENADA PINE

AV

5100

STW

MONTEREY

149TH

PA
RK

CIR

W

CT

149TH
149TH

W

148TH

EV ERG
RE

EN

AV

148TH ST

SA
LL

E

VISTA
ST

S

BL
VD

30TH CORONADO

STLN

B U
RE

N

CT

ST S

149TH
ST

AV

CATALINA

149TH
CT

WRO
XT

ON

CT

ST

CO
ND

ON

SA
US

AL
I TO

150THW

MARIN

150TH LA

CENTER LINE 4300

15
10

0MI
LL

ER

DR

CHAT HAM

PL
NA

DE
R

VILLAGE

ST

CT

150TH

ST RA TF ORD

WA
DK

IN
S

WA
DS

HA
W

AV

CAYMAN

H A
LL

DA
LE

KI
NG

SL
EY

AV

VA
N

MA
RI

PO
SA

AL

BR
ID

GE
PO

RT

AVMARINE
PALOS VERDES

LAGUNA

CT

W
WELTON 15

09
9

DU
BL

IN

AV AV AV

WE
S T

PO
RT

AV

CORDOBA

SU
TR

O
MA

RI
GO

LD

PL

CT

KIN
GS

DA
LE

CR
AN

BR
OO

K

NANTUCKET

CH
AD

RO
NST

KO
RN

BL
UM

LN

MARINE

MALAGA

PL

W

W

1000

WY

1200

15
10

0

1500

BU
R I

N

AV
1900

MA
LA

GA

PL FIR
MO

NA

MARINE
DOVER

2200

CA
MB

R I
DG

E

AV

VI
L L

AG
E

PL

3299
ST

CT

AV ST

MARINE

152ND

E

W152ND
3999

WST

AV
IA

TIO
N

MA
LA

GA

WY

152ND

BERMUDA

AV

W

25
00 DRPO

RT
SM

OU
TH GATEWAY

MARINE

152NDW ST
2799

15
10

0DIEGO
2299

15
10

0

1600

AV

ST

ST

1100 23RD

AV AV

1300
ST

1000

AV AV

152ND

REDONDO

ST

AV AVAV 153RDAV

AV

W

AV

AV

AV

BE
RE

ND
OAV

PL152NDW

15
10

0

R A
YM

ON
DAV 23RD

PL

AV15
10

0

AVAVAV PO
LL

Y AV

15
10

0

ST

39
00AV

15
20

0AV

AN
DR

EW
S22ND ST

15
20

0

AV 22ND ST

1000

1400

ST AV

LN

W
ST153RDW

LA
RC

H

ST

HA
RV

AR
D

153RDW
154TH

153RD

AVAV

W

AV

CI
MA

RR
ON

 W
YST EA
ST

WO
OD

WY

153RD
ST21STAV DR21ST

ST

21ST ST

GR
EV

ILL
EA

DA
PH

NE

AV

15
30

0

MA
NS

EL

SP
IN

NI
NG

WI
LK

IE
 AVRR

ST

WY

ER
IEL

ST154TH
PL

AR
DA

THPL
W CA

SI
MI

R

CH
AN

ER
A

153RD

GR
A M

ER
C Y

S

AR
CT

UR
US19

00

154TH

FO
NT

HI
LL

19
00HE
RR

IN

KO
RN

BL
UM

W
AV

IS
ST

ST20TH

AV

19TH

154TH
155THAV

W

CA
TA

LIN
A

AV ST

W

OS
AG

E19TH

ME
TT

LE
R 

DR

S

ST154TH
42B W

ST

ST
DR

PL154THW

PARK

155TH

154TH

1500

SPACEAV 150018TH ST

NO
R M

AN
DI

E

18TH ST

BLVDAV

CE
DA

R

AV

PE
CK

NST18TH

AV

42B

AV

17TH

BU
DL

ON
G

N

HA
AS

WI
LT

ON

PA
RR

ON

15
40

0

SA
IN

T

CI
MA

RR
ON

LN

ST FA
YM

ON
T

BE
AC

H

ER
MA

NI
TA

MA
NZ

AN
ITA

LE
MO

L I

FA
YS

MI
TH14TH

DO
TY

FL
OR

W
OO

D

P A
TR

ON
EL

LA

RU
TH

EL
EN

PU
RC

HE

CE
RI

SE

CR
AN

BR
OO

K

CO
RD

AR
Y

GE
RK

INWE
ND

Y

RO
SE

LL
E

OA
K

AT
K I

N S
O NRO

W
EL

L

CR
EN

SH
AW

RE
DO

ND
O

D O
OL

ITT
LE

DR

RE
DO

ND
O

H A
RK

N E
SS

CH
ES

TN
UT

AV
MA

GN
OL

IA

Los Angeles
International Airport (LAX)

Incorporated July 12, 1922 West Athens

Los Angeles
Air Force Base

Hawthorne
Municipal

Airport

LA Southwest
College

Do
mi

ng
ue

z C
ha

nn
el

LOS
ANGELES

INGLEWOOD

EL SEGUNDO

GARDENA

MANHATTAN
BEACH

LAWNDALE

REDONDO
BEACH

HAWTHORNE
CO

CO

CO

Westchester

WestmontLennox

Del Aire

West
Alondra Park

µ
Revised: August 12, 2015 C:\GIS\MXDs\Cities\Hawthorne

Hawthorne Sphere of InfluenceLegend
Hawthorne Sphere
of Influence (SOI)
City of Hawthorne

¥op4 50

Sphere of Influence History
Action                 Effective Date

Established                               11-14-73
Reconfirmed                             09-28-05
Reconfirmed                             08-12-15

1 in = 0.4 miles
0 0.5 10.25

Miles

Study V, Area 1(C)
Established 11-14-731
Study V, Area 3
Established 11-14-732

Study V, Area 6
Established 11-14-733
Study V, Area 7
Established 11-14-734
Areas 1 & 2
Established 04-25-845
Area E(1) Joint SOI
Gardena, Lawndale, and HawthorneEstablished 11-28-846

¥op1 50

ÄÅ1

1

2
3

4

5

6

Joing SOI Gardena and Hawthorne
Removed    09-28-05



 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 3 
 



10F

Date: January 14, 2025

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Aram Chaparyan, City Manager

By: Ian Dailey, Deputy City Manager | IDailey@TorranceCA.Gov

Subject: City Manager – Receive Update and Provide Direction on Annexation of El Camino 
Village. Expenditure: None.

RECOMMENDATION

Recommendation of the City Manager that City Council receive update and provide direction on 
the annexation of El Camino Village into the City of Torrance.
 
FUNDING

None required.

DISCUSSION

On August 13, 2024, City Council approved an oral request to explore the potential annexation of 
El Camino Village into the City of Torrance. El Camino Village consists of approximately 1,761 
existing parcels encompassing approximately 1.14 square miles. Within this area there are 
approximately 2,804 households and 208 businesses, with a total of 8,293 residents and 1,063 
employees. The analysis assumes an additional 8,825 persons served, which is 100% of the 
residents and 50% of the employee figure described based on amount of time spent within the 
boundaries. El Camino Village is also home to Alondra Park and El Camino College, both of which 
are property tax exempt and represent a little over half of the area examined as part of this 
analysis. While they are property tax exempt properties, if Alondra Park were indeed annexed 
into the City of Torrance this would add an additional 204 acres of open space to the City’s current 
354.76 acres.

To better understand the process of a potential annexation staff met with the Los Angeles Local 
Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO). This process, outlined by the LAFCO representatives, 
indicated that an election of the residents would be required to change the City’s boundaries and 
annex this region, which would be exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act process 
(CEQA). In the event this passed, it would mean that these residents then pay the City’s 
Transactions and Use Tax, the City’s Utility Users’ Tax, and the City’s Occupancy Tax rates. 
However, the election annexing this area into the City boundaries would have no immediate effect 
on school boundaries for residents and that would be handled separately. 

1



City Council
January 14, 2025
Page 2

1
7
4

1
7
4

Open Space Impacts
The City’s 1992 General Plan set a goal of 10 acres of public recreation land per 1,000 residents. 
With that said, as of the City’s 2010 General Plan the City is currently home to 354.76 acres of 
parks; recreation facilities; libraries; cultural, arts, and community centers, which equates to 
approximately 2.48 acres per 1,000 residents based on the City’s current population of 143,057 
residents. The potential addition of Alondra Park to the City’s inventory of parks and open spaces 
would add approximately 204 acres, totaling 558.76 acres post annexation, an increase of 58%. 
With the additional 8,293 residents annexed this would equate to a revised ratio of 3.69 acres per 
1,000 residents, an improvement over the current rate. The financial component of this analysis 
does not include the impacts of additional park staff required to maintain this property as the 
inclusion of Alondra Park, including the golf course, would be determined later in discussions with 
Los Angeles County. With that said, based on the size of the park, it is estimated that staffing 
levels would need to expand by approximately 12 full-time equivalent positions, but a further 
detailed analysis would be required especially with respect to the golf course and whether it 
operates at a surplus or deficit. As a result of adding staff, additional vehicles and equipment 
would also be required to maintain the newly acquired park space.

Response Time Impacts
To best understand the operational impacts on Police and Fire, meetings were held to examine 
the details of this potential annexation. For the Police Department, combatting the impacts on 
response time would require additional staff to address the new service area being introduced. 
To address the additional square mileage and the approximate 8,825 additional persons served, 
it is estimated that an additional 13 sworn officers would be needed to patrol this area across all 
of the shifts. These additional sworn officers would help patrol this new area and help ensure 
response times were not adversely affected by the annexation.

In consultation with the Fire Department, an in-depth analysis was conducted to evaluate 
response time impacts and determine options to mitigate. The Fire Department’s 2023 
Community Risk Assessment/Standards of Cover document sets response time targets that are 
reflective of National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) standards. For Torrance, the benchmark 
time target for the first unit to arrive on scene is 4 minutes. Further, for truck companies (ladder 
truck) the established benchmark is 8 minutes. The below map illustrates the 4-minute benchmark 
response time, utilizing Fire Station 3, relative to the El Camino annexation area. As shown below, 
the area falls outside of the 4-minute response time:

2



City Council
January 14, 2025
Page 3

1
7
4

1
7
4

Staff also examined the 8-minute response time, utilizing Fire Station 1, which is the closest fire 
station with a ladder truck. As shown below, the area falls outside of the 8-minute response time:

3



City Council
January 14, 2025
Page 4

1
7
4

1
7
4

As a result of these conclusions utilizing existing fire station resources, it was determined that an 
additional fire station would be required to meet the City’s response time standards. To evaluate 
the impacts of a new fire station, two main locations were evaluated, including El Camino 
College’s Training Center and the northside of Alondra Park along Manhattan Beach Blvd. 
Beginning with the first option, the below map is provided to show the 4-minute response time for 
this new fire station location, and its corresponding deficits:

4



City Council
January 14, 2025
Page 5

1
7
4

1
7
4

Given this shortcoming, the second location was examined and assumes part of Alondra Park is 
no longer open space. In this location a new fire station is constructed, which would also include 
a ladder truck similar to Fire Station 1. Due to its centralized location, this proves to better address 
the response time standards for the City, as shown by the below map:

It’s also important to note that the addition of a fire station would have an indirect benefit to 
response times in areas currently served by Fire Station 3 due to the overlap and additional 

5



City Council
January 14, 2025
Page 6

1
7
4

1
7
4

availability of resources in the area. In addition to the internal analysis that was conducted, 
Deccan International’s ADAM model was utilized to help with the City’s response time analysis to 
understand the impacts of expanding the City boundaries. This analysis specific response time 
impacts in the different scenarios as shown in Attachment 1.

Fiscal Impacts: Overall
To evaluate the fiscal impacts of this potential action on the City’s General Fund, staff obtained 
the services of DTA, a public finance consulting firm. From a fiscal analysis perspective, the 
recurring General Fund cost impact totals $16.5 million annually, which is partially offset by 
additional revenues totaling $5.0 million annually, for a net deficit of $11.5 million annually. In 
addition to the recurring cost impacts, it is estimated that one-time expenditures in the amount of 
$27.2 million would be needed to implement this annexation. The details of these results, and the 
operational considerations, are explained in further detail in this item. Additionally, a summary 
table articulating the recurring financial impacts on an annual basis can be found below:

Fiscal Impacts: Revenue
Overall, it is anticipated that the annexation of El Camino Village will yield $5.0 million in additional 
recurring revenue each fiscal year. This is driven by increased revenues in the areas of Sales 
Tax, Property Tax, Property Tax in Lieu of Vehicle License Fees, Transient Occupancy Tax, and 
Utility Users’ Taxes.

For Property Tax and Property Tax in lieu of Vehicle License Fees, the Los Angeles County 
Assessor’s Office reported net taxable assessed value of $893,710,204. Currently, of the 
Proposition 13 established 1% taxable assessed value, the County receives 29.01% for the 
General Fund, 16.36% for Fire Protection Services, and 2.17% for County Library Services. For 
purposes of the financial analysis conducted by DTA, it is assumed the City would receive either 
50% or 25% of the General Fund amount, which is typically the outcome of these annexations, 
and 100% of the Fire and Library Services amount. For the purposes of this report, staff are 
focusing on the optimistic 50% scenario with respect to the General Fund portion. Ultimately, the 
final amount determined would be the result of negotiations resulting in a property tax sharing 

6



City Council
January 14, 2025
Page 7

1
7
4

1
7
4

agreement between the City and the County. In total, under the 50% assumption, the City would 
generate an additional $3.4 million annually. The details of this analysis are shown in Attachment 
1 of the Staff Report under its Attachment 1-C.

For Sales Tax, the City’s sales tax consultant HdL noted that the annual taxable sales in the El 
Camino Village area is $20,000,000. The City would be eligible to receive its Bradley Burns 1.0% 
tax as well as the 0.50% Measure SST Transactions and Use Tax. It is estimated that this would 
generate $286,000 annually. The details of this analysis are shown in Attachment 1 of the Staff 
Report under its Attachment 1-D.

For Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT), an analysis of the hotels in the El Camino Village area was 
conducted and determined that one of the four motels in the area appear to be operating on a 
short-term rental basis and would qualify for TOT. Additionally, the City would be eligible to receive 
its 11% TOT rate established in the Torrance Municipal Code for these rentals. It was assumed 
that based on the 45 hotel rooms in the annexation area, an average daily rate of $122, and 
occupancy at 75% would yield approximately $159,532 annually. The details of this analysis are 
shown in Attachment 1 of the Staff Report under its Attachment 1-E.    

For Utility Users’ Tax (UUT), an analysis was conducted to estimate the gross utility receipts 
generated in the El Camino Village area would yield by land use. The City would be eligible to 
receive its 6.5% for Electricity, Gas, Telephone, and Cable while receiving 6.0% for water. In total, 
as a result of this analysis it is estimated that the City would receive $1,195,400 annually. The 
details of this analysis are shown in Attachment 1 of the Staff Report under its Attachment 1-F. 

Fiscal Impacts: Expenditures

For the Police Department, it is estimated that annexing El Camino Village into the City of 
Torrance would cost the City $3.5 million in one-time costs and $4.1 million annually. The one-
time costs are made up of the below cost elements:

In consultation with the Police Department, as a result of extending the City’s boundaries to the 
north, this would require the City to consider the addition of an enhanced substation at McMaster 
Park with additional amenities. The scope of this work would include a renovation at McMaster 
Park’s existing facility and expanding the area dedicated for Police. This would have a 
displacement effect on Community Services, which would have to leverage the Tillim Center for 
programming activities. In addition, this expansion of the City boundaries would require additional 
staffing to respond to incidents and corresponding overhead costs related with this expansion. It 
is estimated that 13 additional Police Officers would be required, which would result in 7 additional 
Police vehicles, necessary radios, and uniforms/accessories required for outfitting these 
additional staff. In addition to these one-time costs, it is estimated that the City would expend an 
additional $4.1 million annually for the new staff and ancillary costs associated with expanding 

One-Time Cost Category Amount
Police Substation Renovation 2,600,000
Police Vehicles 630,000
Radios 78,000
Uniforms & Accessories 207,064
Subtotal 3,515,064

7



City Council
January 14, 2025
Page 8

1
7
4

1
7
4

our workforce. This amount was derived using a “persons served” model. The City’s Adopted 
Fiscal Year 2024-25, discounted for fixed costs, was applied to the persons served within the 
existing city boundaries. By leveraging this factor, we are able to estimate the additional costs 
needed to support the additional “persons served” by the potential El Camino annexation.

For the Library Division of the Community Services Department, it is estimated that annexing El 
Camino Village into the City of Torrance would have no one-time cost impacts but would cost 
$271,000 annually. It is assumed that no new satellite libraries would be constructed through the 
annexation. For libraries, a similar approach was conducted to the Police Department on its 
operating budget impacts. The City’s Adopted Fiscal Year 2024-25, discounted for fixed costs, 
was applied to the persons served within the existing city boundaries. By leveraging this factor, 
we are able to estimate the additional costs needed to support the additional “persons served” by 
the potential El Camino annexation. With the El Camino annexation including an estimated 8,825 
people requiring library services, it is estimated that would cost the City $271,000 annually.

For the Fire Department, it is estimated that annexing El Camino Village into the City of Torrance 
would cost the City $23.7 million in one-time costs and $12.7 million annually. The one-time costs 
are made up of the below cost elements:

In consultation with the Fire Department, as a result of extending the City’s boundaries to the 
north, this would require the City to construct an additional Fire Station to ensure proper response 
times for the community. The assumption would be that the new fire stations is constructed along 
the north side of Alondra Park on Manhattan Beach Blvd, which assumes no purchase price of 
land as it would utilize existing park space. The El Camino College property where the current 
training facility was located was explored but did not adequately serve the community from a 
response time perspective. In addition, this expansion of the City boundaries would require 
additional staffing to respond to incidents and corresponding overhead costs related with this 
expansion. It is estimated that 39 positions would be required. This amount was derived using a 
“case study” model in consultation with the Fire Department. In this scenario, due to the addition 
of a new fire station, examining costs associated with this action is the most accurate approach. 
To staff this fire station, including the necessary oversight, it would require the below staffing 
levels:

One-Time Cost Category Amount
Fire Station 19,100,000
Fire Engine 1,151,427
Ladder Truck 1,782,548
Advanced Life Support Ambulance 392,816
Basic Life Support Ambulance 291,747
Battalion Chief vehicle 52,749
Equipment for Vehicles 586,000
Personal Protective Equipment 298,050
Subtotal 23,655,336$       

8



City Council
January 14, 2025
Page 9

1
7
4

1
7
4

In addition to the above staffing levels, other non-wage impacts would result from the annexation 
totaling $1.6 million annually. This includes costs such as setting aside amounts to pay for the 
future replacement of the new vehicles ($510,000), additional workers compensation and liability 
claims exposure through an expanded workforce ($815,000), as well as other non-wage 
categories such as utilities, fuel, supplies, and training. 

Next Steps
Should Council direct staff to further pursue the annexation of El Camino Village, staff will proceed 
in the following manner. Staff would engage with Supervisor Janice Hahn and Supervisor Holly 
Mitchell to share Council’s direction and keep them apprised. In consulting with LAFCO, we 
understand that annexations are exempt from CEQA and this would further be confirmed. 
Depending on the exact boundaries of the annexation the City would need to consult with the City 
of Lawndale and potentially the City of Hawthorne if the annexation would extend north of Marine 
Ave. As part of this process a Municipal Service Review would be conducted in coordination with 
LAFCO. The final step at the conclusion of all efforts would be an election, which would require 
25% of registered voters or 25% of land ownership by parcel value to vote in favor of this effort. 
Additionally, since this is an increase in net cost to the City, staff would provide Council with 
budget amendment scenarios to identify services for elimination to offset this anticipated deficit. 
A summary of the one-time and recurring cost impacts for the potential annexation of El Camino 
Village can be found below:

Position
Full-Time 

Equivalent
Cost per 
Position Total Cost

Fire Engine
Fire Captain 3.00 400,210 1,200,631
Fire Engineer 3.00 337,608 1,012,825
Fire Fighter 3.00 238,529 715,587
Fire Fighter/Paramedic 3.00 238,529 715,587

Ladder Truck
Fire Captain 3.00 400,210 1,200,631
Fire Engineer 3.00 337,608 1,012,825
Fire Fighter 3.00 238,529 715,587
Fire Fighter/Paramedic 3.00 238,529 715,587

Paramedic Rescue (Rescue Ambulance)
Fire Fighter/Paramedic 6.00 238,529 1,431,175

BLS Ambulance 
Ambulance Operators 6.00 69,145 414,869

Battalion Chief 3.00 493,535 1,480,605

Subtotal 39.00 10,615,912

9



City Council
January 14, 2025
Page 10

1
7
4

1
7
4

Staff would provide regular updates to City Council along the process if direction is given to further 
pursue.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Deccan Response Time Report
2. DTA Fiscal Impact Analysis Report

One-Time Budget Impacts Amount
One-Time Police Costs 3,515,064
One-Time Fire Costs 23,655,336
Subtotal 27,170,400

Recurring Budget Impacts Amount
Recurring Revenues (50% prop tax scenario) 5,019,852

Recurring Police Expenditures 4,067,178
Recurring Library Expenditures 271,281
Recurring Fire Expenditures 12,220,763
Net  Surplus / (Deficit ) (11,539,370)

10



Torrance Fire Department 
El Camino Village 
Annexation Study 

 

  
2024 

ANALYZING THE IMPACTS OF ANNEXING THE EL CAMINO 
VILLAGE, EL CAMINO COLLEGE, AND ALONDRA PARK AREAS 

DECCAN INTERNATIONAL | December 23, 2024 

ATTACHMENT 1



Contents 
Contents ........................................................................................................................................................ 2 

Analysis Needs .............................................................................................................................................. 3 

Methods ........................................................................................................................................................ 3 

Annexation Only Analysis Results ................................................................................................................. 5 

Annexation With New Fire Station Analysis Results ..................................................................................... 7 

 

  

12



Analysis Needs 
Torrance FD would like to study the impacts to performance metrics if the El Camino Village, El Camino 
College, and Alondra Park areas were annexed into the FD’s service area.  This report includes a scenario 
where only an annexation occurs and a scenario where there is a new Fire Station built in tandem with 
the annexation.  As there is no reliable incident and response data readily available for this area, this 
information will have to be predictively modeled. 

Methods 
Due to the unavailability of existing incident and response data, it was decided to execute this 
project through an scientific estimation of workloads to be added.  In the El Camino Village 
area, the workloads to be added were based upon population in the area to be annexed.  The El 
Camino Village population data was provided by ESRI (see below). In the El Camino College and 
Alondra Park areas, workloads were derived from similar locations across the United States 
where data was available to be studied. 

 

 

 

13



The 2023 U.S. Census QuickFacts estimates 
(https://www.census.gov/quickfacts/fact/table/torrancecitycalifornia/PST045222) were utilized to 
define the population metrics for Torrance.  The types of incidents and number of times they occurred 
were defined through Torrance FD’s ADAM (Apparatus Deployment Analysis Module) application.  Each 
of ALARM, ALS, BLS, STRUFIRE, AND OTHERFIRE incident total counts were then divided by total 
Torrance population to define an incident per person rate. 

 

The El Camino Village population count was then multiplied by each of the per person incident rates to 
define the amount of each type of incident to be added.  The El Camino College workloads were added 
through enrollment count multiplied by ½ of the incident rates (consistent with comparison cases Texas 
Christian University and Virginia Commonwealth University).  These workloads were added into the 
ADAM predictive model through the ADAM applications Modify Incident Volume interface. 

 

For the applicable 
scenario, a new 
Fire Station was 
built on Manhattan 
Beach Blvd, 
roughly 
geographically 
centered in the 
annexed area.  This 
station houses a 
new Engine, TFD 
Ambulance, 
Rescue, Truck, and 
Chief (see right). 

 

  

14



Annexation Only Analysis Results 
 

Annexation only summary – Overall Service Area: Deccan International’s ADAM model projects 
Torrance FD will see a SIGNIFICANT NEGATIVE IMPACT to current response standards, especially on 
EMS incidents by annexing the El Camino Village area.  This is primarily due to the high volume of calls 
expected to be handled by Fire Station 3.  Fire Stations 1 and 5 will also be expected to more often cover 
for Planning Zone 93, providing slower responses, as well as rippling response degradation into Planning 
Zones 91 and 95. 

 

Overall service area response metrics: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Apparatus runs/day metrics: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15



Annexation only summary – North Torrance: Deccan International’s ADAM model projects Torrance FD 
will see a SUBSTANTIAL NEGATIVE IMPACT to current response standards, especially on EMS incidents 
by annexing the El Camino Village area.  This is primarily due to the high volume of calls expected to be 
handled by Fire Station 3.  Fire Stations 1 and 5 will also be expected to more often cover for Planning 
Zone 93, providing slower responses, as well as rippling response degradation into Planning Zones 91 
and 95. 

 

North Torrance service area response metrics: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Apparatus runs/day metrics: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

16



Annexation With New Fire Station Analysis Results 
Annexation with new Fire Station summary – Overall Service Area: Deccan International’s ADAM 
model projects Torrance FD will see a MARGINAL POSITIVE IMPACT to current response standards.  This 
is primarily due to two factors. First, the annexation workloads are relatively near the new station. This 
means TFD will be able to respond to incidents in the annexed area faster than average.  Second, the 
annexation Fire Station will require slightly less daily responses as compared to other TFD Fire Stations 
equating to higher availability. The annexation Fire Station can then provide more coverage to 
surrounding Planning Zones, creating response improvement ripple into Planning Zones 91, 93, and 95. 

Overall service area response metrics: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Overall service area runs/day metrics: 

 

 

 

 

17



Annexation with new Fire Station summary – North Torrance: Deccan International’s ADAM model 
projects Torrance FD will see a SUBSTANTIAL POSITIVE IMPACT to current response standards.  This is 
primarily due to two factors. First, the annexation workloads are relatively near the new station. This 
means TFD will be able to respond to incidents in the annexed area faster than average.  Second, the 
annexation Fire Station will require slightly less daily responses as compared to other TFD Fire Stations 
equating to higher availability. The annexation Fire Station can then provide more coverage to 
surrounding Planning Zones, creating response improvement ripple into Planning Zones 91, 93, and 95. 
North Torrance service area response metrics: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Overall service area runs/day metrics: 

 

 

 

 

 

18



  
 
 

 

1 8 2 0 1  V O N  K A R M A N  A V E N U E ,  S U I T E  2 2 0  I R V I N E ,  C A  9 2 6 1 2  ▪  ( 8 0 0 )  9 6 9 - 4 D T A 
I R V I N E  ▪  S A N  J O S E  ▪ S A N  F R A N C I S C O  ▪ R I V E R S I D E  ▪ D A L L A S  ▪ H O U S T O N  ▪ R A L E I G H  ▪ T A M P A 

 
www.FinanceDTA.com 

P u b l i c  F i n a n c e  |  P u b l i c - P r i v a t e  P a r t n e r s h i p s  
D e v e l o p m e n t  E c o n o m i c s  |  C l e a n  E n e r g y  B o n d s 

Annexation of El Camino Village

INTRODUCTION 
The purpose of this summary is to evaluate selected fiscal revenues, consisting of property taxes, property taxes in lieu of 
Vehicle License Fees (“VLF”), direct and indirect sales taxes, Transient Occupancy Taxes (“TOTs”), and Utility Users’ Taxes 
(“UUTs”), and estimate public safety and library expenditures required by the annexation of the Census-Designated Place 
commonly known as El Camino Village (the “Annexation Area”), currently located within unincorporated Los Angeles 
County (the “County”), upon its proposed annexation into the City of Torrance (the “City”).  

DESCRIPTION OF THE ANNEXATION AREA 

Figure 1: Boundaries of Annexation Area 

 

 Annexation Area: Consists of 1,761 existing parcels encompassing approximately 1.14 square miles in the 
unincorporated County located north of the City, immediately west of Crenshaw Boulevard, north of Redondo Beach 
Boulevard, east of Prairie Avenue, and south of Rosecrans Avenue; 

 Demographic: The Annexation Area is estimated to include 2,804 households and 208 businesses, with a total of 
8,293 residents and 1,063 employees; and 

 Assessed Valuation: The County Assessor’s Office reported gross assessed valuations of $825,780,603 for residential 
parcels and $74,355,601 for non-residential properties, totaling $900,136,204 for Fiscal Year (“FY”) 2024-25.  The net 
assessed valuation of $893,710,204 reflects $6,426,000 in homeowner exemptions. 

FISCAL IMPACT CONCLUSIONS 

The overall net fiscal impact to the City's General Fund resulting from the selected revenues anticipated to be generated 
by the Annexation Area upon its annexation into the City, as compared to the cost of public safety and library services 
associated with the proposed annexation, will be a substantial annual recurring fiscal deficit of $11,539,370 and 
$12,187,528, assuming the property tax sharing at 50% and 25%, respectively.  The FIA utilizes the following assumptions: 

 Property Tax Sharing (Secured Property Taxes): The City’s General Fund property tax revenue estimates were derived 
using apportionment factors provided by the County Auditor-Controller as applied to the general 1% ad valorem 
property tax levy and applicable property tax sharing assumptions.  Total secured property tax revenues currently 
received by the County General Fund from the Annexation Area is approximately 29.01% of the basic 1% [Proposition 

CONCLUSIONS OF THE FISCAL IMPACT ANALYSIS (“FIA”) FOR THE ANNEXATION OF 
EL CAMINO VILLAGE 

19
ATTACHMENT 2



2
 

(“Prop”) 13], net of the projected Education Revenue Augmentation Fund (“ERAF”) property tax shifts.  For the purposes 
of this FIA, the City is assumed to receive 25% or 50% of the 29.01% of the basic 1% property tax generated by the 
Annexation Area upon its annexation into the City.  Note, the final property tax sharing ratio will be determined by 
the property tax sharing agreement to be entered into between the City and County. 

The County currently receives 16.36% and 2.17% of the basic 1% property tax, adjusted for ERAF, for the fire protection 
and library services, respectively.  Since the City will provide such services to the Annexation Area upon its annexation 
into the City, the City is expected to receive those property tax allocations currently earmarked for the County fire 
protection and library services. 

 Property Tax In Lieu of VLF: Per California Revenue and Taxation Code §97.70, the property tax in lieu of VLF amount 
now increases in proportion to the growth rate of the Citywide gross assessed valuation of taxable property from the 
prior fiscal year.  Property taxes in lieu of VLF revenues constitute an addition to other property tax apportionments 
and were calculated for the purposes of this FIA at $0.48 per $1,000 increase in assessed valuation on a Citywide basis. 

 Sales Tax: The Annexation Area is currently generating an estimated $20M in annual taxable sales.  Upon its 
annexation to the City, the Annexation Area is anticipated to generate $286K in annual sales tax revenue to the City 
General Fund, based on 100% of the 1.00% Bradley-Burns tax and 86% of the Measure SST tax, a 0.5% district sales tax 
approved by City voters in June 2022. 

 UUT: Pursuant to the Municipal Code 225.1, the City will receive 6.5% of the gross receipts for telephone, electricity, 
gas, and cable services and 6% for water services generated within the Annexation Area upon its annexation into the 
City. 

 TOT: Pursuant to the Municipal Code 222.2.1, the City will receive 11% of the lodging receipts generated within the 
Annexation Area upon its annexation into the City. 

 Discounting Expenses: The police and library service costs are not expected to increase one-to-one with the 
annexation of the Annexation Area.  The City has estimated that discount factors of 7.00% and 10.00% are appropriate 
for current police and library service expenditures, respectively. 

As listed in Table 1, annual property tax revenues generated by the annexation, including property tax in lieu of VLF, are 
estimated at $3,378,921 and $2,730,763 for 50% and 25% property tax sharing scenarios, respectively.  Other General Fund 
revenues include annual sales taxes of $286,000, TOTs of $159,532, and UUTs of $1,195,400.  Conversely, the Project is 
anticipated to incur estimated police, fire protection, and library service expenditures of $4,067,178, $12,220,763, and 
$271,281. respectively.  Derivations of these calculations are presented in Attachments 1-C through 1-G. 

Table 1: General Fund Fiscal Impact Summary Based on Selected Fiscal Revenues and Municipal Service Costs 

 

20



3
 

DTA’S QUALIFICATIONS 

DTA, formerly David Taussig and Associates, Inc., is a California-based public finance consulting firm with a national 
practice focusing on the establishment and implementation of infrastructure and public services financing programs.  
The firm, which provides public finance consulting services to public and private sector clients, has offices in Irvine, San 
Francisco, San Jose, and Riverside, California, Houston and Dallas, Texas, Raleigh, North Carolina, and Tampa, Florida.  
Since its formation in 1985, the firm has assisted over 3,000 clients located in 22 states in meeting their infrastructure and 
public services goals.  Additional information on DTA is available on our website at www.FinanceDTA.com. 

In addition to the planning and implementation of public financing mechanisms, DTA is involved in fiscal and economic 
analyses of land development impacts, project feasibility studies, retail market analyses, and economic development 
studies.  DTA’s ability to thoroughly analyze the revenues and costs to a local jurisdiction resulting from new development 
relates specifically to DTA’s extensive experience in FIAs of land development projects.  DTA staff has prepared over 700 
Fiscal Impact Reports (“FIRs”) estimating the revenue and cost impacts of various land use decisions on cities, 
counties, and special districts.  Our firm has prepared FIRs in conjunction with Specific Plans, Environmental Impact 
Reports, incorporations and annexations, reuse studies, General Plan Amendments, Development Agreements, and 
individual project proposals covering different types of residential, commercial/industrial, and mixed-use projects.  The 
quality of DTA’s fiscal work has been recognized by the American Planning Association (“APA”).  Notably, the APA 
presented the Award of Merit to DTA for its financing program (which included an FIR) prepared for the County of Santa 
Barbara. 
In terms of economic impact analyses, DTA has prepared over 250 economic impact studies for public agencies and land 
development firms that identify the general economic impacts of a future or existing development or plan on a 
municipality in terms of economic output gains or losses and job and wage creation opportunities.  General economic 
impacts include additions to economic output (gross receipts or sales), earnings (the sum of wages, salaries and benefits, 
other labor income, and employer and employee contributions to social security), and employment (number of average 
full-time and part-time jobs).  DTA utilizes the Impact Analysis for Planning (“IMPLAN”) economic analysis database 
service to determine induced and indirect economic impacts (via input/output modeling multipliers) that complement 
the direct economic impacts of new development and plans.  Our firm’s economic analyses also distinguish between 
one-time impacts that occur on a non-recurring basis as a result of construction activity and impacts that recur annually 
over the entire term of a development’s life. 

DTA’s Economic Impact Analyses (“EIAs”) have been utilized by the States of California, Nevada, and New Mexico, local 
municipalities, redevelopment successor agencies, community development enterprises, and other parties to determine 
whether such impacts merit the granting of project entitlements or project subsidies to enable a project to move forward.  
They have also been used in successful applications for New Market Tax Credits (“NMTCs”). 

 
For more information, please contact Jerry Wen at (800) 969-4DTA or by e-mail at Jerry@FinanceDTA.com. 

21



ATTACHMENT 1-A

TORRANCE, CALIFORNIA:  EL CAMINO VILLAGE ANNEXATION

CITY FUND EXPENDITURES (BY TYPE)

I Demographics and Other Data

2024 Estimated City Population [1] 143,057

2024 Estimated City Employees [2] 124,638

2024 Persons Served Population [3] 205,376

Notes:

[1] California Department of Finance, Housing and Population Information, January 1, 2024.

[2] Environics Analytics, EmploymentProfiles by NAICS Codes 2024 for the City of Torrance.

[3] Assumes City population plus 50% of employees.

II City Expenditures (by Type)

Total 

Expenditures

Expenditure 

Type

Fiscal Impact 

Basis
Discount

Fiscal Impact 

Expenditure 

Factor

Non-General Government

Police Department $101,838,716 Recurring Persons Served 7% $460.87

Library $7,020,847 Recurring Persons Served 10% $30.74

Fire Department $76,315,892 Recurring Case Study 0% NA

$185,175,455 NA NA NA NA

$185,175,455 NA NA NA NATotal Recurring Expenditures

Expenditure Type

Total Expenditures

22



ATTACHMENT 1-B

TORRANCE, CALIFORNIA:  EL CAMINO VILLAGE ANNEXATION

LAND USE AND DEMOGRAPHICS SUMMARY

I Land Use Description

A Existing Residential Land Uses Number of Units

Residential 2,804

B Existing Non-Residential Land Uses Building Sq. Ft.

Commercial 240,441

Industrial 8,208

Institutional 6,270

I Estimated Residential Population Residential Population [2]

Residential 8,293

II Estimated Direct Employees Total Direct Employees [3]

Non-residential 1,063

I Total Estimated Residential Population 8,293

II Total Estimated Direct Employees 1,063

III Total Persons Served Population [4] 8,825

NOTES:

[1] Source: City of Torrance.

[2] Source: City of Torrance.

[3] Environics Analytics, EmploymentProfiles by NAICS Codes 2024 for El Camino Village.

[4] An employee is typically assumed to be equivalent to 50% of a resident given they would spend   

only eight active hours in the City per day versus a resident who is active for 16 hours per day.  

* All figures subject to rounding

Population and Employees (Totals)

Land Use Data [1]

Population and Employees (Calculations)

23



ATTACHMENT 1-C

TORRANCE, CALIFORNIA:  EL CAMINO VILLAGE ANNEXATION

PROPERTY TAX REVENUE ANALYSIS

I Property Tax Allocation (as a Portion of the 1% General Property Tax Levy)

Prior to Annexation 

County of 

A Category / Code Los Angeles [1] Property Tax Sharing at 50% Property Tax Sharing at 25%

General Fund [2] 29.009720% 14.504860% 7.252430%

Fire [3] 16.358639% 16.358639% 16.358639%

Library [4] 2.174682% 2.174682% 2.174682%

Total 47.543041% 33.038181% 25.785751%

I Residential Land Uses 

A Residential

Total Estimated Net Taxable Value $819,354,603

II Non-Residential Land Uses

A Commercial

Total Estimated Net Taxable Value $64,234,158

B Industrial

Total Estimated Net Taxable Value $5,487,742

C Institutional

Total Estimated Net Taxable Value $4,633,701

III Total Land Use Net Taxable Value (Includes Takeout from Homeowner's Exemption) $893,710,204

I Property Tax In-Lieu of Vehicle License Fee - Assumptions

Total City of Torrance Gross Assessed Value [6] $38,883,175,064

City of Torrance Property Tax In-Lieu of Vehicle License Fee [7] $18,545,720

Property Tax In-Lieu of Vehicle License Fee Increase per $1,000 Assessed Value $0.48

I Fiscal Impact Category Property Tax Sharing at 50% Property Tax Sharing at 25%

A Secured Property Tax

A.1 Existing Residential Land Uses

Residential $2,706,999 $2,112,767

A.2 Existing Non-Residential Land Uses

Commercial $212,218 $165,633

Industrial $18,131 $14,151

Institutional $15,309 $11,948

D Property Tax In-Lieu of Vehicle License Fee

Projected Residential and Non-Residential Land Uses $426,264 $426,264

II Total Property Tax Revenues $3,378,921 $2,730,763

NOTES:

[1] Based on "General Fund" levy for Tax Rate Area (TRA).  Data provided by the County of Los Angeles

Auditor-Controller's Office. TRA allocations adjusted for ERAF.

[2] For the purpose of this FIA, the City is assumed to receive 50% or 25% of County of Los Angeles' current 1% property tax increment upon annexation, 

as applicable.

[3] For the purpose of this FIA, the City is assumed to receive 100% of Los Angeles County Consolidated Fire Protection District's

current 1% property tax increment upon annexation for providing the fire protection services.

[4] For the purpose of this FIA, the City is assumed to receive 100% of Los Angeles County Library's current 1% property tax increment upon annexation

for providing library services.

[5] Source: County of Los Angeles Assessor's Office.

[6] Source: County of Los Angeles Auditor-Controller's Office.

[7] Source: City of Torance Operating Budget, Fiscal Year 2024/25.

* All figures subject to rounding

Annual Fiscal Impact Amount

General Property Tax Assumptions

Assessed Valuation Assumptions [5]

Other Property Tax Revenue Assumptions

Fiscal Impact Calculation

City of Torrance

Upon Annexation to City

24



ATTACHMENT 1-D

TORRANCE, CALIFORNIA:  EL CAMINO VILLAGE ANNEXATION

SALES TAX REVENUE ANALYSIS 

I Retail Taxable Sales Capture

Annual Taxable Sales [1] $20,000,000

I Percent to the City of Torrance

City of Torrance Code §220.1.1 1.00%

Measure SST [2] 0.43%

Total 1.43%

I Fiscal Impact Category Annual Fiscal Impact Amount

A Projected Sales Tax

El Camino Village $286,000

II Total Sales Tax Revenues $286,000

NOTES:

[1] Source: HdL Companies

[2] Upon annexation, the City General Fund is anticipated to receive approximately 86% of the 0.5% Measure SST 

district tax  generated within the Annexation Area.  Source: City of Torrance.

* All figures subject to rounding

Indirect Sales Tax Assumptions

Other Sales Tax Assumptions

Fiscal Impact Calculation

25



ATTACHMENT 1-E

TORRANCE, CALIFORNIA:  EL CAMINO VILLAGE ANNEXATION

TRANSIENT OCCUPANCY TAX REVENUE ANALYSIS 

I Hotel Assumptions

A Motel 6 (14605 Crenshaw Blvd, Gardena, CA 90249)

Number of Hotel Rooms [1] 45

Average Daily Rate [1] $122

Occupancy Rate [2] 75.00%

I Transient Occupancy Tax Rate Assumptions

City of Torrance Municipal Code §222.2.1 11.00%

II Other Assumptions

Occupancy Tax Loss from Extended Stays at Hotel [2] 3.50%

IV Annual Hotel Revenue

Motel 6 (14605 Crenshaw Blvd, Gardena, CA 90249) $1,502,888

I Fiscal Impact Category Annual Fiscal Impact Amount

A Transient Occupancy Tax

Motel 6 (14605 Crenshaw Blvd, Gardena, CA 90249) $159,532

II Total Transient Occupancy Tax Revenues $159,532

NOTES:

[1] DTA Research.

[2] Based on typical DTA baseline assumptions.

* All figures subject to rounding

Transient Occupancy Tax Assumptions

Fiscal Impact Calculation

26



ATTACHMENT 1-F

TORRANCE, CALIFORNIA:  EL CAMINO VILLAGE ANNEXATION
UTILITY USERS' TAX REVENUE ANALYSIS

I Utility Usage Assumptions
Telephone Electricity Natural Gas Water Cable

A Existing Residential Land Uses ($ per Unit) [1] ($ per Unit) [2] ($ per Unit) [2] ($ per Unit) [2] ($ per Unit) [2]

$1,920 $2,640 $720 $324 $720Residential

B Existing Non-Residential Land Uses ($ per Business) [1] (kWh per Sq. Ft.) [3] (Cu. Ft. per Sq. Ft.) [4] (Gal. per Sq. Ft.) [5] ($ per Business) [6]

Food Sales $2,880 67.3 43.4 11.8 $0
Food Service $960 36.9 106.4 24.9 $60
Lodging $960 13.2 38.6 41.7 $60
Office $4,800 12.5 18.6 14.6 $0
Outpatient $4,800 15.9 22.4 15.6 $60
Retail $960 13 22.5 11.8 $0
Service $1,920 7.6 39.1 11.8 $0
Tenant $960 13.1 27.7 41.7 $60
Worship $960 4.2 17.4 11.8 $60

II Energy Price Assumptions

A Non-Residential Land Uses Commodity Charge

Electricity Costs per kWh [7] $0.1181

Natural Gas Rate per 1,000 Cu. Ft. [8] $9.87

Water Rate per 748 Gallons [9] $3.89

I Existing Residential Land Uses

A Residential

Telephone $5,383,680
Electricity $7,402,560
Natural Gas $2,018,880
Water $908,496
Cable $2,018,880

III Existing Non-Residential Land Uses

A Food Sales

Telephone $11,520
Electricity $124,428
Natural Gas $6,706
Water $960
Cable $0

B Food Service

Telephone $5,760
Electricity $78,385
Natural Gas $18,889
Water $2,327
Cable $360

C Lodging

Telephone $2,880
Electricity $69,957
Natural Gas $17,097
Water $9,724
Cable $180

D Office

Telephone $24,000
Electricity $53,138
Natural Gas $6,608
Water $2,731
Cable $0

E Outpatient

Telephone $19,200
Electricity $44,575
Natural Gas $5,248
Water $1,924
Cable $240

F Retail

Telephone $6,720
Electricity $29,567
Natural Gas $4,277
Water $1,181
Cable $0

Utility Assumptions

Gross Utility Receipts

27



ATTACHMENT 1-F

TORRANCE, CALIFORNIA:  EL CAMINO VILLAGE ANNEXATION
UTILITY USERS' TAX REVENUE ANALYSIS

G Service

Telephone $34,560
Electricity $59,939
Natural Gas $25,772
Water $4,095
Cable $0

F Tenant

Telephone $960
Electricity $36,645
Natural Gas $6,476
Water $5,133
Cable $60

H Worship

Telephone $2,880
Electricity $3,445
Natural Gas $1,193
Water $426
Cable $180

I Utility Users' Tax Rate Assumptions

Telephone (Municipal Code §225.1.3) 6.50%

Electricity (Municipal Code §225.1.4) 6.50%

Natural Gas (Municipal Code §225.1.5) 6.50%

Water (Municipal Code §225.1.6) 6.00%

Cable (Municipal Code §225.1.7) 6.50%

I Fiscal Impact Category
Annual Fiscal Impact 

Amount

A Utility User's Tax - Telephone

A.1 Existing Residential Land Uses
Residential $349,939

A.1 Existing Non-Residential Land Uses
Food Sales $749
Food Service $374
Lodging $187
Office $1,560
Outpatient $1,248
Retail $437
Service $2,246
Tenant $62
Worship $187

A Utility User's Tax - Electricity

A.1 Existing Residential Land Uses
Residential $481,166

A.1 Existing Non-Residential Land Uses
Food Sales $8,088
Food Service $5,095
Lodging $4,547
Office $3,454
Outpatient $2,897
Retail $1,922
Service $3,896
Tenant $2,382
Worship $224

B Utility User's Tax - Natural Gas

B.1 Existing Residential Land Uses
Residential $131,227

B.1 Existing Non-Residential Land Uses
Food Sales $436
Food Service $1,228
Lodging $1,111
Office $430
Outpatient $341
Retail $278
Service $1,675
Tenant $421
Worship $78

Utility Users' Tax Assumptions

Fiscal Impact Calculation

28



ATTACHMENT 1-F

TORRANCE, CALIFORNIA:  EL CAMINO VILLAGE ANNEXATION
UTILITY USERS' TAX REVENUE ANALYSIS

C Utility User's Tax - Water

C.1 Existing Residential Land Uses
Residential $54,510

C.1 Existing Non-Residential Land Uses
Food Sales $58
Food Service $140
Lodging $583
Office $164
Outpatient $115
Retail $71
Service $246
Tenant $308
Worship $26

D Utility User's Tax - Cable

D.1 Existing Residential Land Uses
Residential $131,227

D.1 Existing Non-Residential Land Uses
Food Sales $0
Food Service $23
Lodging $12
Office $0
Outpatient $16
Retail $0
Service $0
Tenant $4
Worship $12

II Total Utility Users' Tax Revenues $1,195,400

NOTES:

[1] Based on the current base cost of AT&T Business Unlimited Premium plan with two lines.

[2] Source: Based on DTA market research.

[3] Source: Commercial Buildings Energy Consumption Survey, Table C15, 2018.  

[4] Source: Commercial Buildings Energy Consumption Survey, Table C25, 2018.  

[5] Source: Commercial Buildings Energy Consumption Survey, Table W1, 2012.  

[6] Source: Based on DTA market research.

[7] Source: https://www.electricitylocal.com/states/california/torrance/

[8] Source: https://naturalgaslocal.com/states/california/torrance/

[9] Based on the monthly usage of between 0 to 10 CCF. Source: City of Torrance Public Works Department.

* All figures subject to rounding

29



ATTACHMENT 1-G

TORRANCE, CALIFORNIA:  EL CAMINO VILLAGE ANNEXATION

CURRENT ANNEXATION SCENARIO

MULTIPLIER EXPENDITURES ANALYSIS

I Expenditure Category Multiplier Factor [1] Expenditure Projection Basis

Police Department $460.87 Persons Served

Library $30.74 Persons Served

I Fiscal Impact Category Annual Fiscal Impact Amount

Police Department $4,067,178

Library $271,281

II Total Multiplier Expenditures $4,338,459

NOTES:

[1] Source: City of Torance Operating Budget, Fiscal Year 2024/25.

* All figures subject to rounding

Multiplier Expenditure Assumptions

Fiscal Impact Calculation

30



ATTACHMENT 1-H

TORRANCE, CALIFORNIA:  EL CAMINO VILLAGE ANNEXATION

CURRENT ANNEXATION SCENARIO

FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE EXPENDITURES ANALYSIS

I Charges for Services Annual Revenues

Transport Fees $466,069

I Salaries & Benefits
Full-time 

Employees
Annual Composite 

Rate Annual Expenditures

A Fire Engine Staff

Fire Captain 3 $400,210 $1,200,631

Fire Engineer 3 $337,608 $1,012,825

Fire Fighter 3 $238,529 $715,587

Fire Fighter/Paramedic 3 $238,529 $715,587

B Ladder Truck Staff

Fire Captain 3 $400,210 $1,200,631

Fire Engineer 3 $337,608 $1,012,825

Fire Fighter 3 $238,529 $715,587

Fire Fighter/Paramedic 3 $238,529 $715,587

C Paramedic Rescue Staff

Fire Fighter/Paramedic 6 $238,529 $1,431,175

D BLS Ambulance Staff

Ambulance Operators 6 $69,145 $414,869

E Battalion Staff

Chief 3 $493,535 $1,480,605

II Operation Costs Annual Costs

Materials, Supplies & Maintenance $431,198

Professional/Contract Services $211,651

Training, Travel & Membership Dues $26,381

Liabilities, Settlements & Insurance $1,532

Utilities $38,678

Interdepartmental Charges $814,963

Capital Acquisitions $37,182

Vehicle Replacement Costs $509,336

I Fiscal Impact Category Annual Fiscal Impact Amount

A Revenue

Charges for Services $466,069

B Expenditure

Salaries & Benefits $10,615,912

Operation Costs $2,070,920

II Net Fire Protection Service Expenditures $12,220,763

NOTES:

[1] Source: City of Torance Fire Department.

* All figures subject to rounding

Annual Expenditure Assumptions [1]

Fiscal Impact Calculation

Annual Revenue Assumptions [1]

31



El Camino Village Annexation

CITY OF TORRANCE | CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE 10F



• August 13, 2024 Oral request to explore potential 
annexation

• David Taussig & Associates (DTA) secured to analyze 
initial fiscal impacts for General Fund

• Major impacted departments consulted on 
operational aspects

• Presenting initial findings to Council to seek 
direction

Background & Scope

C I T Y  O F  T O R R A N C E  |  C I T Y  M A N A G E R ’ S  O F F I C E  

2



• Does not analyze impacts to Funds beyond General 
Fund

• Does not include impacts to Park Services
• Does not include impacts to Public Works
• Cost estimations are rough order of magnitude for 

one-time costs

Limitations of Analysis

C I T Y  O F  T O R R A N C E  |  C I T Y  M A N A G E R ’ S  O F F I C E  

3



• 1,761 parcels
• 1.14 square miles
• 2,804 households and 208 businesses
• 8,293 residents and 1,063 employees; 8,825 people 

served
• El Camino College and Alondra Park are property tax 

exempt

El Camino Village Statistics

C I T Y  O F  T O R R A N C E  |  C I T Y  M A N A G E R ’ S  O F F I C E  

4



• Conducts a Municipal Service Review
• Outreach process determines need for election

• Similar to Prop. 218 Hearings
• Torrance Tax rates apply to the annexed area (SST, 

UUT, TOT) ; property tax split w/ County is 
negotiated

• School District boundaries & Water Service do not 
change through this process

LAFCO Process

C I T Y  O F  T O R R A N C E  |  C I T Y  M A N A G E R ’ S  O F F I C E  

5



• City currently has nearly 355 acres of open space
• If Alondra Park included; adds 204 acres of open 

space
• Further cost impact required

• If Alondra Golf Course included; adds community 
space

• Further cost impact required

Open Space Impacts

C I T Y  O F  T O R R A N C E  |  C I T Y  M A N A G E R ’ S  O F F I C E  

6



• Additional 8,825 persons served
• Additional staffing required on patrol and supporting 

patrol to maintain response times
• Substation to support these additional operations 

extended north should be considered

Response Impacts - Police

C I T Y  O F  T O R R A N C E  |  C I T Y  M A N A G E R ’ S  O F F I C E  

7



• National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) sets 
response time targets

• First unit on scene <= 4 min
• Truck companies (ladder truck) on scene <= 8 min

• Nearest Fire Station is Station #3 
• Nearest Fire Station with a ladder truck is Station #1

Response Impacts - Fire

C I T Y  O F  T O R R A N C E  |  C I T Y  M A N A G E R ’ S  O F F I C E  

8



• Red box area is annexed 
section

• Yellow is 4 min Engine 
response coverage

• Does not meet standard
• Negative impact to FS#3 

response time to current 
areas

Response Impacts - Fire

C I T Y  O F  T O R R A N C E  |  C I T Y  M A N A G E R ’ S  O F F I C E  

9



• Red box area indicates 
annexed section

• Green indicates 8 min 
ladder truck coverage

• Does not meet standard
• Negative impact to FS#1 

response time to current 
areas

Response Impacts - Fire

C I T Y  O F  T O R R A N C E  |  C I T Y  M A N A G E R ’ S  O F F I C E  

10



• Sample Fire Station at El 
Camino Training Center

• Red box area indicates 
annexed section

• Yellow is 4 min Engine 
response coverage

• Does not meet standard

Response Impacts - Fire

C I T Y  O F  T O R R A N C E  |  C I T Y  M A N A G E R ’ S  O F F I C E  

11



• Sample Fire Station at 
Alondra Park

• Red box area indicates 
annexed section

• Yellow is 4 min Engine 
response coverage

• Meets standard
• Enhances response time in 

remainder of City

Response Impacts - Fire

C I T Y  O F  T O R R A N C E  |  C I T Y  M A N A G E R ’ S  O F F I C E  

12



Fiscal Impacts – One Time (Fire)

C I T Y  O F  T O R R A N C E  |  C I T Y  M A N A G E R ’ S  O F F I C E  

13

One-Time Cost Category Amount
Fire Station 19,100,000          
Fire Engine 1,151,427            
Ladder Truck 1,782,548            
Advanced Life Support Ambulance 392,816                
Basic Life Support Ambulance 291,747                
Battalion Chief vehicle 52,749                  
Equipment for Vehicles 586,000                
Personal Protective Equipment 298,050                
Subtotal 23,655,336$        



Fiscal Impacts – One Time (Police)

C I T Y  O F  T O R R A N C E  |  C I T Y  M A N A G E R ’ S  O F F I C E  

14

One-Time Cost Category Amount
Police Substation Renovation 2,600,000            
Police Vehicles 630,000                
Radios 78,000                  
Uniforms & Accessories 207,064                
Subtotal 3,515,064          



Fiscal Impacts 
– Recurring

C I T Y  O F  T O R R A N C E  |  C I T Y  M A N A G E R ’ S  O F F I C E  

15



Fiscal Impacts – 
Recurring (Fire Study)

C I T Y  O F  T O R R A N C E  |  C I T Y  M A N A G E R ’ S  O F F I C E  

16



Fiscal Impacts – Grand Total

C I T Y  O F  T O R R A N C E  |  C I T Y  M A N A G E R ’ S  O F F I C E  

17

One-Time Budget Impacts Amount
One-Time Police Costs 3,515,064            
One-Time Fire Costs 23,655,336          
Subtotal 27,170,400       

Recurring Budget Impacts Amount
Recurring Revenues (50% prop tax scenario) 5,019,852            

Recurring Police Expenditures 4,067,178            
Recurring Library Expenditures 271,281                
Recurring Fire Expenditures 12,220,763          
Net Surplus / (Deficit) (11,539,370)      



• Receive update and provide direction on the 
continued exploration of El Camino Village into the 
City of Torrance

Recommendation

C I T Y  O F  T O R R A N C E  |  C I T Y  M A N A G E R ’ S  O F F I C E  

18



• If Council direction is to proceed:
• Refine details on General Fund cost impacts
• Conduct analysis on impacts of all Funds
• Prepare report on budget impacts of other services 

areas and reductions required
• Engage with cities impacted by the spheres of 

influence for unincorporated areas
• Return with updates periodically

Next Steps

C I T Y  O F  T O R R A N C E  |  C I T Y  M A N A G E R ’ S  O F F I C E  

19



CITY OF TORRANCE | CITY MANAGER’S OFFICE 20



CITY OF LAWNDALE
14717 BURIN AVENUE, LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 90260

PHONE (310) 973-3200 ♦ www.lawndalecity.org

 

DATE:    March 17, 2025

TO:   Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Dr. Sean M. Moore, City Manager

PREPARED BY: Nick Petrevski, Associate Engineer
Lucho Rodriguez, Public Works Director

SUBJECT: Award of Contract Community Development Block Grant ADA Sidewalks
 

BACKGROUND

The 1974 Housing and Urban Development Act established the Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) program in order to allocate Federal funds for State and local use. The use of these funds is
restricted to programs that assist low and moderate-income communities. 
 
The City of Lawndale is a participant in the Los Angeles Urban County CDBG program, and receives an
annual allocation of CDBG funds from the Los Angeles County Development Authority (LACDA).
 
On February 7, 2022, the City Council adopted resolution CC-2202-009 (resolution) incorporating CDBG
funds into the City budget in the amount of $321,438. Additionally, $51,562 previously unallocated CDBG
funds will be used for this year's CDBG project, for a total of $373,000 project budget.  Roads selected under
the resolution are Grevillea Avenue from Manhattan Beach Boulevard to 159th Street; 159th Street from
Grevillea Avenue to Hawthorne Boulevard; and Mansel Avenue from 147th Street to 145th Street. The project
will consist of removing and replacing sidewalk, driveway approaches, ADA curb ramps, and curb and
gutter.

STAFF REVIEW
 
A bid opening was held on March 5, 2025. The City Clerk received and opened two (2) bids as follows:
 

Rank Bidder Name Total Bid Amount
1. Onyx Paving Company, Inc.          $282,000.00
2. We R Builders, Inc.          $384,180.00

 
Staff reviewed the bids and evaluated for accuracy, cost, experience, and references. As a result, staff
recommends awarding the project to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder, Onyx Paving Company,
Inc. based on their respective pricing, scope of work, and qualifications.
 
The CDBG Project No. 602487-22 Various Locations ADA Sidewalks & Access Ramps Project has
$433,681 budgeted from CDBG funding sources. The project construction will cost approximately
$282,000.00, not including contingency and CDBG Consultant Administrative and Labor Compliance costs.
The project cost breakdown is as follows:
 
Construction Bid Amount                                                                           $282,000.00
Construction Contingency (20%)                                                                  $56,000.00
CDBG Consultant                                                                                          $35,000.00



Total Project Cost Estimate                                                                          $373,000.00

LEGAL REVIEW
The City Attorney has reviewed this report.

FISCAL IMPACT
The current FY 2024-25 budget includes funding for this project.  The project’s available fund breakdown of
CDBG funds is as follows:
 
CDBG FY 2022-23 (214-443-700.146)                                                 $373,000
Total Available Funding                                                                         $373,000

RECOMMENDATION
Staff recommends that the City Council:
 

1. Award the construction contract to Onyx Paving Company, Inc., in the amount of $282,000.00 for the
CDBG Project No. 602487-22 Various Locations ADA Sidewalks & Access Ramps Project;

2. Approve the construction Contingency of $56,000.00 for CDBG Project No. 602487-22 Various
Locations ADA Sidewalks & Access Ramps Project; and

3. Approve the CDBG Consultant costs of $35,000.00 for Administrative and Labor Compliance costs.

 

 

Attachments

A. Construction Agreement.pdf
B. Construction Bid Opening Log.pdf
C. Project Location Map.pdf
D. Resolution CC-2202-009.pdf
E. We R Builders Proposal
F. Onyx Proposal

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c75fa34e7b11006b8c0413%2FAttachment%20A_Construction%20Agreement.pdf?alt=media&token=6e360236-4e1d-4f67-a819-e285c42d29f0
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c75fa34e7b11006b8c0413%2FAttachment%20A_Construction%20Agreement.pdf?alt=media&token=6e360236-4e1d-4f67-a819-e285c42d29f0
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c75fa34e7b11006b8c0413%2FAttachment%20A_Construction%20Agreement.pdf?alt=media&token=6e360236-4e1d-4f67-a819-e285c42d29f0
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c75fa34e7b11006b8c0413%2FAttachment%20B_Bid%20Opening%20Log.pdf?alt=media&token=7cb840d3-51a7-42af-ace4-f020a10e99b8
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c75fa34e7b11006b8c0413%2FAttachment%20B_Bid%20Opening%20Log.pdf?alt=media&token=7cb840d3-51a7-42af-ace4-f020a10e99b8
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c75fa34e7b11006b8c0413%2FAttachment%20B_Bid%20Opening%20Log.pdf?alt=media&token=7cb840d3-51a7-42af-ace4-f020a10e99b8
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c75fa34e7b11006b8c0413%2FAttachment%20C_Project%20Location%20Map.pdf?alt=media&token=fe037c66-cb74-4785-b811-5c38284a41e3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c75fa34e7b11006b8c0413%2FAttachment%20C_Project%20Location%20Map.pdf?alt=media&token=fe037c66-cb74-4785-b811-5c38284a41e3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c75fa34e7b11006b8c0413%2FAttachment%20C_Project%20Location%20Map.pdf?alt=media&token=fe037c66-cb74-4785-b811-5c38284a41e3
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c75fa34e7b11006b8c0413%2FD.%20Resolution%20CC-2202-009.pdf?alt=media&token=bdb043f0-3afc-4666-bf2f-fb714fa299ef
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c75fa34e7b11006b8c0413%2FD.%20Resolution%20CC-2202-009.pdf?alt=media&token=bdb043f0-3afc-4666-bf2f-fb714fa299ef
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c75fa34e7b11006b8c0413%2FD.%20Resolution%20CC-2202-009.pdf?alt=media&token=bdb043f0-3afc-4666-bf2f-fb714fa299ef
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c75fa34e7b11006b8c0413%2FWe%20R%20Builders.pdf?alt=media&token=00403852-1893-43cb-a106-90307fc779fc
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c75fa34e7b11006b8c0413%2FWe%20R%20Builders.pdf?alt=media&token=00403852-1893-43cb-a106-90307fc779fc
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c75fa34e7b11006b8c0413%2FWe%20R%20Builders.pdf?alt=media&token=00403852-1893-43cb-a106-90307fc779fc
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c75fa34e7b11006b8c0413%2FOnyx.pdf?alt=media&token=4a77a510-4694-478c-ba9c-e29b398c7288
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c75fa34e7b11006b8c0413%2FOnyx.pdf?alt=media&token=4a77a510-4694-478c-ba9c-e29b398c7288
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67c75fa34e7b11006b8c0413%2FOnyx.pdf?alt=media&token=4a77a510-4694-478c-ba9c-e29b398c7288


 

 

 

 

Attachment A 



AGREEMENT 

 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into by and between the CITY OF LAWNDALE, 

CALIFORNIA, hereinafter referred to as the "City," and Onyx Paving Company, Inc.                                           

hereinafter referred to as the "Contractor,” 

 

WITNESSETH:  That the parties hereto do mutually agree as follows: 

 

ARTICLE I:  For and in consideration of the payments and agreements hereinafter mentioned to 

be made and performed by said City, said Contractor agrees with said City to construct the work 

under the City's specification entitled “CDBG 602487-22 Various Locations ADA Sidewalk & 

Access Ramps Project” and to perform and complete in a good and workmanlike manner all the 

work pertaining thereto shown on the drawings and described in the specifications herein, to 

furnish at his own proper cost and expense all tools, equipment, labor, and materials necessary 

therefor, except such material and equipment as in said specifications as expressly stipulated to be 

furnished by said City, and to do everything required by this Agreement and the said specifications 

and plans. 

 

ARTICLE II:  For furnishing all said materials and labor, furnishing and removing all plant, 

temporary works or structures, tools and equipment and doing all the work contemplated and 

embraced in this Agreement, also for all loss and damage arising out of the nature of the work 

aforesaid, or from the action of the elements, or from any unforeseen difficulties which may arise 

from or be encountered in the prosecution of the work until its acceptance by said City, and for all 

risks of every description connected with the work; also for all expenses incurred by or in 

consequence of the suspension or discontinuance of work, except such as in the said specifications 

are expressly stipulated to be borne by said City, and for well and faithfully completing the work 

the whole thereof, in the manner shown and described in said drawings and specifications and in 

accordance with the requirements of the Engineer, said City will pay and said Contractor shall 

receive in full compensation therefor the prices named in the Bidding Schedule of the Bid hereto 

attached. 

 

ARTICLE III:  City agrees to pay and Contractor agrees to accept in full payment for this Work 

or Improvement the stipulated sum of Two Hundred Eighty Two Thousand and 00/100 Dollars 

($282,000.00). 

 

City agrees to make monthly payments and final payment in accordance with the method set forth 

in the Specifications. 

 

ARTICLE IV:  All work to be done under this contract shall be completed within TWENTY 

FIVE (25) consecutive working days, exclusive of maintenance periods, beginning on the date 

stipulated in the written Notice to Proceed issued by the Engineer.  Any changes in time and/or 

price are to be submitted to the City Engineer, in writing, within 2 days of the occurrence giving 

rise to the request and shall request a formal decision from the City within 10 days and shall include 

data supporting the request. 

 



ARTICLE V: Time is of the essence with respect to the performance by Contractor of its duties. 

Failure of the Contractor to complete the work within the time allowed will result in damages 

being sustained by the City. Such damages are, and will continue to be, impracticable and 

extremely difficult to determine. For each consecutive calendar day, or portion thereof, in excess 

of the time specified for completion of the work (as adjusted), the Contractor shall pay to the City, 

or the City may deduct from any payments due or to become due to Contractor, the sum of 

$1,000.00 per day. 

 

Execution of this Agreement shall constitute agreement by the City and the Contractor that the 

specified liquidated damages per day is the minimum value of the costs and actual damage caused 

by the failure of the Contractor to complete the work within the allotted time, that such is liquidated 

damages and shall not be construed as a penalty, and that such sum may be deducted from 

payments due the Contractor if such delay occurs. 

 

ARTICLE VI:  The City hereby promises and agrees with said Contractor to employ, and does 

hereby employ, said Contractor to provide the materials and to do the work according to the terms 

and conditions herein contained and referred to for the price aforesaid, and hereby contracts to pay 

for the same, at the time, in the manner, and upon the conditions set forth in said specifications; 

and the said parties for themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, 

do hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants herein contained. 

 

ARTICLE VII: The Notice Inviting Sealed Bids, the Instructions to Bidders, the Bid, the 

Specifications, and the Drawings mentioned therein, all addenda issued prior to the opening of the 

bid by the City, all contract change orders issued after execution of the Contract Agreement, the 

Special Provisions, Non-Collusion Declaration, Faithful Performance Bond, Payment Bond, all of 

which are essential parts of this contract, are hereby incorporated in and made part of this 

Agreement. 

 

ARTICLE VIII:  Contractor acknowledges and agrees to comply with the provisions of the State 

Labor Code requiring every employer to pay at least the minimum prevailing rate of per diem 

wages for each craft, classification, or type of workman needed to execute this contract. State 

general prevailing wage determination as established by the California Department of Industrial 

Relations (available at http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/index.htm).  The statutory provisions 

for penalties for failure to pay prevailing wages and/or failure to otherwise comply with state's 

wage and hour laws will be enforced. 

 

The applicable prevailing rate of per diem wages are on file at the City of Lawndale Department 

of Public Works, 4722 Manhattan Beach Blvd., Lawndale, California 90260, and are available to 

any interested party on request. The Contractor is required to post at the job site the prevailing 

wage rate of per diem wages and other notices prescribed by regulation. 

 

ARTICLE IX:  The Contractor shall supply the City with certificates of insurance for the types 

and amounts of insurance required for this project as described in the Instructions to Bidders for 

this project. Said certificates must comply with all requirements for sufficient insurance as 

described in the Instructions to Bidders.  

 

http://www.dir.ca.gov/DLSR/PWD/index.htm


ARTICLE X:  The Contractor hereby agrees that the Contactor and any subcontractor under him 

submit weekly to the DIR directly and provide copy to City, certified copies of the payroll records 

for all said workers and shall comply with all statutory requirements relating to certified copies of 

payroll records, including the maintenance of the records, their certification, and their availability 

for inspection as required by Labor Code Section 1776 and as required under Subsection 7-2.6 of 

said Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction. In addition, the Contractor and any 

subcontractors must furnish electronic certified payroll records directly to the Labor Commissioner 

(aka Division of Labor Standards Enforcement) in a format prescribed by the Labor Commissioner 

no less than monthly as follows: 

These new requirements will apply to all public works projects that are subject to the prevailing 

wage requirements of the Labor Code without regard to funding source. 

The applicable prevailing rate of per diem wages are on file at the City of Lawndale Department 

of Public Works, 4722 Manhattan Beach Boulevard, Lawndale, California 90266, and are 

available to any interested party on request.  The Contractor is required to post at the job site the 

prevailing rate of per diem wages as determined by the Director of the Department of Industrial 

Relations and other notices prescribed by regulation.   

 

ARTICLE XI: Pursuant to Labor Code Section 1725.5, Contractor and any subcontractor must 

be registered with the California Department of Industrial Relations prior to performing any work 

under this Agreement. Further, this project is subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement 

by the Department of Industrial Relations. 

 

ARTICLE XII:  Contractor shall indemnify, defend with legal counsel approved by City, and 

hold harmless City, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers from and against all liability, 

loss, damage, expense, cost (including without limitation reasonable legal counsel fees, expert fees 

and all other costs and fees of litigation) of every nature arising out of or in connection with 

Contractor's negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct in the performance of work hereunder 

or its failure to comply with any of its obligations contained in this Agreement, except such loss 

or damage which is caused by the sole or active negligence or willful misconduct of the City. 

Should conflict of interest principles preclude a single legal counsel from representing both City 

and Contractor, or should City otherwise find Contractor’s legal counsel unacceptable, then 

Contractor shall reimburse the City its costs of defense, including without limitation reasonable 

legal counsels fees, expert fees and all other costs and fees of litigation. The Contractor shall 

promptly pay any final judgment rendered against the City (and its officers, officials, employees 

and volunteers) with respect to claims determined by a trier of fact to have been the result of the 

Contractor’s negligent, reckless or wrongful performance. It is expressly understood and agreed 

that the foregoing provisions are intended to be as broad and inclusive as is permitted by the law 

of the State of California and will survive termination of this Agreement.  

 

Contractor obligations under this section apply regardless of whether or not such claim, charge, 

damage, demand, action, proceeding, loss, stop notice, cost, expense, judgment, civil fine or 

penalty, or liability was caused in part or contributed to by an Indemnitee. However, without 

affecting the rights of City under any provision of this Agreement, Contractor shall not be required 

to indemnify and hold harmless City for liability attributable to the active negligence of City, 



provided such active negligence is determined by agreement between the parties or by the findings 

of a court of competent jurisdiction. In instances where City is shown to have been actively 

negligent and where City’s active negligence accounts for only a percentage of the liability 

involved, the obligation of Contractor will be for that entire portion or percentage of liability not 

attributable to the active negligence of City. 

 

ARTICLE XIII: Contractor’s services are being provided to the City as that of an independent 

contractor. Contractor represents and warrants that the personnel used to provide services to the 

City pursuant to this Agreement are classified by the Contractor as employees. In the event that 

Contractor or any employee, agent, or subcontractor of Contractor providing services under this 

Agreement claims or is determined by a federal or state agency, a court of competent jurisdiction, 

or the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (“CalPERS”) to be classified as other than 

an independent contractor to the City, then Contractor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless 

the City for the payment of any and all assessed fines, penalties, judgements, employee and/or 

employer contributions, and any other damages and costs assessed to the City as a consequence 

of, or in any way attributable to, the assertion that Contractor or any persons Contractor used to 

provide services under this Agreement are employees of the City. 

 

ARTICLE XIV:  The City, in accordance with Public Contract Code Section 22300, shall permit 

the substitution of securities for any moneys withheld by the City to secure performance under a 

contract.  The City hereby incorporates herein all of the provisions set forth in Public Contract 

Code Section 22300. 

 

ARTICLE XV:  In the performance of this agreement, the Contractor shall not engage in, nor 

permit others he may hire to engage in, discrimination in the employment of persons because of 

their race, religious creed, color, or national origin, except as provided in Government Code 

Section 12940.  Violation of this provision may result in the imposition of penalties as provided in 

Labor Code Section 1735. 

 

ARTICLE XVI: It is to be made known that the improvement contemplated in the performance 

of this contract may require by the State of California shall exercise general supervision; the State 

of California, therefore, shall have the right to assume full and direct control over this contract 

whenever the State of California, at its sole discretion, shall determine that its responsibility to the 

United States so requires. 

 

ARTICLE XVII:  The Contractor shall maintain accounts and records, including personnel, 

property, and financial records, adequate to identify and account for all costs pertaining to the 

contract and such other records as may be deemed necessary by the City to assure proper 

accounting for all project funds, both federal and non-federal shares.  These records will be made 

available for audit purposes to the City or any authorized representative and will be retained for 3 

years after the expiration of this contract, unless permission to destroy them is granted by the City. 

 

ARTICLE XVIII:  No officer or employee of the City shall have any financial interest in this 

Agreement nor shall any such officer or employee participate in any decision relating to the 

Agreement which affects his financial interest or the financial interest of any corporation, 

partnership or association in which he is interested, in violation of any State statute or regulation.  



Similarly, Contractor warrants that it has not paid or given and will not pay or give any third party 

any money or other consideration for obtaining this Agreement.   

 

ARTICLE XIX:  The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the parties hereto warrant 

that (i) such party is duly organized and existing, (ii) they are duly authorized to execute and deliver 

this Agreement on behalf of said party, (iii) by so executing this Agreement, such party is formally 

bound to the provisions of this Agreement, and (iv) the entering into this Agreement does not 

violate any provision of any other Agreement to which said party is bound. 

ARTICLE XX:  Legal actions concerning any dispute, claim or matter arising out of or in relation 

to this Agreement shall be instituted in the Superior Court of the County of Los Angeles, State of 

California, or any other appropriate court in such county, and Contractor agrees to submit to the 

personal jurisdiction of such court in the event of such action. 
 

 

CITY: CITY OF LAWNDALE, 

CALIFORNIA 

 

Dated ________________, 20__ By:    

 MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

   

 CITY CLERK 

Approved as to form: 

 

_______________________________ 

CITY ATTORNEY 

 

 

Dated ________________, 20__ CONTRACTOR: ___________________ 

 

By:   

Name: Corey Kirschner 

 Title:   CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 

 

By:   

Name: Jay Kirschner 

 Title:   SECRETARY 

 



 

 

 

 

Attachment B 

















 

 

 

 

Attachment C 



1

2

3

4

5

egarcia
Text Box

egarcia
Text Box

egarcia
Text Box

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Line

carriaga
Line

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Line

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text
SCOPE OF WORK

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

carriaga
Typewritten Text

kmoghadasi
Typewritten Text
Project limits:1. Mansel Ave. from 147th St. to 145th St.2. 153rd St. from Larch Ave. to Freeman Ave.3. 154th St. from Hawthorne Blvd. to Larch Ave.4. Grevillea Ave. from Manhattan Beach Blvd. to159th St.5. 159th St. from Grevillea Ave. to Hawthorne Blvd.Scope of Work*Sections 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 Concrete work including removal and replacement of:SidewalkCurb and GutterDriveway ApproachADA Curb RampCross Gutter

kmoghadasi
Rectangle

kmoghadasi
Rectangle

kmoghadasi
Rectangle

npetrevski
Polygonal Line

egarcia
Text Box



 

 

 

 

Attachment D 









ATTACHMENT E



































































































































ATTACHMENT F





























































































































































































































































































CITY OF LAWNDALE
14717 BURIN AVENUE, LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 90260

PHONE (310) 973-3200 ♦ www.lawndalecity.org

 

DATE:    March 17, 2025

TO:   Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Dr. Sean M. Moore, City Manager

PREPARED BY: Nabi Sidiqi, Assistant Engineer
Lucho Rodriguez, Public Works Director

SUBJECT: Approve the Third Amendment to Contract Services Agreement for Lawndale
Security Improvement Project

 

BACKGROUND

In January 2024, the City Council awarded the Lawndale Security Improvement Project to Am-Tec Total
Security Inc. to perform the security system upgrades.
 
The project consists of installing the highest quality security cameras that will provide more memory for
saving images, a wider field of vision, advanced resolution, and equipment that is able to be remotely
controlled from a tablet or phone by authorized users. These upgrades add an additional layer of security to
the Public Works, Municipal Services, City Hall, and Lawndale Sheriff Station departments. The project is
substantially completed, with only additional scope of work left to complete.

STAFF REVIEW

During final walk of the project, staff identified additional locations that would benefit with new security
cameras for enhanced surveillance. The Additional cameras will be arriving outside of the term of the current
agreement. The current agreement is set to expire on March 31, 2025 (Attachment B) , however, the
agreement allows for the option to extend upon request. Staff recommends that City Council approve the
Third Amendment to the Lawndale Security Improvement Project Agreement to extend the it for an
additional three months through June 30, 2025 (Attachment A).  Furthermore, There is no change in the
project cost.

LEGAL REVIEW

The City Attorney has reviewed the Staff Report and Third Amendment and approved as to form.

FISCAL IMPACT

The current FY 2024-25 budget will not be affected by extending the contract term, as there is no change to
the project cost.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the Third Amendment to the Lawndale Security
Improvement Project Agreement with Am-Tec Total Security Inc. to extend the term for an additional three
months for a new expiration date of June 30, 2025 with no increase to the current project amount. 

 



Attachments

ATTACHMENT A - Third Amendment to Am-Tec Security Agreement.pdf
ATTACHMENT B - Executed agreement with amendments

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67cf6dd66ff146006c38897a%2F20250310%20ATTACHMENT%201%20-%20Third%20Amendment%20to%20Am-Tec%20Security%20Agreement.pdf?alt=media&token=0a556c4e-4ff8-4407-9e5e-d4a595622233
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67cf6dd66ff146006c38897a%2F20250310%20ATTACHMENT%201%20-%20Third%20Amendment%20to%20Am-Tec%20Security%20Agreement.pdf?alt=media&token=0a556c4e-4ff8-4407-9e5e-d4a595622233
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67cf6dd66ff146006c38897a%2F20250310%20ATTACHMENT%201%20-%20Third%20Amendment%20to%20Am-Tec%20Security%20Agreement.pdf?alt=media&token=0a556c4e-4ff8-4407-9e5e-d4a595622233
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67cf6dd66ff146006c38897a%2FAttachment%20B.pdf?alt=media&token=89a81d69-4f9a-4b78-8c2e-75305345e1bb
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67cf6dd66ff146006c38897a%2FAttachment%20B.pdf?alt=media&token=89a81d69-4f9a-4b78-8c2e-75305345e1bb
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67cf6dd66ff146006c38897a%2FAttachment%20B.pdf?alt=media&token=89a81d69-4f9a-4b78-8c2e-75305345e1bb


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A 



 

1 

 
 

THIRD AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
FOR LAWNDALE SECURITY IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

 
 This THIRD AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT (the "THIRD 
Amendment") is made and entered into this 17th day of March, 2025, by and between the CITY OF 
LAWNDALE, a municipal corporation (herein "City") and Am-Tec Total Security, Inc., a California 
corporation (herein "Contractor").   
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, City and Contractor entered into that certain Agreement entitled "Contract Services 
Agreement for Lawndale Security Improvement Project" (the "Agreement") on or about January 16, 
2024; and 
  
 WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City and the Contractor amending the Agreement with the 
Third Amendment to contract in order to correct the Term of the agreement to June 30, 2025 as set forth 
in the Third Amendment, effective as of March 17th, 2025. 
 

AMENDMENT 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed that the Agreement is amended as follows: 
  
 

2. SECTION 3.4. is amended to make the final date of the “Term” June 30, 2025. 

 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 
1. Other Terms Unchanged.  Subject to the foregoing amendments, the remainder of the terms in 
the Agreement will remain the same and are hereby ratified. 

2. Authority to Execute.  Each party represents and warrants that all necessary action has been 
taken by such party to authorize the undersigned to execute this Third Amendment and to bind the 
parties to the performance of its obligations. 

3. Counterparts, Facsimile or other Electronic Signatures.  This Third Amendment may be 
executed in several counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original, and all of which, when 
taken together, constitute one and the same instrument.  The Third Amendment will be considered 
executed when the signature of a party is delivered by facsimile or other electronic transmission.  Such 
facsimile or other electronic signature will have the same effect as an original signature. 

4. Severability.  If any term, condition or covenant of this Third Amendment is declared or 
determined by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions of this Third Amendment will not be affected and the Third Amendment will be read and 
construed without the invalid, void or unenforceable provision. 



 

2 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and entered into this Amendment as of the 
date first written above.  

CITY: 
CITY OF LAWNDALE, 
A MUNICIPAL COPORATION 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Erica Harbison, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Burke, Williams & Sorensen, LLP 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Gregory M. Murphy, City Attorney 
 
 

 
CONTRACTOR: 
Am-Tec Total Security Inc. 
A California Corporation  
 
 
By: _________________________________ 
 Ruth Torok 
 President 
 
 
 
By: _________________________________ 
 Jeff Torok 
 Vice President 
 
Address: 4075 Schaefer Avenue,  
 Chino, CA 91710 

 



ATTACHMENT B 































CITY OF LAWNDALE
14717 BURIN AVENUE, LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 90260

PHONE (310) 973-3200 ♦ www.lawndalecity.org

 

DATE:    March 17, 2025

TO:   Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Dr. Sean M. Moore, City Manager

PREPARED BY: Nabi Sidiqi, Assistant Engineer
Lucho Rodriguez, Public Works Director

SUBJECT: Approve the Second Amendment to Contract Services Agreement for FY 23/24
Citywide Sign Replacement Project

 

BACKGROUND

In November 2023, the City Council awarded the FY 2023/24 Citywide Sign Replacement Project to J&E
Asphalt Maintenance to upgrade the damaged signs and posts throughout the City. Approximately 20% of
the City's damaged signs and posts in the Right of Way remain to be completed. 

STAFF REVIEW

The current agreement  is set to expire on March 31, 2025 (Attachment B). However, the agreement allows
for the option to extend upon request. Staff recommends that City Council approve the Second Amendment
to the FY 2023/24 Citywide Sign Replacement Project Agreement to extend the agreement an additional
three months through June 30, 2025 (Attachment A).  Furthermore, the project cost has not changed.

LEGAL REVIEW

The City Attorney has reviewed the Staff Report and Second Amendment and approved as to form.

FISCAL IMPACT

The current FY 2024-25 budget will not be affected by this amendment as there is no change to the cost of
the project.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the Second Amendment to the FY 2023/24 Citywide Sign
Replacement Project Agreement with J&E Asphalt Maintenance to extend the term for an additional three
months for a new expiration date of June 30, 2025 with no increase to the current project amount.

 

Attachments

ATTACHMENT A - Second Amendment to J&E Asphalt Agreement.pdf
ATTACHMENT B - Executed Agreement with Amendment

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67cf6e026ff146006c388aad%2F20250310%20ATTACHMENT%201%20-%20Second%20Amendment%20to%20J%26E%20Asphalt%20Agreement.pdf?alt=media&token=6f8a312b-87a1-4b59-9a68-94b4a2634f11
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67cf6e026ff146006c388aad%2F20250310%20ATTACHMENT%201%20-%20Second%20Amendment%20to%20J%26E%20Asphalt%20Agreement.pdf?alt=media&token=6f8a312b-87a1-4b59-9a68-94b4a2634f11
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67cf6e026ff146006c388aad%2F20250310%20ATTACHMENT%201%20-%20Second%20Amendment%20to%20J%26E%20Asphalt%20Agreement.pdf?alt=media&token=6f8a312b-87a1-4b59-9a68-94b4a2634f11
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67cf6e026ff146006c388aad%2FAttachment%20B.pdf?alt=media&token=1e1103e8-9a3b-4c3a-b891-6f074bbc7eaa
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67cf6e026ff146006c388aad%2FAttachment%20B.pdf?alt=media&token=1e1103e8-9a3b-4c3a-b891-6f074bbc7eaa
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67cf6e026ff146006c388aad%2FAttachment%20B.pdf?alt=media&token=1e1103e8-9a3b-4c3a-b891-6f074bbc7eaa


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ATTACHMENT A 



 

1 

SECOND AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT 
FOR FY 2023/24 CITYWIDE SIGN REPLACEMENT PROJECT 

 
 This SECOND AMENDMENT TO CONTRACT SERVICES AGREEMENT (the "SECOND 
Amendment") is made and entered into this 17th day of March, 2025, by and between the CITY OF 
LAWNDALE, a municipal corporation (herein "City") and J&E Asphalt Maintenance, a California 
corporation (herein "Contractor").   
 

RECITALS 
 
 WHEREAS, City and Contractor entered into that certain Agreement entitled "Contract Services 
Agreement for FY 2023/24 Citywide Sign Replacement Project" (the "Agreement") on or about 
November 20, 2023; and 
  
 WHEREAS, it is the desire of the City and the Contractor amending the Agreement with the 
Second Amendment to contract in order to correct the Term of the agreement to June 30, 2025 as set 
forth in the Second Amendment, effective as of March 17th, 2025. 
 

AMENDMENT 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby agreed that the Agreement is amended as follows: 
  
 

2. SECTION 3.4. is amended to make the final date of the “Term” June 30, 2025. 

 
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

 
1. Other Terms Unchanged.  Subject to the foregoing amendments, the remainder of the terms in 
the Agreement will remain the same and are hereby ratified. 

2. Authority to Execute.  Each party represents and warrants that all necessary action has been 
taken by such party to authorize the undersigned to execute this Second Amendment and to bind the 
parties to the performance of its obligations. 

3. Counterparts, Facsimile or other Electronic Signatures.  This Second Amendment may be 
executed in several counterparts, each of which will be deemed an original, and all of which, when 
taken together, constitute one and the same instrument.  The Second Amendment will be considered 
executed when the signature of a party is delivered by facsimile or other electronic transmission. Such 
facsimile or other electronic signature will have the same effect as an original signature. 

4. Severability.  If any term, condition or covenant of this Second Amendment is declared or 
determined by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining 
provisions of this Second Amendment will not be affected and the Second Amendment will be read 
and construed without the invalid, void or unenforceable provision. 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed and entered into this Amendment as of the 
date first written above.  



 

2 

CITY: 
CITY OF LAWNDALE, 
A MUNICIPAL COPORATION 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Robert Pullen-Miles, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Erica Harbison, City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
Burke, Williams & Sorensen, LLP 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Gregory M. Murphy, City Attorney 
 
 

 
CONTRACTOR: 
J&E Asphalt Maintenance 
A California Corporation  
 
 
By: _________________________________ 
 Jesse Frausto 
 President 
 
 
 
By: _________________________________ 
 Jesse Frausto 
 Secretary 
 
Address: 7101 Western Ave.,  
 Buena Park, CA 90620 

 



ATTACHMENT B 



























CITY OF LAWNDALE
14717 BURIN AVENUE, LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 90260

PHONE (310) 973-3200 ♦ www.lawndalecity.org

 

DATE:    March 17, 2025

TO:   Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Dr. Sean M. Moore, City Manager

PREPARED BY: Lucho Rodriguez, Public Works Director

SUBJECT: Speed Hump Policy
 

BACKGROUND

Public work staff is bringing this item forward at the request of  Council Member Suarez for City Council's
review and discussion, and direction on possibly updating the City’s Speed Hump policy, if desired. The
current version of the Policies and Procedures for the Installation of Speed Humps (Council Policy No. 38-
96) has been in effect since its adoption by City Council on February 26, 1996 (attachment 1).  The policy
guidelines contain established minimum criteria from which the installation of speed humps can be
considered.

STAFF REVIEW

The City’s Policies and Procedures for the Installation of Speed Humps is composed of several common
practice elements that help determine the appropriateness of installing speed humps at certain locations,
including the procedure for a resident to follow when requesting an assessment.

According to the policy, speed humps are to be only implemented on residential streets with a maximum
speed limit of 25 miles per hour, the streets must have a maximum grade of 5% and one lane of travel in
each direction, and the street should not be an important access route for emergency vehicles. 

Speed humps are not recognized or considered a traffic control device by the Manual on Uniform Traffic
Control Devices (MUTCD), and for that reason speed humps are seldom used on public roads in California.

LEGAL REVIEW

The City Attorney has reviewed this staff report.

FISCAL IMPACT

There is no fiscal impact with this item.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the City Council discuss the Speed Hump policy and provide direction for staff for
potentially updating the policy if Council wants to make changes to it.
 
 

 



Attachments

ATTACHMENT 1 -Speed Humps council policy

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67d1eaa46ff146006c3deccb%2FSpeed%20Humps%20council%20policy.pdf?alt=media&token=ae58fb9a-fd95-4d1b-ad81-19123dd4eb27
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67d1eaa46ff146006c3deccb%2FSpeed%20Humps%20council%20policy.pdf?alt=media&token=ae58fb9a-fd95-4d1b-ad81-19123dd4eb27
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67d1eaa46ff146006c3deccb%2FSpeed%20Humps%20council%20policy.pdf?alt=media&token=ae58fb9a-fd95-4d1b-ad81-19123dd4eb27


ATTACHMENT 1

















CITY OF LAWNDALE
14717 BURIN AVENUE, LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 90260

PHONE (310) 973-3200 ♦ www.lawndalecity.org

 

DATE:    March 17, 2025

TO:   Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Dr. Sean M. Moore, City Manager

PREPARED BY: Diane Parsley, Executive Assistant
Dr. Sean M. Moore, City Manager

SUBJECT: Letter of Support for Los Angeles County Sheriff's Department Staffing
 

BACKGROUND

The City of Lawndale contracts with the Los Angeles County Sheriff's Department for law enforcement
services.

Mayor Pullen-Miles received a request from a representative from the Association for Los Angeles Deputy
Sheriffs (ALADS) who requested the City send a letter to Supervisor Holly J. Mitchell, Los Angeles County
Board of Supervisors, requesting the Board of Supervisors take steps to reduce the number of vacancies in
the Sheriff's Department and support retention efforts for deputy sheriff positions.  At the request of Mayor
Pullen-Miles, a draft letter provided by ALADS is presented for consideration of the City Council.

STAFF REVIEW

None

LEGAL REVIEW

None 

FISCAL IMPACT

None 

RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the City Council 1.) Review and approve the attached draft letter to Supervisor Holly
J. Mitchell, County of Los Angeles Board of Supervisors; and 2.) Direct staff in the City Manager's
Department to finalize the letter with the Mayor and City Councilmembers signature lines for transmittal to
Supervisor Holly J. Mitchell; or, 3.) Provide further direction to staff.

 

Attachments

Attachment A_Draft Ltr on LASD Staffing Crisis.pdf

https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67cf0b476ff146006c36f034%2FAttachment%20A_Draft%20Ltr%20on%20LASD%20Staffing%20Crisis.pdf?alt=media&token=0ed9e972-bc65-4a17-9f4a-1dccf62541d4
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67cf0b476ff146006c36f034%2FAttachment%20A_Draft%20Ltr%20on%20LASD%20Staffing%20Crisis.pdf?alt=media&token=0ed9e972-bc65-4a17-9f4a-1dccf62541d4
https://firebasestorage.googleapis.com/v0/b/fast-archive-274904.appspot.com/o/lawndaleca%2Factions%2F67cf0b476ff146006c36f034%2FAttachment%20A_Draft%20Ltr%20on%20LASD%20Staffing%20Crisis.pdf?alt=media&token=0ed9e972-bc65-4a17-9f4a-1dccf62541d4








CITY OF LAWNDALE
14717 BURIN AVENUE, LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 90260

PHONE (310) 973-3200 ♦ www.lawndalecity.org

 

DATE:    March 17, 2025

TO:   Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Dr. Sean M. Moore, City Manager

PREPARED BY: Vanesa Alvarez, Administrative Assistant

SUBJECT: Report of Attendance at Meetings
 

No supporting documentation was forwarded to the City Clerk Department for this item.

 



CITY OF LAWNDALE
14717 BURIN AVENUE, LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 90260

PHONE (310) 973-3200 ♦ www.lawndalecity.org

 

DATE:    March 17, 2025

TO:   Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Dr. Sean M. Moore, City Manager

PREPARED BY: Vanesa Alvarez, Administrative Assistant

SUBJECT: Conference with Legal Counsel – Existing Litigation
 

The City Council will conduct a closed session, pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9(d)(1), to
discuss existing litigation: Name of Case: City of Lawndale v. LA Investment, LLC (LA Superior Court Case
No. 20TRCV00065).

 



CITY OF LAWNDALE
14717 BURIN AVENUE, LAWNDALE, CALIFORNIA 90260

PHONE (310) 973-3200 ♦ www.lawndalecity.org

 

DATE:    March 17, 2025

TO:   Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Dr. Sean M. Moore, City Manager

PREPARED BY: Vanesa Alvarez, Administrative Assistant

SUBJECT: Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation
 

The City Council will conduct a closed session pursuant to Government Code section 54956.9(d)(4), to
discuss the potential initiation of litigation: three (3) cases.

 


	CityCouncilRegularMeeting-2025-03-18
	Item 2. 
	Attachment A (1)
	Item 3. 
	Attachment A_Retirement Presentation to Vilma Hall_CSD Senior Recreation Leader_28 plus years of Service
	Item 4. 
	Item 5. 
	A. CC-2503-016 - AP Resolution - Mar. 17, 2025
	Item 6. 
	min 3-3-25
	Item 7. 
	Attachment 1 - Sphere of Influence
	Attachment 2 LAFCO Maps
	Attachment 3 - Torrance Documents
	Item 8. 
	Attachment A_Construction Agreement
	Attachment B_Bid Opening Log
	Attachment C_Project Location Map
	D. Resolution CC-2202-009
	We R Builders
	Onyx
	Item 9. 
	20250310 ATTACHMENT 1 - Third Amendment to Am-Tec Security Agreement
	Attachment B
	Item 10. 
	20250310 ATTACHMENT 1 - Second Amendment to J&E Asphalt Agreement
	Attachment B
	Item 11. 
	Speed Humps council policy
	Item 12. 
	Attachment A_Draft Ltr on LASD Staffing Crisis
	Item 13. 
	Item 14. 
	Item 15. 



